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PART |
Item 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statementsimithe meaning of Section 21E of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934. Words
such as “projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intexicand “assumes” and similar expressions are usétentify forward-looking statements.
These statements are made based upon current akpestand projections about our business and gggm made by our management and
are not guarantees of future performance, nor dassame any obligation to update such forward-togpkiatements after the date this report
is filed. Our actual results could differ mategidrom those projected in the forward-looking staents for many reasons, including the risk
factors listed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and tletors discussed below.

Corporate Overview

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lazahsed partner applications that incorporatedears patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarymelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymesad 2) Hyaluronan (“HA”)
biopolymers. The Company'’s proprietary polymehtemogies are the foundation, and a key differéintipadvantage, upon which Landec
has built its business.

After the acquisition of Lifecore Biomedical, In¢Lifecore”) on April 30, 2010, Landec now has fozore businesses — Food
Products Technology, Commaodity Trading, Hyalurobased Biomaterials and Technology Licensing, e&ethach is described
below. Financial information concerning the indystegments for which the Company reported its atpmrs during fiscal years 2008, 2009
and 2010 is summarized in Note 14 to the Cons@ul&inancial Statements.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our ¢c&woducts Technology business, combining Landaoprietary food
packaging technology with the capabilities of @éanational food supplier and value-added producegssor. In Apio’s value-added

operations, produce is processed by trimming, washmixing, and packaging into bags and traysiti@irporate Landec’s Breathewgy
membrane technology. The BreatheWay membraneaseseshelf life and reduces shrink (waste) foileessand, for certain products,
eliminates the need for ice during the distributbgule and helps to ensure that consumers recedgh produce by the time the product m:

its way through the supply chain. Apio also licesthe BreatheWay technology to ChiquBaands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for
packaging and distribution of bananas and avocaddso Windset Farms for packaging of greenhousegicucumbers, peppers and
tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Commodity Trading busineti;h combines Apio’s export company, Cal Ex Trad@ompany (“Cal-Ex”),
with Apio’s domestic buy-sell commodity busineSthe Commodity Trading business purchases andwbbée fruit and vegetable products
to predominantly Asian markets.

Our newly acquired wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifeepoperates our Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials basiand is principally
involved in the development and manufacture of potslutilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occurringysaccharide that is widely distributed
in the extracellular matrix of connective tissue®oth animals and humans. Lifecore’s productgérearily sold to three medical segments:
(1) Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3) Veterinakyfecore also supplies hyaluronan to customersuying other medical applications, such
as aesthetic surgery, medical device coatingsidissgineering and pharmaceuticals. Lifecore Eyes its proprietary fermentation process
to manufacture premium, pharmaceutical-grade hgakm, and its proprietary aseptic filling capalattto deliver HA finished goods to its
customers. Lifecore also manufactures and sellewin HA-based finished goods. Lifecore is knowthie medical segments as the premium
supplier of HA. Its name recognition allows Lifeedo acquire new customers and sell new produittsomly a small marketing or sales
capability.

Landec’s Technology Licensing business developprigtary polymer technologies and applies themide range of applications
including seed coatings and treatments, temperatdieators, controlled release systems, drug defivpressure sensitive adhesives and
personal care products. These applications arenewnialized through partnerships with third partiesulting in licensing and royalty
revenues. For example, Monsanto Company (“Monsahts an exclusive license to our Intellicoat®deeating technology for specific
seed treatment applications, Air Products and Coalsyilnc. (“Air Products”) has an exclusive licerie our Intelimer polymers for personal
care products and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”) lis&s Landec’s proprietary pressure sensitive adee$&ir use in the manufacture of
electronic components by their customers.




Landec was incorporated in California on Octoberl®B6 and reincorporated as a Delaware corporatidNovember 6, 2008. Our
common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global SeMarket under the symbol “LNDC".

Technology Overview

Landec has two polymer technology platforms. Titet platform is its proprietary Intelimer polymeTthe Intelimer polymer is a
crystalline, hydrophobic polymer that has very wigharacteristics and benefits. The first unigagure of this polymer system is the way
that it uses a temperature switch to control andutaie properties such as viscosity, permeability adhesion when varying the materials’
temperature above and below the temperature swithie. sharp temperature switch is adjustable betWet00° C. A second unique feature
of the Intelimer polymer materials is its uniquentolled release properties. The polymer is ablédiiver active ingredients with low or no
burst, with a sustained release over periods . tiffinally, Intelimer polymers can be designeddntain up to 80% renewable materials
from components of natural raw materials such pes@ed oil, palm oil or coconut oil, and can beptied in biocompatible and bioerodible
forms.

With the acquisition of Lifecore on April 30, 2010andec added its second proprietary polymer teldigyaglatform. Hyaluronan |
a non-crystalline, hydrophilic polymer that existturally within the human body, especially withlie aqueous humor of the eye, synovial
fluid, skin and umbilical cord. The visco-elagioperties and water solubility of HA make it idéal medicinal applications where lubricity
and protection are critical. HA can be producethio ways, either through bacterial fermentatiothoough extraction from rooster
combs. Lifecore produces HA only from fermentatiosing an extremely efficient microbial fermermatiprocess and a highly effective
purification operation.

A) Intelimer Polymers

Our patented proprietary Intelimer polymers difi@m other polymers in that they can be customizeabruptly change their
physical characteristics when heated or cooledudita pre-set temperature switch. For instandelinmer polymers can change within the
range of one or two degrees Celsius from a nonsaghestate to a highly tacky, adhesive state; famnimpermeable state to a highly
permeable state; or from a solid state to a vistiquil state. These abrupt changes can be irséleror repeatedly reversible and can be
tailored by Landec to occur at specific temperatutieereby offering substantial competitive advgesain the Company's target markets.

Polymers are important and versatile materials danrmmany of the products of modern life. Certagtymers, such as cellulose and
natural rubber, occur in nature. Man-made or stittpolymers include nylon fibers used in carpgtimd clothing, coatings used in paints
and finishes, plastics such as polyethylene, aast@ners used in automobile tires and latex glddesorically, synthetic polymers have bt
designed and developed primarily for improved meata and thermal properties, such as strengthttamdbility to withstand high
temperatures. Improvements in these and otheepiep and the ease of manufacturing syntheticrpelg have allowed these materials to
replace wood, metal and natural fibers in manyiapfbns over the last 50 years. More recentligriists have focused their efforts on
identifying and developing sophisticated polymeithwovel properties for a variety of commerciaphgations.

Landec's Intelimer polymers are a proprietary ctdss/nthetic polymeric materials that respondetmperature changes in a
controllable, predictable way. Typically, polymemmdually change in adhesion, permeability andosiy over broad temperature
ranges. Landec's Intelimer materials, in conticeat,be designed to exhibit abrupt changes in pavitity, adhesion and/or viscosity over
temperature ranges as narrow aClto 2° C. These changes can be designed to occur avedydbw temperatures (0C to 100° C) that
are relatively easy to maintain in industrial andnenercial environmentsFigure lillustrates the effect of temperature on Intelimeterials
as compared to typical polymers.
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Landec's proprietary polymer technology is basetherstructure and phase behavior of Intelimer riedge The abrupt thermal
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chaifise reversible transitions between crystalline ambrphous states are illustrated-igure 2
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This chemical structure provides an additional fien&patially distinct regions of the Intelimeolgmer confer different physical properties
on the material. Each part can be tuned indepdlydermeet the needs of a given application. &a@mple, switching temperature (which
arises from one part of the chain) can be adjusidependently of adhesive properties (which anemfanother part of the chain). In addit
to temperature, the pH and other environmentalmpatars can be used as the “switch” to trigger aiignt change in physical

properties. Also, side chain crystallizable polysn@hen mixed with any active material, for examglaerapeutic drug, can control the
release of the active materials by the crystallimecture of the Intelimer polymer while in the stglline state. In this manner therapeutic
drugs can be delivered over a sustained and lonigdgef time. Or, a fragrance can be emitted stgamlier a long period of time from a
crystalline Intelimer polymer.

Side chain crystallizable polymers were first dism@d by academic researchers in the mid-1950iesd polymers were initially
considered to be merely of scientific curiositynfra polymer physics perspective and, to the Conipampwledge, no significant commer:
applications were pursued. In the mid-1980's Ry Stewart, the Company's founder, became intgtéstthe idea of using the temperature-
activated permeability properties of these polynmerdeliver various materials such as catalystspmsticides. After forming Landec in 19;
Dr. Stewart subsequently discovered broader ufiitythese polymers. After several years of bessearch, commercial development efforts
began in the early 1990's, resulting in initialgwots in mid 1990's.

Landec's Intelimer materials are generally syn#tegsirom long side-chain acrylic monomers thatdsméved primarily from natural
materials such as coconut and palm oils that ajleyhpurified and designed to be manufactured egooally through known synthetic
processes. These acrylic-monomer raw materialharepolymerized by Landec leading to many diffiéstde-chain crystallizable polymers
whose properties vary depending upon the initigiem@s and the synthetic process. Intelimer nigtecan be made into many different
forms, including films, coatings, microcapsules digtrete forms.

B) Hyaluronan Biopolymers

Hyaluronan, a naturally occurring polysaccharidea component of many tissues in the body and ydiplogical fluids that
lubricate or otherwise protect the body’s softués Due to its widespread presence in tissuesititsal role in normal physiology and its
high degree of biocompatibility, the Company bedigthat hyaluronan will continue to be used fomaneasing variety of medical
applications. Lifecore produces hyaluronan throagimoprietary fermentation process.

Hyaluronan was first demonstrated to have commlemuéalical utility as a viscoelastic solution in &atct
surgery. In this application, it is used for maintng the shape of the anterior chamber and pintecorneal tissue during the removal and
implantation of intraocular lenses. The first d@limic hyaluronan product, produced by extractimmfrooster comb tissue, became
commercially available in the United States in 198lyaluronan-based products, produced either bgtes comb extraction or by
fermentation processes such as Lifecgrbave since gained widespread acceptance inalpidtogy and are currently used in the majorit
cataract extraction procedures in the world. ldfets hyaluronan is also used as an orthopeditecarehicle for allogeneic freeze-dried
demineralized bone as the active component of dewie treat the symptoms of osteoarthritis, anal fasmulation component to provide
increased lubricity to medical devices. The Conymhyaluronan has also been utilized in veterirdimyg applications to treat traumatic
arthritis.

Trademarks/Trade names

Intelimer®, Landec®, Apio®, Eat Smart®, BreatheWayfitellicoat®, Early Plant®, Pollinator Plus®, Rg® Cropping,

Lifecore®, Revitalure™, LUROCOAT and Ortholure™ are trademarks or registered tradesrend trade names of the Company in the
United States and other countries. This AnnualdRegn Form 10-K also refers to the trademarkstb&ocompanies.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in four core business segmeiygo, Inc. with the Food Products Technology &ammodity Trading
businesses, Lifecore Biomedical, LLC, with Hyalusorbased Biomaterials business and Landec’s Teapydlicensing business.
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Landec Corporation

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

Food Products Commodity Trading Hyaluranan-based Technology Licensing
Technology Biomaterials

A) Food Products Technology Busine

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intetiibased BreatheWay membranes in 1996 for useifrébh-cut produce
packaging market, historically one of the fastestngng segments in the produce industry. Landpmprietary BreatheWaypackaging
technology is used to package fresh-cut or whadelyee, the result is a convenient, ready-to-eédtfed product that achieves increased shelf
life and reduced shrink (waste) without the needde during the distribution cycle. These produate referred to as “value-added”
products. In 1999, the Company acquired Apicthi& largest customer in the Food Products Teclhygddasiness and one of the nation’s
leading marketers and packers of produce and dpepackaged fresh-cut vegetables. Apio utilizesade-of-the-art fresh-cut processing
facility and year-round access to quality vegetaolercing to produce products which Apio distrilsutie top U.S. retail grocery chains, major
club stores and foodservice customers. The Conipangprietary BreatheWay packaging business has bembined with Apio into a
subsidiary that retains the Apio name. This valtiotegration within the Food Products Technolbgginess gives Landec direct access to
the large and growing fresh-cut and whole produaeket.

The Technology: BreatheWay Membranes

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole produce cail sp discolor rapidly when packaged in conventibpackaging materials and,
therefore, are limited in their ability to be dibtrted broadly to markets. The Company’s propneBreatheWay packaging technology
extends the shelf life and quality of fresh-cut arftble produce.

Fresh-cut produce is cut, washed, and packagedoimathat is ready to use by the consumer anlus typically sold at premium
price levels compared to unpackaged produce. dtaeW.S. fresh produce market is estimated toli®$illion to $120 billion. Of this,
U.S. retail sales of fresh-cut produce is estimédezbmprise 10% of the fresh produce market. Company believes that the growth of this
market has been driven by consumer demand andillivgness to pay for convenience, freshness, umifquality, and safety delivered to !
point of sale.

Although fresh-cut produce companies have had ssdoehe salad market, the industry has been sladiversify into other fresh-
cut vegetables or fruits due primarily to limitat®in film and plastic tray materials used to paekehese products. After harvesting,
vegetables and fruit continue to respire, consuroiygen and releasing carbon dioxide. Too mudoolittle oxygen can result in premat
spoilage and decay. Conventional packaging filnesiueday, such as polyethylene and polypropylese be made with modest permeability
to oxygen and carbon dioxide, but often do not ethe optimal atmosphere for the produce packa@ubrtcomings of conventional
packaging materials have not significantly hindetfeelgrowth in the fresh-cut salad market becagtbede, unlike many vegetables and fruit,
has low respiration requirements.

The respiration rate of produce varies from vedetbvegetable and from fruit to fruit. To achgesptimal product performance,
each unique fruit or vegetable requires its owmuaipackage atmosphere conditions. The challeayed the industry is to develop
packaging that meets the highly variable needsahelt product requires in order to achieve valaaterg performance. The Company
believes that its BreatheWay packaging technolapsesses all of the critical functionalities regdito serve this diverse market. In creating
a product package, a BreatheWay membrane is appliexda small cutout section or an aperture oéxilfle film bag or plastic tray. This
highly permeable “window” acts as the mechanismrtivide the majority of the gas transmission regmients for the entire package. These
membranes are designed to provide three princgradfits:




High Permeability. Landec's BreatheWay packaging technology is desigo permit transmission of oxygen and carborid@at 300
times the rate of conventional packaging films.e dompany believes that these higher permealgtitgls will facilitate the
packaging diversity required to market many typesesh-cut and whole produce in many package sipelsconfigurations.

Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Permbb BreatheWay packagingcan be tailored with carbon dioxide to oxygen
transfer ratios ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 and selebt transmit oxygen and carbon dioxide at optimuates to sustain the quality and
shelf life of packaged produce. Other high pernigalpackaging materials, such as micro-perfordibds cannot differentially
control carbon dioxide permeability resulting irbsaptimal package atmosphere conditions for maogyere products.

Temperature Responsivenedsandec has developed breathable membranes théecdesigned to increase or decrease permeability
response to environmental temperature changes Cohgany has developed packaging that respondglierhoxygen requiremer
at elevated temperatures but is also reversiberetarns to its original state as temperaturefirdecAs the respiration rate of fresh
produce also increases with temperature, the Be¥ésly membrane’s temperature responsiveness allagksages to compensate for
the change in produce respiration by automatiadiysting gas permeation rates. By doing so,etrtal package atmosphere
conditions are avoided and improved quality is raimed through the distribution chain.

Landec believes that growth of the overall produeeket will be driven by the increasing demandtf@ convenience and nutrition
of fresh-cut produce. This demand will in turnuig packaging that facilitates the quality andifslife of produce transported to fresh-cut
distributors in bulk and pallet quantities. Then@pany believes that in the future i8reatheWay packaging technology will be useful for
packaging a diverse variety of fresh-cut and wipsteluce products. Potential opportunities for gdiandec’s technology outside of the
produce market exist in cut flowers and in othepieng products.

Landec is working with leaders in the club stoegail grocery chain and foodservice markets. Then@any believes it will have
growth opportunities for the next several yearsulgh new customers and products in the United §taigansion of its existing customer
relationships, and through export and shipmenspetialty packaged produce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packaging threetected qualified contract manufacturers. blitazh to using BreatheWay
packaging for its value-added produce businessCtmepany markets and sells BreatheWay packagiegttirto food distributors.

The Business: Food Products Technology

Our Food Products Technology business, operateddhrour Apio subsidiary, had revenues of approtetgeb175 million for the
fiscal year ended May 30, 2010, $168 million fce ftscal year ended May 31, 2009 and $171 millmilie fiscal year ended May 25, 2008.

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary Imesis is packaged fresh-cut and whole value-addetlipts packaged in our
proprietary BreatheWay packaging. The fresh-clieradded products business markets a varietyeshfiut and whole vegetables to the
retail grocery chains, club stores and foodsersigepliers. During the fiscal year ended May 3Q,8®Apio shipped nearly seventeen million
cartons of produce to leading supermarket retailehnelesalers, food service suppliers and clubesttiiroughout North America, primarily in
the United States.

There are four major distinguishing characteristicépio that provide competitive advantages in fle®d Products Technology
market:




Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhet of fresh-cut and whole value-added produtes
focused on selling products under its Eat Smartdend other brands for its fresh-cut and wholeergdded products. As retail
grocery and club store chains consolidate, Apiga8 positioned as a single source of a broad rarfigreoducts.

Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstap of farmland, and instead, contracts with gnafeom
many locations for produce. The year-round sogroinproduce is a key component to the fresh-cdtvaimole value-added
processing business.

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly giegvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. '4i86,000
square foot value-added processing plant, recerppganded from 96,000 square feet, is automatedstate-of-the-art vegetable
processing equipment. Virtually all of Apio’s vekadded products utilize Apio’s proprietary Bredttsy packaging
technology. Apio’s primary strategy is to operate large central processing facility in one ofifoahia’s largest, lowest cost
growing regions, the Santa Maria Valley, and usskaging technology that allows for the nationwiddivery of fresh produce
products.

Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagiteghnology, is introducing on average
fifteen new value-added products each year. Thegeproduct offerings range from various sizesesh-cut bagged products, to
vegetable trays, to whole produce, to vegetabkrdsadnd snack packs. During the last twelve mo#athi® has introduced 19 new
products.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 846 advance the sales of BreatheWay packaging¢daty for shelflife sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty paitkgfor case liner products extends the shelfdffeertain produce commaodities up to
50%. This shelf life extension can enable theazatilon of alternative distribution strategies tirgefficiencies or reach new markets while
maintaining product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging'’s first program has concentratedamanas and was formally consummated when Apigeshteto an agreement to
supply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packggechnology on a worldwide basis for the ripenitmnservation and shelf-life extension
of bananas for most applications on an exclusisistand for other applications on a non-exclusagi$ In addition, Apio provides Chiquita
with ongoing research and development and proeesmology support for the BreatheWay membranesagd, and technical service
support throughout the customer chain in ordesgisain the development and market acceptandeedethnology.

For its part, Chiquita provides marketing, disttibn and retail sales support for Chiquita® banaswd worldwide in BreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Gitggmust meet quarterly minimum purchase threshofBreatheWay banana packages.

The initial market focus for the BreatheWay banpaekaging technology using Chiquita bananas has d@mmercial outlets that
normally do not sell bananas because of their datf-life — outlets such as mini marts, conveogstores and coffee chain outlets.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company expanded the tige BreatheWay technology to include avocadosmadgos under an expanded
licensing agreement with Chiquita. Commercial saleavocados packaged in Landec’s BreatheWay gaukanto the food service industry
began late in fiscal year 2008 and commercialIrstdés began in fiscal 2010.

In May 2007, Apio entered into an 18-month researnth development agreement with Natick Soldier Rese Development &
Engineering Center, a branch of the U.S. Militaoydevelop commercial uses for LandeBreatheWay packaging technology within the |
Military by significantly increasing the shelf lifgf produce for overseas shipments. Apio is nova@roved vendor for its BreatheWay
packaging technology to the U.S. Military.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of
Monsanto, to develop novel broccoli and cauliflowesducts for the exclusive sale by Apio in the thgkmerican market. These novel
products will be packaged in Landec’s proprietargadheWay packaging and will be sold to retail grgchains, club stores and the food
service industry. Field trials for the initial ¢gat varieties began in the Fall of 2008 and wKktaeveral years to develop.

-10-




In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset Farms for Windset toagtiliandec’s proprietary
breathable packaging to extend the shelf life eeghouse grown cucumbers, peppers and tomatoes.

B) Commodity Trading Busines

Commodity Trading revenues consist of revenuesrgéee from the purchase and sale of primarily wieolemodity fruit and
vegetable products to Asia through Apio’s expornpany, Cal-Ex, and from the purchase and sale ofettommodity fruit and vegetable
products domestically. The Commodity Trading bassis a buy/sell business that realizes a cononidggsed margin in the 5-7% range.

The Business: Commodity Trading

Commodity Trading had revenues of approximately $fifon for the fiscal year ended May 30, 20100$8illion for the fiscal yes
ended May 31, 2009 and $60 million for the fiscahyended May 25, 2008.

Apio is uniquely positioned to benefit from the gith in export sales to Asia and other parts ofvileeld over the next decade with
Cal-Ex. Through Cal-Ex, Apio is currently one bétlargest U.S. exporters of broccoli to Asia.

C) Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business

Our Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials business, opgttateugh our Lifecore subsidiary which was accgiiog Landec on April 30,
2010, had revenues of approximately $1.5 milliontfie one month included in the fiscal year endexy 180, 2010.

The Technology: Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials

Lifecore intends to use its proprietary fermentajoocess and aseptic formulation and filling ekperto be a leader in the
development of hyaluronan-based products for mal@ypplications and to take advantage of non-hgalam device and drug opportunities
which leverage our expertise in HA manufacture syréhge filling capabilities. Elements of Lifecestrategy include the following:

. Establish strategic relationships with market leggde Lifecore will continue to develop applications faroducts with
partners who have strong marketing, sales andhiistsn capabilities to end-user markets. Lifectim®ugh its strong reputation and history
of providing premium HA products has been ablestalglish long-term relationships with the markeidi@g companies such as Alcon and
Abbott Medical Optics in ophthalmology, and Mus@Keletal Transplant Foundation (MTF) and Novart it orthopedics.

. Expand medical applications for hyaluronarDue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbimastics of hyaluronan ar
the role it plays in normal physiology, Lifecorentimues to identify and pursue further uses forlimyaan in other medical applications, such
as wound care, aesthetic surgery, adhesion prevewtiug delivery, device coatings and pharmacalsti¢-urther applications may involve
expanding process development activity and/or adtit licensing of technology.

. License hyaluronan technology from third partielsifecore currently has no commercial products usirags-linking
technology and as a result, Lifecore entered inmmdd-wide exclusive license and development agesd with the Cleveland Clinic
Foundation to develop and commercialize hyalurop@sed products and related applications. The leenfor patented hyaluronan-based
cross-linking technology, Corg@'}'I Biohydrogel products, that can be used for praglircesthetics, orthopedics, ophthalmology androth
medical fields. Given the broad number of appites, Lifecore anticipates that it will sublicertbe technology for certain applications
while retaining manufacturing rights.
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. Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue c@att aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitieifecore will continue
to evaluate providing contract services for oppaittes that are suited for the capital and facilityestment related to aseptic filling
equipment, fermentation and purification.

. Maintain flexibility in product development and plyrelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishaaiety of relationships with global corporate parts. Lifecore’s role in these relationships
extends from supplying hyaluronan raw materialsismufacturing of aseptically-packaged, finishedilst@roducts to developing and
manufacturing its own proprietary products.

Hyaluronan Product:

The following table summarizes the principal praguaf the Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials busindesgawith their applications,
and the companies with which Lifecore has relatesteggic relationships:

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION MARKET STATUS+

OPHTHALMIC

Viscoat ® Lifecore supplies hyaluronan powder for inclusin Cataract surgery Commercial sales

Intraocular Viscoelastic Alcon’s Viscoat ® since 1986
Ophthalmic Viscoelastic

LUROCOAT Ophthalmic Lifecore supplies its private label product for Cataract surgery Commercial sales

Viscoelastic marketing on a non-exclusive basis to multiple since June 1997
distribution partners

ORTHOPEDIC

Hyaluronan Solution for DBX® Lifecore supplies a sterile hyaluronan solutiont  Grafting material for Commercial sales

Demineralized Bone Matrix MTF for use as a carrier vehicle for its allogeneic restoration of bone defects  since 2000
demineralized, free-dried bone

Hyaluron HEXAL® Orthopedic Lifecore supplies a finished orthopedic Injections for the local Commercial sales

Viscosupplement viscosupplement for Novartis AG’s distribution  treatment of pain associated since 2005
network. with osteoarthritis

VETERINARY

HY-50® Lifecore supplies a finished veterinary Veterinary drug/device Commercial sales
viscosupplement to Bexco Pharma, Inc. for use ¢ since 1993

equine injectable

+ For all products listed above, goveent regulatory approvals were required before cemial sales could commence in the United
States or elsewhere. See “Government Regulatiblo.’assurance can be given that such products 8uiscessfully approved in new
markets.

Ophthalmic Applications

Cataract Surgery. Currently, a primary commercial application fdafdcore’s hyaluronan is in cataract surgery. Hy@han, in the
form of a viscoelastic solution, is used to maimi@ideep chamber during anterior segment surg@nielading cataract extraction and
intraocular lens implantation) and to protect tbeneal endothelium and other ocular tissue. Tkekdions have been shown to reduce
surgical trauma and thereby contribute to moredragcovery with fewer complications than were eigrared prior to the use of viscoelast
Hyaluronan-based products are used in the majofitataract surgeries in the world.

Lifecore currently sells hyaluronan for this applion to Alcon, the leading producer of ophthalsiicgical products in the world,
for inclusion in Viscoat Ophthalmic Viscoelasticifecore’s relationship with Alcon and its predeses commenced in 1983. Since that
time, sales of hyaluronan to Alcon have continueldle made pursuant to supply agreements. Thentwupply agreements are non-
exclusive and encompass a term through Decembé&: 201
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Lifecore has developed its own viscoelastic solytlidJROCOAT Ophthalmic Viscoelastic. The Compaagaived CE marking for
LUROCOAT Ophthalmic Viscoelastic in 1997, allowihty ROCOAT Ophthalmic Viscoelastic to be marketed anltl outside the United
States. Lifecore also has distribution agreemwiits multiple companies to supply its hyaluronarséd LUROCOAT Ophthalmic
Viscoelastic under private label.

Lifecore signed an agreement with Abbott MedicatiGp(“AMO”) to supply Lifecore’s hyaluronan-baseiscoelastic under private
label with sales commencing in 2004. The curreppuagreement is non-exclusive and incorporatesra through May 2013 with renewal
provisions.

Lifecore estimates that its hyaluronan has beed imsever 40 million ophthalmic patients globalipee 1983.

Orthopedic Applications

Lifecore supplies an aseptic hyaluronan solutioBittCon, Inc., the non-profit affiliate of MTF, wth utilizes the solution as a
carrier vehicle for its allogeneic demineralizegeze-dried bone in a final putty composition tradeked as “DBX Demineralized Bone
Matrix”. This bone putty is provided by MTF to bapedic surgeons through MTF's distribution chasnélifecore has an exclusive supply
agreement with MTF through December 2014.

Lifecore also supplies a private-labeled finishetthi@pedic viscosupplement for Novartis AG’s distitibn network.

Veterinary Applications

Lifecore manufactures Bexco Pharma, Inc.’s HY-5@dpict, an aseptically packaged hyaluronan soldtionse as a veterinary
viscosupplement as an equine injectable drug, uaexclusive supply agreement through June 20@tbremewal provisions.

Lifecore estimates that its veterinary hyaluronesdpct has been used in over 700,000 equine proegdioridwide.
Product Developmet

Lifecore undertakes its own product developmentiiets for hyaluronan-based applications, as \&slbn a contract basis with
certain clients. The majority of the projects stended to demonstrate that Lifecore’s hyaluroisasuitable for a particular medical
application. Suitability is often measured by dethspecifications for product characteristicshsas purity, stability, viscosity and molecular
weight, as well as efficacy for a particular medegaplication in a clinical setting.

In addition, Lifecore has licensed a sodium hyahate cross-linking technology from Cleveland CliRimundation, the Corgel
Biohydrogel technology. The development activifighvthis technology will be conducted over seveedrs and is intended to demonstrate
its efficacy in multiple medical applications.

There can be no assurance that products curremdigridevelopment by Lifecore or in partnership veithers will be successfully
developed or, if so developed, will be successfaiig profitably marketed.
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D) Technology Licensing Busines
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings anddcafid

Our Technology Licensing Business includes our seeding subsidiary Landec Ag LLC (“Landec Ag”) whihad revenues of $6.1
million for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 &%d4 million for each of the fiscal years ended Mdy 2009 and May 25, 2008.

Following the sale of Fielder's Choice Direct (“FQPLandec Ag’s strategy has been to work closeithwlonsanto to further
develop our patented, functional polymer coatirgpit®logy for sale and/or licensing to the seed $trgu In accordance with its License,
Supply and R&D agreement with Monsanto, Landec #Aguirrently focused on commercializing productstii@ér soybean and seed corn
market and plans to broaden the technology to ctbed crop applications.

The Technology: Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasgned to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings areeatly available on hybrid corn, soybeans and nrddeed corn used for seed
production. In fiscal year 2000, Landec Ag laurtthie first commercial product, Pollinator Pl@scoatings, which is a coating application
used by seed companies as a method for spreadiiagion to increase yields and reduce risk inpheduction of hybrid seed corn. There
are approximately 650,000 acres of seed produdtitimee United States and in 2010 Pollinator Plus wsed by 10 seed companies on
approximately 18% of the seed corn production aicréise U.S.

Monsanto announced in 2008 that it had formed almesiness called the Seed Treatment Business wilichllow Monsanto to
develop its seed treatment requirements interndllye concept of seed treatments is to place acticgde or fungicide directly onto the seed
surface in order to protect the seed and the sepd$ it emerges. Landec’s Intellicoat seed cgagnhnology could be an integral and
proprietary part of Monsanto’s commitment to builglia major position in seed treatments worldwideidipg Landec’s seed coatings as a
“carrier” of insecticides/fungicides which can bepknsed at the appropriate time based on timeiloilesnperature. During Fiscal year 2010
we amended our agreement with Monsanto and asith oes development activities are focused on &ifipgechnology of interest to
Monsanto. During fiscal year 2010, we have focusedalidating the use of Landec’s coating techgyplfor these applications.

Sale of FCD

Landec received $50 million in cash paid at theelfor its sale of FCD in December 2006. Durisgdl year 2007, Landec recor:
income from the sale, net of direct expenses andid®s, of $22.7 million. The income that was rdedrwas equal to the difference between
the fair value of FCD of $40 million and its netdkovalue, less direct selling expenses and bonuseaccordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the portion of the $50 milliof proceeds in excess of the fair value of FQ%10 million, is being allocated to the
technology license agreement described below abeingy recognized as revenue ratably over theyi@as term of the technology license
agreement or $2 million per year beginning Decen20®6. The fair value of FCD was determined by agament.

In December 2006, Landec also entered into a feer-go-exclusive technology license and polymepkuggreement (“the
Monsanto Agreement”) with Monsanto for the use ahtlec’s Intellicoatpolymer seed coating technology. Under the terhtieoMonsantc
Agreement, Monsanto agreed to pay Landec Ag $2lebmper year. The Monsanto Agreement was ameimu&bvember 2009. Under the
terms of the amended Monsanto Agreement, Monsamttinzies to have an exclusive license to use Lasdieiellicoat polymer technology
for specific seed treatment applications. Ovemr#maining two-year term of the amended MonsanteAgent, Monsanto will investigate
uses of Landec’s Intellicoat technology in a variaft seed categories in the field exclusively lised to Monsanto.

Along with regaining the use of the Intellicoatheology outside of the specific applications liaeth$o Monsanto under the amen

Monsanto Agreement, Landec has assumed respotysibiliLandec Ags operating expenses and realizes all the reveameeprofits from th
sales of existing and new Intellicoat seed coapirmglucts.
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For each of the fiscal years ended May 30, 201G; 813 2009 and May 25, 2008, Landec recognized 88lbn in revenues and
income from the Agreement.

The Monsanto Agreement also provides for a feelgay@a Landec Ag of $4 million if Monsanto electstérminate the Monsanto
Agreement or $10 million if Monsanto elects to phase the rights to the exclusive field. If theghase option is exercised before December
2011, or if Monsanto elects to terminate the Mots#greement, all annual license fees and supphlyngats that have not been paid to
Landec Ag will become due upon the purchase oritextion.  If Monsanto does not exercise its pasghoption by December 2011 Landec

Ag will receive the termination fee and all riglsthe Intellicoat seed coating technology will revert to Landec. @rdingly, we will receive
aggregate minimum guaranteed payments of $17 mifbo license fees and polymer supply payments fiveryears or $23 million in
aggregate maximum payments if Monsanto elects tohaise the rights to the exclusive field. The mimin guaranteed payments and the
deferred gain of $2 million per year described &bl result in Landec recognizing revenue andrapeg income of $5.4 million per year
for fiscal years 2008 through 2011 and $2.7 millx@m year for fiscal years 2007 and 2012. Theeimantal $6 million to be received in the
event Monsanto exercises the purchase option leasdeferred and will be recognized upon the exemitshe purchase option. The fair
value of the purchase option was determined by gemant to be less than the amount of the defeenezhue.

If Monsanto elects to purchase the rights to theusive field, a gain or loss on the sale will beagnized at the time of purchase. If
Monsanto exercises its purchase option, we expestter into a new long-term supply agreement Witimsanto pursuant to which Landec
would continue to be the exclusive supplier of lliteat polymer materials to Monsanto.

Nor-Seed Business

We believe our technology has commercial poteimial wide range of industrial, consumer and medipalications beyond those
identified in our other segments. For example,amre patented technology, Intelimer materials, lmanised to trigger release of catalysts,
insecticides or fragrances just by changing theprature of the Intelimer materials or to activadbesives through controlled temperature
change. In order to exploit these opportunities have entered into and will enter into licensing aollaborative corporate agreements for
product development and/or distribution in cerfiééfds. However, given the infrequency and unpetadiility of when the Company may
enter into any such licensing and research andaeawent arrangements, the Company is unable téodisdts financial expectations in
advance of entering into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development stratedyp i®cus on coatings, catalysts, resins, additaresadhesives in the polymer
materials market. During the product developméades, the Company identifies corporate partnessipport the ongoing development and
testing of these products, with the ultimate gddloensing the applications at the appropriateetim
Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful ienetihg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrisging distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bt¥rough our licensing agreement with

Air Products. The rights to develop and sell Larisiéatent catalysts and personal care technolagés licensed to Air Products in March
2006.
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Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatigasesfy is focused on supplying Intelimer materialndustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, as well as color cosmeticstitiks and hair care. The Company's partner, Ade&cts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, Mentholatum and other companies for usileiions and creams. The rights to develop and.seldec’s polymers for personal care
products were licensed to Air Products in March@8ng with the latent catalyst rights.

Intelimer Drug Delivery Polymet

Landec has been developing both biodegradable amdbiodegradable polymers for use in drug deliagplications targeting the
use of its highly crystalline polymers and the tlegphysical properties to minimize or eliminatediyextend drug release profiles and
deliver novel valuable properties to the pharmast.

Sales and Marketing

Each of the Company’s core businesses is suppbyteédicated sales and marketing resources. Thgp&ay intends to develop its
internal sales capacity as more products progossartl commercialization and as business volumeredggeographically.During fiscal
years 2010, 2009 and 2008, sales to the Con’s top five customers accounted for approximaté9e4 46% and 47%, respectively, of its
revenues, with the top customer, Costco Wholesatp.Caccounting for approximately 20%, 21% and 288pectively, of the Company’s
revenues.

Apio

Apio has 22 sales and marketing employees, lodateentral California and throughout the U.S., sapipg the Food Products
Technology business and the Commodity Trading lessin

Seasonality

The Company’s sales are moderately seasonal. tBribe sale of FCD, Landec Ag revenues and prafie concentrated over a
few months during the spring planting season (gdlyeduring the Company'’s third and fourth fiscalagters). In addition, the Food Products
Technology business can be heavily affected byosedsveather factors which have impacted quartedylts, such as high cost of sourcing
product due to a shortage of essential value-agdmtlice items. The Commodity Trading businesstgisically recognized a much higher
percentage of its revenues and profit during the fialf of Landec’s fiscal year compared to theosel half. Lifecore’s business is not
materially affected by seasonality.

Manufacturing and Processing
Food Products Technology Busint

The manufacturing process for the Company's prtgsieBreatheWay packagingroducts is comprised of polymer manufacturing,
membrane manufacturing and label package convergiahird party toll manufacturer currently makegually all of the polymers for the
BreatheWay packaging system. Select outside atintsacurrently manufacture the breathable memisrand Landec has transitioned
virtually all of the label package conversion toi&p Guadalupe facility to meet the increasing prtddemand and to provide additional
developmental capabilities.

Apio processes virtually all of its fresh-cut valagded products in its state-of-the-art proceskiniity located in Guadalupe,

California. Cooling of produce is done throughrdhparties and Apio Cooling LP, a separate conatdid subsidiary in which Apio has a 6!
ownership interest and is the general partner.
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Hyaluronar-based Biomaterials Business

The commercial production of hyaluronan by Lifecorquires fermentation, separation and purificatiapabilities. Products are
supplied in a variety of bulk and single dose ogunfations.

Lifecore produces its hyaluronan through a propriefermentation process. Until the introductiorlLdécore’s medical grade
hyaluronan, the only commercial source for medigaluronan was through a process of extraction froemster combs. Lifecore believes
the fermentation manufacturing approach is supésioooster comb extraction because of greatetieffcy and flexibility, a more favorable
long-term regulatory environment, and better ecaesrof scale in producing large commercial quagtiti

Lifecore’s 112,000 square foot facility in Chaskéinnesota is primarily used for the proprietary lkyanan manufacturing process,
formulation and aseptic syringe and bulk fillinfhe Company believes that the current inventorjhand, together with its manufacturing
capacity, will be sufficient to allow it to meettimeeds of its current customers for the foresedahire.

Lifecore provides versatility in the manufacturiofgvarious types of finished products. Currentlysupplies several different forms
of hyaluronan in a variety of molecular weight fians as powders, solutions and gels, and in &tyaof bulk and single-use finished
packages. Lifecore continues to conduct developmerk designed to improve production efficiencég®l expand its capabilities to achieve
a wider range of hyaluronan product specificationsrder to address the broadening opportunitiesi$ing hyaluronan in medical
applications.

The Company'’s facility was designed to meet appleaegulatory requirements and has been clearatiéananufacture of both
device and pharmaceutical products. The FDA paradlgf inspects the Company’s manufacturing systantrequires conformance to the
FDA's Quality Systems Regulations (“QSR”). In ailgh, Lifecore’s corporate partners conduct inteesjuality audits of the
facility. Lifecore also periodically contracts Wwindependent regulatory consultants to conducitsoélits operations. The Company
maintains a Quality System which assures conformémall applicable current standards (21 CFR820CBR210-211, ISO 13485:2003,
93/42/EEC, and Canadian Medical Device Regulati@®8). These approvals represent international sygrdf quality system assurance and
compliance with applicable European Medical DeWieectives, which greatly assist in the marketifidrifecore’s products in the European
Union.

Lifecore purchases raw materials for its productibhyaluronan-based products from outside vendbtsle these materials are
available from a variety of sources, the Comparyggpally uses limited sources for some of its kegterials to better monitor quality and
achieve cost efficiencies.

Technology Licensing Business

Landec performs its batch seed coating operativadeéased facility in Oxford, Indiana. This fagilis being used to coat other seed
companies’ inbred seed corn with the Company’sifattr Plus seed corn coatings.

Landec has a pilot manufacturing facility in Indéaio support process development, scale-up and eociatization of the
Company'’s seed coating programs. This facilitiiags a continuous coating process that has inetessed coating capabilities by over
tenfold compared to the previous system using betelers.

General

Several of the raw materials used in manufacturgrggain of the Company’s products are currentlychased from a single
source. Upon manufacturing scale-up of seed apatierations, the Company may enter into alteraatipply arrangements. Although to
date the Company has not experienced difficultyuaaty materials for the manufacture of its produceto assurance can be given that
interruptions in supplies will not occur in the du, that the Company will be able to obtain subivendors, or that the Company will be
able to procure comparable materials at similargsriand terms within a reasonable time. Any soihruption of supply could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s abilitynenufacture and distribute its products and, oquisietly, could materially and adversely
affect the Company’s business, operating resulisfiaancial condition.
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Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmentiress on both existing and new applications gbalymer
technologies. Expenditures for research and dpwetot for the fiscal years ended May 30, 2010, Blhy2009 and May 25, 2008 were $4.4
million, $3.7 million and $3.3 million, respectiyel Research and development expenditures fundedtpprate or governmental partners
were $0 for the fiscal year ended May 30, 20102%1®0 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 artB0O0 for the fiscal year ended May
25, 2008. The Company may continue to seek fumdagplied materials research programs from U.8egonent agencies as well as from
commercial entities. The Company anticipatesithaill continue to have significant research arevelopment expenditures in order to
maintain its competitive position with a continuifigw of innovative, highgquality products and services. As of May 30, 2Qkhdec had 4
employees engaged in research and developmenexpérience in polymer and analytical chemistrydpid application, product
formulation, mechanical and chemical engineering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitive anddig@volving fields, and new developments are etgubto continue at a rapid
pace. Competition from large food processors, pgickpcompanies, agricultural companies, medical@rarmaceutical companies is intel
In addition, the nature of the Company's collabeeadrrangements and its technology licensing lassimay result in its corporate partners
and licensees becoming competitors of the Compdayy of these competitors have substantially grefatancial and technical resources
and production and marketing capabilities thanGbenpany, and many have substantially greater esqpegiin conducting field trials,
obtaining regulatory approvals and manufacturing marketing commercial products. There can be sorasce that these competitors will
not succeed in developing alternative technologresproducts that are more effective, easier tousess expensive than those which have
been or are being developed by the Company omthald render the Company's technology and procalzsslete and non-competitive.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Company's success depends in large part ahility to obtain patents, maintain trade secretgxtion and operate without
infringing on the proprietary rights of third pasi The Company has had 37 U.S. patents issueliofi &7 remain active as of May 30, 2010
with expiration dates ranging from 2010 to 2023he T ompany's issued and pending patents includestalating to compositions, devices
and use of a class of temperature sensitive polythet exhibit distinctive properties of permeapjladhesion and viscosity control. There
can be no assurance that any of the pending papptitations will be approved, that the Company delvelop additional proprietary
products that are patentable, that any patentedssuthe Company will provide the Company with petitive advantages or will not be
challenged by any third parties or that the patefitthers will not prevent the commercializatidrpooducts incorporating the Company's
technology. Furthermore, there can be no assuthat®thers will not independently develop simpanducts, duplicate any of the
Company's products or design around the Compaatén{s. Any of the foregoing results could haveaderial adverse effect on the
Company's business, operating results and finanoiadition.

The commercial success of the Company will alseddpin part, on its ability to avoid infringingteats issued to others. The
Company has received, and may in the future rec&iom third parties, including some of its compats, notices claiming that it is infringii
third party patents or other proprietary rightsthe Company were determined to be infringing Hrisd-party patent, the Company could be
required to pay damages, alter its products orge®es, obtain licenses or cease certain activitiesldition, if patents are issued to others
which contain claims that compete or conflict witlose of the Company and such competing or comitjatlaims are ultimately determined
to be valid, the Company may be required to payadges, to obtain licenses to these patents, to algeelobtain alternative technology or to
cease using such technology. If the Company isiredjto obtain any licenses, there can be no assearthat the Company will be able to do
so on commercially favorable terms, if at all. T@mpany's failure to obtain a license to any tetdgothat it may require to commercialize
its products could have a material adverse impa¢he Company's business, operating results anddial condition.
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Litigation, which could result in substantial cogishe Company, may also be necessary to enforceatents issued or licensed to
the Company or to determine the scope and valddithird-party proprietary rights. If competitorsthe Company prepare and file patent
applications in the United States that claim tedbgywalso claimed by the Company, the Company nzaaehio participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@ffice to determine priority of invention, whiacwould result in substantial cost to and
diversion of effort by the Company, even if the mwal outcome is favorable to the Company. Any dilicfation or interference proceeding,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive anddomsuming and could subject the Company to siganfitiabilities to third parties, require
disputed rights to be licensed from third partiesegjuire the Company to cease using such techpelod consequently, could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's busimgssating results and financial condition.

In addition to patent protection, the Company addi@s on trade secrets, proprietary knlesw and technological advances which
Company seeks to protect, in part, by confidenyi@greements with its collaborators, employeesamdultants. There can be no assurance
that these agreements will not be breached, teaCtdmpany will have adequate remedies for any breadhat the Company's trade secrets
and proprietary know-how will not otherwise becokmewn or be independently discovered by others.

Government Regulation

Government regulation in the United States andratbentries is a significant factor in the markgtof certain of the Company’s
products and in the Company’s ongoing researchdamdlopment activities. Some of the Company’s potelare subject to extensive and
rigorous regulation by the FDA, which regulates safhthe products as medical devices and whichpime cases, requires Pre-Market
Approval (“PMA”), and by foreign countries, which regulate some efgioducts as medical devices or drugs. UndefFéderal Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), the FDA regulates timical testing, manufacturing, labeling, distriton, sale and promotion of medical
devices in the United States.

Following the enactment of the Medical Device Ammeahts of 1976 to the FDC Act, the FDA classifieddinal devices in
commercial distribution at the time of enactmempré-Amendment devices”) into one of three clasgelss |, Il or lll. This classification is
based on the controls necessary to reasonablyeatsisafety and effectiveness of medical devi€dass | devices are those whose safety
and effectiveness can reasonably be assured thgmrgdral controls, such as establishment registraind labeling, and adherence to FDA-
mandated current QSR requirements for devices.t Miass | devices are exempt from FDA premarkeiergybut some require premarket
notification (“510(k) Natification”). Class Il deges are those whose safety and effectivenesseaomably be assured through the use of
special controls, such as performance standardgmnaoket surveillance, patient registries and FDideglines. Class Il devices are devices
that require a PMA from the FDA to assure theiesafind effectiveness. A PMA ordinarily must camt@ata from a multi-center clinical
study demonstrating the device’s safety and effengss for the intended use and patient populatidass 11l devices are generally life-
sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devicasd also include most devices that were not omihikket before May 28, 1976 (“new
devices”) and for which the FDA has not made aifigabf substantial equivalence based upon a 52¢kification. A pre-Amendment
Class Il device does not require a PMA unlessamd the FDA issues a regulation requiring submis®f a PMA application for the devic

The FDA requires clinical data for a PMA applicatiand has the authority to require such data fkG{k) Notification. If clinical
data are necessary, the company that sponsortutheraust follow the FDA's Investigational Devicadinption (“IDE”) regulations
governing the conduct of human studies. The FDéduilations require institutional review board apyad of the study and the informed
consent of the study subjects. In addition, ftsignificant risk” device, the FDA must approve an IDE applicatiorobethe study can begi
Non-significant risk devices do not require FDA appabef an IDE application, and are conducted under‘abbreviated IDE”
requirements. Once in effect, an IDE or abbredidiE permits evaluation of devices under contbltténical conditions. After a clinical
evaluation process, the resulting data may be deciun a PMA application or a 510(k) Notificatiomhe PMA may be approved or the 510
(k) Notification may be cleared by the FDA onlyeaft review process that may include FDA requestadditional data, sometimes requir
further studies.
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If a manufacturer or distributor of medical devicas establish to the FDA's satisfaction throudii@(k) Notification that a new
device is substantially equivalent to what is achbe‘predicate device,” i.e., a legally marketed<sl| or Class Il medical device or a legally
marketed pre-Amendment Class Il device for whioh EDA has not required a PMA, the manufacturatisiributor may market the new
device. In the 510(k) Notification, a manufactuoerdistributor makes a claim of substantial egigmee, which the FDA may require to be
supported by various types of information, inclugatata from clinical studies, showing that the rewice is as safe and effective for its
intended use as the predicate device.

Following submission of the 510(k) Notificationgtinanufacturer or distributor may not place the dewice into commercial
distribution until the FDA issues a “substantialeglence” determination finding the new devicd®substantially equivalent to a predicate
device. The FDA has a 90 day period in which spomd to a 510(k) Natification; (30 days for a Spe810(k)). Depending on the specific
submission and subsequent agency information régjube 510(k) Notification process can take sigaiitly longer to complete. The FDA
may agree with the manufacturer or distributor thatnew device is substantially equivalent toedjmate device and allow the new device to
be marketed in the United States. The FDA may,dwan determine that the new device is not sulisthnéquivalent and require the
manufacturer or distributor to submit a PMA or riegdurther information, such as additional tediadéncluding data from clinical studies,
before it is able to make a determination regardingstantial equivalence. Although the PMA prodssignificantly more complex, time-
consuming and expensive than the 510(k) Notificaficocess, the latter process can also be expemsi/substantially delay the market
introduction of a product. Modifications to a deithat is marketed under a 510(k) Notification migequire submission of a new 510(k)
prior to their implementation, although some magdifions can be made through a “note to file” procedlescribed in FDA guidance.

For devices that cannot be found “substantiallyivejent” to a predicate device, the manufacturesinsubmit a PMA application,
petition for reclassification, or submit a PMA ajgption via the de novo process. A PMA must cantaformation on the materials and
manufacturing process for the device, results etlprical testing, clinical data, and labeling foe device. The FDA has 180 days to revit
PMA application, but may request additional infotima, which could include additional studies. THRA might refer a PMA to an advisory
committee of outside experts to review and makenmsuendation on whether a device should be approéer considering the data in the
PMA application and the recommendations of an adyisommittee, the FDA can approve the device, @agpthe device with conditions or
refuse approval. Devices approved by the FDA abgest to periodic reporting requirements, and f@pubject to restrictions on sale,
distribution or use.

Hyaluronan products are generally Class Ill devidescases where the Company is supplying hyahmdao a corporate partner as a
raw material or producing a finished product uraéicense for the partner, the corporate partnéwiresponsible for obtaining the
appropriate FDA clearance or approval. Exporhef€ompany’s hyaluronan products generally req@pgsoval of the importing country
and compliance with the export provisions of theCFBct.

Other regulatory requirements are placed on theufaature, processing, packaging, labeling, distriloy recordkeeping and
reporting of a medical device and on the qualitytoal procedures, such as the FDA'’s device QSRlagigns. Manufacturing facilities are
subject to periodic inspections by the FDA to assuampliance with device QSR requirements. Lifeofacility is subject to inspections as
both a device and a drug manufacturing operatieor. PMA devices, the Company is required to sulamiannual report and to obtain
approval of a PMA supplement for modificationshe tlevice or its labeling. Other applicable FD4uieements include the medical device
reporting (“MDR”) regulation, which requires th&iet Company provide information to the FDA regardilegiths or serious injuries alleged to
have been associated with the use of its devisasel as product malfunctions that would likelyisa or contribute to death or serious injury
if the malfunction were to recur. The FDA alsouigs reporting regarding notices of correction #relremoval of a medical device.

If the Company is not in compliance with FDA requirents, the FDA or the federal government can axdecall, detain the
Company’s devices, refuse to grant 510(k) Notifaatlearances or PMA approvals, withdraw or lipribduct approvals, institute
proceedings to seize the Company’s devices, s@akdiions to control or prohibit marketing and satdé the Company’s devices, assess civil
money penalties and impose criminal sanctions ag#tie Company, its officers or its employees.
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There can be no assurance that any of the Compelyisal studies will show safety or effectivengst 510(k) Notifications or
PMA applications or supplemental applications Wwél submitted or, if submitted, accepted for filitigat any of the Company’s products that
require clearance of a 510(k) Notification or apioof a PMA application or PMA supplement will @bt such clearance or approval on a
timely basis, on terms acceptable to the Companthiopurpose of actually marketing the produatatall; or that following any such
clearance or approval previously unknown probleritlsn@t result in restrictions on the marketingtbé products or withdrawal of clearance
or approval.

Product Liability

Product liability claims may be asserted with respe the Company’s products. The Company maistpimduct liability insurance
coverage in amounts the Company deems to be adedumre can be no assurance that the Compankgavidl sufficient resources to satisfy
product claims if they exceed available insurarmescage.

Employees

As of May 30, 2010, Landec had 229 full-time emjgley, of whom 158 were dedicated to research, dawelnt, manufacturing,
quality control and regulatory affairs and 71 weeglicated to sales, marketing and administratitigiies. Landec intends to recruit
additional personnel in connection with the develept, manufacturing and marketing of its produéiene of Landec's employees is
represented by a union, and Landec believes atioakhip with its employees is good.

Available Information

Landecs Web site is http://www.landec.com. Landec makeslable free of charge its annual, quarterly emdent reports, and al
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasgabticable after electronically filing such repovtith the SEC. Information contained on
our website is not part of this Report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Landec desires to take advantage of the “Safe Happovisions of the Private Securities Litigati®eform Act of 1995 and of
Section 21E and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities &xgh Act of 1934. Specifically, Landec wisheslartaeaders that the following
important factors could in the future affect, andhe past have affected, Landec’s actual resnliscauld cause Landec’s results for future
periods to differ materially from those expressedny forward-looking statements made by or on belidandec. Landec assumes no
obligation to update such forward-looking stateraent

The Global Economy is Currently Undergoing a Periad Slowdown and Unprecedented Volatility, Which M&lave an Adverse Effect on
Our Business

The U.S. and international economy and financialketa have experienced significant slowdown anatidl due to uncertainties
related to the availability of credit, energy pggdifficulties in the banking and financial semgcsectors, softness in the housing market,
severely diminished market liquidity, geopoliticainflicts, falling consumer confidence and risimgemployment rates. This slowdown has
and could further lead to reduced demand for oodyets, which in turn, would reduce our revenuabsadversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.pérticular, the slowdown and volatility in the gidlmarkets have resulted in softer demand
and more conservative purchasing decisions by mestg including a tendency toward lower-priced pictd, which could negatively impact
our revenues, gross margins and results of opesatitn addition to a reduction in sales, our padiility may decrease during downturns
because we may not be able to reduce costs atithe te as our sales decline. These slowdowrexpeeted to worsen if current economic
conditions are prolonged or deteriorate further.d&fienot predict the ultimate severity or lengthhaf current economic crisis, or the timing
severity of future economic or industry downturns.
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Given the current unfavorable economic environmeumt,customers may have difficulties obtaining talmt adequate or historical
levels to finance their ongoing business and ofm@rstwhich could impair their ability to make timg@ayments to us. This may result in
lower sales and/or additional inventory or bad detptense for Landec. In addition to the impadhefeconomic downturn on our customers,
some of our vendors and growers may experienceéuetien in their availability of funds and cashvile, which could negatively impact their
business as well as ours. A continuing or deegeddawnturn of the U.S. economy, including increaseldtility in the credit markets, could
adversely impact our customers’ and vendahslity or willingness to conduct business withamsthe same terms or at the same levels as
have historically.

We are unable to predict the likely duration aneesigy of the current disruption in the financiahrikets and adverse economic
conditions in the U.S. and other countries and suctditions, if they persist or worsen, will furthedversely impact our business, operating
results, and financial condition. Further, thegeditions and uncertainty about future economiaditions make it challenging for Landec to
forecast its operating results, make business idesisand identify the risks that may affect itsimess, sources and use of cash, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decline

In the past, our results of operations have fluetigignificantly from quarter to quarter and axpexted to continue to fluctuate in
the future. Historically, Landec Ag has been thienpry source of these fluctuations, as its reverare profits were concentrated over a few
months during the spring planting season (genedaliing our third and fourth fiscal quarters). alddition, Apio can be heavily affected by
seasonal and weather factors which have impactadagly results due to a shortage of essentialkevatided produce items. Our earnings
may also fluctuate based on our ability to colemtounts receivables from customers and note reoleiy from growers and on price
fluctuations in the fresh vegetables and fruitskats. Other factors that affect our operationuithe:

the seasonality of our supplies,

our ability to process produce during critical hest/periods,

the timing and effects of ripening,

the degree of perishability,

the effectiveness of worldwide distribution systems

total worldwide industry volumes,

the seasonality of consumer demand,

foreign currency fluctuations, and

foreign importation restrictions and foreign paléi risks.

As a result of these and other factors, we exmecbihtinue to experience fluctuations in quarteggrating results.

Uncertainty Relating To Integration Of Lifecore An@®ther New Business Acquisitions.

The Company's acquisition of Lifecore involves ittegration of Lifecore's operations into the CompaThe integration will
require the dedication of management resourcesdier o achieve the anticipated operating efficienof the acquisition. No assurance can
be given that any difficulties encountered in imgging the operations of Lifecore into the Comparily be overcome or that the benefits
expected from such integration will be realizedhe Tifficulties in combining Lifecore and the Comy& operations are exacerbated by the
necessity of coordinating geographically separegarmizations, integrating personnel with dispahlatsiness backgrounds and combining
different corporate cultures. The process of iragg operations could cause an interruption pfoss of momentum in, the activities of the
combined company's business. Difficulties encawtter additional costs incurred in connection tfith acquisition and the integration of

the operations of Lifecore and the Company couiceleamaterial adverse effect on the business,tsestibperations and financial condition
of the Company.
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The successful integration of any other new busiesjuisitions may require substantial effort frive Company's
management. The diversion of the attention of gament and any difficulties encountered in thediteon process could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's ability to redlweeanticipated benefits of the acquisitions. $hecessful combination of new businesses
also requires coordination of research and devedopmctivities, manufacturing, and sales and margetfforts. In addition, the process of
combining organizations could cause the interruptify or a loss of momentum in, the Company's d&s: There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to retain key managentenhnical, sales and customer support personntiabthe Company will realize the
anticipated benefits of any acquisitions, and #ikeife to do so would have a material adverse effieche Company's business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Nergducts in the Marketplace

Our success in generating significant sales ofpooducts will depend in part on the ability of uslaour partners and licensees to
achieve market acceptance of our new productseaiihblogy. The extent to which, and rate at whigh achieve market acceptance and
penetration of our current and future productsfisngtion of many variables including, but not lted to:

price,

safety,

efficacy,

reliability,

conversion cost:

marketing and sales efforts, a

general economic conditions affecting purchasirttepas.

We may not be able to develop and introduce newymis and technologies in a timely manner or newdycts and technologies
may not gain market acceptance. We are in thg state of product commercialization of certairelimer-based specialty packaging,
Intellicoat seed coatings, HBased products and other Intelimer polymer prodaictsmany of our potential products are in develepm We
believe that our future growth will depend in laggget on our ability to develop and market new pigid in our target markets and in new
markets. In particular, we expect that our abilitycompete effectively with existing food prodyasgricultural, industrial, medical and
pharmaceutical companies will depend substant@ailguccessfully developing, commercializing, acimg\market acceptance of and
reducing the cost of producing our products. Iditah, commercial applications of our temperatsmétch polymer technology are relatively
new and evolving. Our failure to develop new pratdior the failure of our new products to achieakat acceptance would have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of op@stod financial condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketplace

Competitors may succeed in developing alternatearologies and products that are more effectagieeto use or less expensive
than those which have been or are being developed br that would render our technology and prtslobsolete and non-competitive. We
operate in highly competitive and rapidly evolviiigjds, and new developments are expected to asmt a rapid pace. Competition from
large food products, agricultural, industrial, mediand pharmaceutical companies is expected totbese. In addition, the nature of our
collaborative arrangements may result in our capopartners and licensees becoming our competiMdany of these competitors have
substantially greater financial and technical resesiand production and marketing capabilities thamo, and may have substantially gre
experience in conducting clinical and field triadgtaining regulatory approvals and manufacturing marketing commercial products.
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We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing in One Lation for Apio and Lifecore and May Have to Depewnd Third Parties to
Manufacture Our Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturing opératat Apio’s facility in Guadalupe, California tifecore’s facility in Chaska,
Minnesota would reduce our ability to sell our prots and would have a material adverse effect offilvancial results. Additionally, we
may need to consider seeking collaborative arraegésrwith other companies to manufacture our prizdulé we become dependent upon
third parties for the manufacture of our produots, profit margins and our ability to develop arediker those products on a timely basis may
be adversely affected. Failures by third partiey impair our ability to deliver products on a tigpnbasis and impair our competitive
position. We may not be able to continue to susfodly operate our manufacturing operations at ptatgle costs, with acceptable yields, and
retain adequately trained personnel.

Our Dependence on Single-Source Suppliers and Saxr\Rroviders May Cause Disruption in Our Operatio8sould Any Supplier Fail to
Deliver Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring materialsservices for the manufacture of our products onvag not be able to obtain
substitute vendors. We may not be able to procongparable materials at similar prices and terntkima reasonable time. Several serv
that are provided to Apio are obtained from a gmglvider. Several of the raw materials we useaoufacture our products are currently
purchased from a single source, including some mmeme used to synthesize Intelimer polymers, sutestnaterials for our breathable
membrane products and raw materials for our HA pectsl  Any interruption of our relationship witingle-source suppliers or service
providers could delay product shipments and mdbgtiarm our business.

We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties, inclgdgome of our competitors, claiming infringementday products of patent and
other proprietary rights. Regardless of their mmegsponding to any such claim could be time-carieg, result in costly litigation and
require us to enter royalty and licensing agreemetich may not be offered or available on termeeptable to us. If a successful claim is
made against us and we fail to develop or licensgbatitute technology, we could be required terajur products or processes and our
business, results of operations or financial pasitould be materially adversely affected. Ouicess depends in large part on our ability to
obtain patents, maintain trade secret protectiahogrerate without infringing on the proprietaryhtg of third parties. Any pending patent
applications we file may not be approved and we n@tybe able to develop additional proprietary picid that are patentable. Any patents
issued to us may not provide us with competitiveaadiages or may be challenged by third partieser®Paheld by others may prevent the
commercialization of products incorporating ouhteslogy. Furthermore, others may independenthetigvsimilar products, duplicate our
products or design around our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Datly Impact Our Business

Our products and operations are subject to govantaheegulation in the United States and foreigantdes. The manufacture of
our products is subject to periodic inspection éyulatory authorities. We may not be able to obitgicessary regulatory approvals on a
timely basis or at all. Delays in receipt of oitfee to receive approvals or loss of previouslyeiged approvals would have a material ady
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. Although we have no reasdoei@ve that we will not be able to comply
with all applicable regulations regarding the matiire and sale of our products and polymer méderiegulations are always subject to
change and depend heavily on administrative iné¢ations and the country in which the productssaid. Future changes in regulations or
interpretations relating to matters such as safi&iwg conditions, laboratory and manufacturing ficss, environmental controls, and
disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardoustanbes may adversely affect our business.
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We are subject to FDA rules and regulations coringrthe safety of the food products handled and bglApio, and the facilities in
which they are packed and processed. Failurertgplyowith the applicable regulatory requirements,@mong other things, result in:

fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensij

withdrawal of regulatory approval

product recalls and product seizures, includingagsn of manufacturing and sal
operating restrictions, ar

criminal prosecution

We may be required to incur significant costs tmpty with the laws and regulations in the futuredetthmay have a material adve
effect on our business, operating results and &i@dcondition.

Our food packaging products are subject to reqaiatinder the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the “FAXE). Under the FDC Act,
any substance that when used as intended may eddgdie expected to become, directly or indireclgomponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated a®d &dditive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. We believe that food
packaging materials are generally not considered &ditives by the FDA because these producteatrexpected to become components of
food under their expected conditions of use. Wesizter our breathable membrane product to be agaokiaging material not subject to
regulation or approval by the FDA. We have notereed any communication from the FDA concerning lm@athable membrane product. If
the FDA were to determine that our breathable mamibproducts are food additives, we may be requiredbmit a food additive petition
for approval by the FDA. The food additive petitiprocess is lengthy, expensive and uncertainetarchination by the FDA that a food
additive petition is necessary would have a mdtadaerse effect on our business, operating reanltisfinancial condition.

Our agricultural operations are subject to a vargtenvironmental laws including, the Food Quaktptection Act of 1966, the
Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resourca$govation and Recovery Act, the Federal Insedjdidingicide and Rodenticide Act, ¢
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act. Compliance with these laasd related regulations is an
ongoing process. Environmental concerns are, heky@herent in most agricultural operations, idahg those we conduct. Moreover, it is
possible that future developments, such as inarghsstrict environmental laws and enforcementge$i could result in increased complia
costs.

Our Food Products Technology business is subjetiet@erishable Agricultural Commodities Act (“PAGAaw. PACA regulates
fair trade standards in the fresh produce indumtigy governs all the products sold by Apio. Ouufaito comply with the PACA
requirements could among other things, resultvii penalties, suspension or revocation of a liegtossell produce, and in the most egreg
cases, criminal prosecution, which could have anwtadverse effect on our business.

Lifecore’s existing products and its products under devetayrare considered to be medical devices and,ftrereequire clearant
or approval by the FDA before commercial saleslmmmade in the United States. The products atpgneethe approval of foreign
government agencies before sales may be made in otlaer countries. The process of obtaining tleds@rances or approvals varies
according to the nature and use of the produatartinvolve lengthy and detailed laboratory ancichl testing, sampling activities and other
costly and time-consuming procedures. There camohessurance that any of the required cleararcaspoovals will be granted on a timely
basis, if at all.

In addition, most of the existing products beintfiday Lifecore and its customers are subject tdioaed regulation by the FDA,
various state agencies and foreign regulatory agenehich regulate manufacturing, labeling and ré¢@eping procedures for such
products. Marketing clearances or approvals bgelagencies can be withdrawn due to failure to ¢pmiph regulatory standards or the
occurrence of unforeseen problems following initigarance or approval. These agencies can ai#iooli prevent the manufacture or
distribution of the Lifecore’s products. A detemaiion that Lifecore is in violation of such regdigas could lead to the imposition of civil
penalties, including fines, product recalls or pretdseizures, injunctions, and, in extreme cagésjral sanctions.
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Federal, state and local regulations impose vamowsronmental controls on the use, storage, diggher disposal of toxic, volatile
or otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases usedna of the manufacturing processes. Our faim@htrol the use of, or to restrict
adequately the discharge of, hazardous substandes present or future regulations could subjetbisibstantial liability or could cause our
manufacturing operations to be suspended and changavironmental regulations may impose the rieeddditional capital equipment or
other requirements.

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyMzause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfmréases in Our Cosl

Our Food Products Technology business is subjegetther conditions that affect commodity pricespgyields, and decisions by
growers regarding crops to be planted. Crop déeseasd severe conditions, particularly weather itimmd such as floods, droughts, frosts,
windstorms, earthquakes and hurricanes, may adyaect the supply of vegetables and fruits uisedur business, which could reduce the
sales volumes and/or increase the unit productistsc Because a significant portion of the costdiaed and contracted in advance of each
operating year, volume declines due to productib@riuptions or other factors could result in ims®es in unit production costs which could
result in substantial losses and weaken our firzdieoindition.

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses foture Development

Our strategy for development, clinical and fieldtieg, manufacture, commercialization and marketongsome of our current and
future products includes entering into variousadirations with corporate partners, licensees #met@ We are dependent on our corporate
partners to develop, test, manufacture and/or markae of our products. Although we believe thatmartners in these collaborations have
an economic motivation to succeed in performingrtbentractual responsibilities, the amount andrigyof resources to be devoted to these
activities are not within our control. Our partaenay not perform their obligations as expected@may not derive any additional revenue
from the arrangements. Our partners may not pgyadditional option or license fees to us or maydevelop, market or pay any royalty f
related to products under the agreements. Moreswate of the collaborative agreements providettiegt may be terminated at the
discretion of the corporate partner, and some @ttilaborative agreements provide for terminatinder other circumstances. Our partners
may pursue existing or alternative technologiegraference to our technology. Furthermore, we naybe able to negotiate additional
collaborative arrangements in the future on acddgtirms, if at all, and our collaborative arramgats may not be successful.
Our International Operations and Sales May ExposeiCBusiness to Additional Risks

For fiscal year 2010, approximately 29% of our toé@enues were derived from product sales to fiatgonal customers. A number
of risks are inherent in international transactiolrgernational sales and operations may be lonitedisrupted by any of the following:

regulatory approval proces

government controls

export license requiremen

political instability,

price controls

trade restrictions

changes in tariffs, ¢

difficulties in staffing and managing internatiormgderations

Foreign regulatory agencies have or may estabhistiyet standards different from those in the Uni¢akes, and any inability to
obtain foreign regulatory approvals on a timelyibasuld have a material adverse effect on ournatgonal business, and our financial
condition and results of operations. While ouefgn sales are currently priced in dollars, flutitaugs in currency exchange rates may reduce

the demand for our products by increasing the pfaaur products in the currency of the countrsvhich the products are sold. Regulat
geopolitical and other factors may adversely impactoperations in the future or require us to rfyodur current business practices.
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Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Customé&tay Adversely Affect Our Business

During fiscal year 2010, sales to our top five oustrs accounted for approximately 48% of our reesnwith our largest customer,
Costco Wholesale Corporation, accounting for apipnately 20% of our revenues. We expect that, Herforeseeable future, a limited
number of customers may continue to account farbstsintial portion of our net revenues. We mayeerpce changes in the composition of
our customer base as we have experienced in the Pplas reduction, delay or cancellation of ordessn one or more major customers for
any reason or the loss of one or more of our najstomers could materially and adversely affectbusiness, operating results and financial
condition. In addition, since some of the prodymtscessed by Apio at its Guadalupe, Californidifgand by Lifecore at its Chaska,
Minnesota facility are sole sourced to customeus,operating results could be adversely affectesh&@ or more of our major customers were
to develop other sources of supply. Our currestamers may not continue to place orders, ordeexisting customers may be canceled or
may not continue at the levels of previous perimdee may not be able to obtain orders from neviaruers.
Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our ExpostoeéProduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and salhefproducts we develop involve an inherent risklt#fgations of product
liability. If any of our products were determinedalleged to be contaminated or defective or tel@used a harmful accident to an end-
customer, we could incur substantial costs in redjmm to complaints or litigation regarding our guats and our product brand image could
be materially damaged. Either event may have anahtidverse effect on our business, operatingteeand financial condition. Although
we have taken and intend to continue to take wieab&lieve are appropriate precautions to minimigmsure to product liability claims, we
may not be able to avoid significant liability. \Werrently maintain product liability insurance. hil¢ we believe the coverage and limits are
consistent with industry standards, our coveragg med be adequate or may not continue to be avaiktban acceptable cost, if at all. A
product liability claim, product recall or otheaah with respect to uninsured liabilities or in exs of insured liabilities could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resudtsiaancial condition.
Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions

The following events may cause the market priceusfcommon stock to fluctuate significantly:

technological innovations applicable to our prody

our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestomeshe commercialization of our technolog

our development of new products or the developraénew products by our competito

new patents or changes in existing patents appdi¢atour products

our acquisition of new businesses or the salespadial of a part of our business

development of new collaborative arrangements bypuiscompetitors or other partie

changes in government regulations applicable tdasmess

changes in investor perception of our busin

fluctuations in our operating results, &

changes in the general market conditions in ounstr.

These broad fluctuations may adslgraffect the market price of our common stock.
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We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims @adts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bimess

We have been subject in the past, and may be ifuthee, to claims by employees based on allegatigrdiscrimination, negligenc
harassment and inadvertent employment of illegahalor unlicensed personnel, and we may be sulojgietyment of workers' compensation
claims and other similar claims. We could incupstantial costs and our management could sperghdisant amount of time responding to
such complaints or litigation regarding employesrak, which may have a material adverse effectusrbasiness, operating results and
financial condition.

We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if Onéare of Them Were to Leave, We Could ExperiencéfiDulties in Replacing
Them and Our Operating Results Could Suffer

The success of our business depends to a sigrtisient upon the continued service and performahegrelatively small number
of key senior management, technical, sales, andetiag personnel. The loss of any of our key pemsebwould likely harm our business. In
addition, competition for senior level personnelhninowledge and experience in our different lioebusiness is intense. If any of our key
personnel were to leave, we would need to devdistantial resources and management attention laceephem. As a result, management
attention may be diverted from managing our businesd we may need to pay higher compensatiorptaae these employees.

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Rigithat Could Affect Your Rights

Our Board of Directors has the authority, withaurtfier approval of our stockholders, to fix thehtgyand preferences, and to issue
shares, of preferred stock. In November 1999,ssedd and sold shares of Series A Convertible PPeefStock and in October 2001 we
issued and sold shares of Series B ConvertibleeResf Stock. The Series A Convertible PreferredlSwas converted into 1,666,670 shares
of Common Stock in November 2002 and the Serie®BvErtible Preferred Stock was converted into 1,732 shares of Common Stock in
May 2004.

The issuance of new shares of preferred stock duaié the effect of making it more difficult fotfsird party to acquire a majority
of our outstanding stock, and the holders of suelfigpred stock could have voting, dividend, liquida and other rights superior to those of
holders of our Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common 8toc

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ComntockSince inception and do not expect to do gbénforeseeable future. Any
dividends may be subject to preferential dividepagable on any preferred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially and Adverseliffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valud Goodwill is Higher than Fair
Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount designatepgadwill” that represents a portion of our assatsl our stockholders’
equity. Goodwill arises when an acquirer pays nfiore business than the fair value of the tanggld separately measurable intangible net
assets. In accordance with accounting guidaneeaitortization of goodwill has been replaced witHimpairment test” which requires that
we compare the fair value of goodwill to its boakue at least annually and more frequently if ginstances indicate a possible
impairment. If we determine at any time in theufetthat the book value of goodwill is higher thaim value then the difference must be
written-off, which could materially and adversef§eat our profitability.

1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

As of May 30, 2010, the Company owned or lease@gt@s in Menlo Park, Arroyo Grande and Guadal@adifornia; West

Lebanon and Oxford, Indiana and Chaska, Minnesota.

These properties are described below:

Acres
Business of Lease
Location Segmen Ownershig Facilities Land Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Technology Licensin Leasec 14,600 square feet of office and laboratory sj — 12/31/14
Chaska, MN Hyaluronan-based Owned 112,000 square feet of office, laboratory and 27.5 —
Biomaterials manufacturing spac
West Lebanon, IN Technology Licensing Owned 4,000 square feet of warehouse and manufacturing — —
space
Oxford, IN Technology Licensing Leased 13,400 square feet of laboratory and manufaajurin — 6/30/11
space
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Technology Owned 199,000 square feet of office space, manufagurin 17.7 —
and cold storage
Arroyo Grande, C/ Commodity Trading Leased 1,100 square feet of office space — 6/30/11

The obligations of the Company under its credieagrent with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. are secured ligreon the Chaska, MN land and

building.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in litigation arising irethormal course of business. The Company is cilyreat a party to any legal
proceedings which management believes could ristite payment of any amounts that would be sigaift to the business or financial

condition of the Company.

Item 4. [Removed and Reserved]
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Skimlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

The Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globaé&dWarket under the symbol “LNDC”. The followitable sets forth for
each period indicated the high and low sales pfimeghe Common Stock.

Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 20 High Low
4t Quarter ending May 30, 2010 $ 745 % 5.5C
3" Quarter ending February 28, 2010 $ 6.6 $ 5.81
2 ndQuarter ending November 29, 2009 $ 7.0 % 6.0C
1 *'Quarter ending August 30, 2009 $ 717 $ 5.9¢
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 20 High Low
4t Quarter ending May 31, 2009 $ 7.0C % 3.87
3" Quarter ending March 1, 2009 $ 7.3¢ $ 4.7¢
2 " Quarter ending November 30, 2008 $ 9.6¢ $ 5.81
1 *'Quarter ending August 31, 2008 $ 9.9 % 6.3
Holders

There were approximately 72 holders of record Q5@®,778 shares of outstanding Common Stock aglp®0, 2010. Since certain
holders are listed under their brokerage firm’s aanthe actual number of stockholders is higher.

Dividends

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Camftock since its inception. The Company presentbnds to retain all
future earnings, if any, for its business and do®santicipate paying cash dividends on its Comi@totk in the foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no shares repurchased by the Compamgdhbe fiscal quarter ended on May 30, 2010.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The information set forth below is not necessadriljicative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with
the information contained in Iltem 7 — “Managemeimiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @iolased Financial Statements contained in Itenf #Bis report.

Year Year Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
May 30, May 31, May 25, May 27, May 28,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Statement of Income Dat
(in thousands
Revenues
Product sale $ 22839 $ 22440 $ 22755( $ 201,89 $ 225,40:
Service revenue 3,69¢ 4,14¢ 3,64( 3,53¢ 3,72¢
License fee: 5,40( 6,00( 6,231 4,01 2,39¢
R&D and royalty revenues 73E 1,38¢ 1,10¢€ 1,054 42€
Total revenue 238,22: 235,93 238,52 210,49¢ 231,95!
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale 201,46¢ 198,36¢ 197,28t 175,25: 188,90«
Cost of service revenue 2,997 3,28¢ 3,011 2,86( 3,00¢
Total cost of revenu 204,45¢ 201,65¢ 200,29¢ 178,11: 191,90¢
Gross profit 33,76¢ 34,28( 38,22¢ 32,38t 40,04+
Operating costs and expens
Research and developm 4,361 3,66¢ 3,251 3,07¢ 3,04z
Selling, general and administrati 17,69¢ 18,011 19,80: 21,61¢ 27,97¢
Income from sale of FCD — — — (22,669 —
Total operating costs and expen 22,05¢ 21,68: 23,052 2,021 31,02:
Operating profit 11,70° 12,59¢ 15,17¢ 30,36 9,02:
Interest incomt 834 1,30¢ 2,21¢ 1,94¢ 633
Interest expens (88) (8) (22 (257) (452)
Other expenses (3,725 — — — —
Net income before taxe 8,72¢ 13,89¢ 17,37: 32,05¢ 9,20¢
Income tax expense (4,262) (5,617 (3,359 (2,456 —
Consolidated net incon 4,46¢ 8,28¢ 14,01¢ $ 29,60t 9,20¢
Non controlling interes (482) (55%) (477) (414 (559)

Net income applicable to Common Stockholc  $ 3,98¢ $ 7,73C $ 1354: $ 29,18¢ $ 8,651

Basic net income per share $ 0.1t $ 03C $ 05z $ 1.1€¢ $ 0.3
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5C $ 1.07 $ 0.34
Shares used in per share computal

Basic 26,38: 26,20: 26,06¢ 25,26( 24,55!
Diluted 26,63 26,75 26,93t 26,55¢ 25,657




May 30, May 31, May 25, May 27, May 28,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Balance Sheet Dat

(in thousands

Cash and cash equivalel $ 27817 $ 4345¢ $§ 4439 $ 62,55¢ $  15,16¢
Total asset 200,19 153,49t 149,95 141,36¢ 119,02!
Debt 23,77( — — — 2,01¢
Retained earnings (defic 13,20¢ 9,22 1,492 (19,337 (41,239
Total stockholder equity $ 130,78 $ 12540t $ 114,46¢ $ 110,22¢ $ 85,04¢

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Companyg Consolidated Financial Statements containedcen B of
this report. Except for the historical informatioontained herein, the matters discussed in thisrtere forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exghakct of 1934. These forward-looking statememt®ive certain risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ matgrifbm those in the forward-looking statementstetal risks and uncertainties include,
without limitation, those mentioned in this repand, in particular, the factors described in Itefn "Risk Factors.” Landec undertakes no
obligation to revise any forward-looking statementsrder to reflect events or circumstances thay arise after the date of this report.

Overview

Since its inception in October 1986, the Compars/been engaged in the research and developmeatlofalimer technology and

related products. The Company has launched fadyat lines from this core development — Quick(f"%\splints and casts, in April 1994,
which was subsequently sold to Bissell HealthcasgpGration in August 1997; BreatheWay packagingietogy for the fresttut and whole
produce packaging market, in September 1995; im&liPolymer Systems that includes polymer matefdalsarious industrial applications
in June 1997 and for personal care applicatioMéoivember 2003; and Intellicoat coated corn seedsar-all of 1999. In addition, on April
30, 2010, the Company acquired Lifecore which dgp®land manufactures products utilizing hyaluromamaturally occurring
polysaccharide that is widely distributed in thérasellar matrix of connective tissues in both aalsrand humans.

With the acquisition of Lifecore, Landec has foarebusinesses — Food Products Technology, Comynbugitling, Hyaluronan-
based Biomaterials and Technology Licensing. TéwedAProducts Technology segment combines the Coytgphrtelimer packaging
technology with Apio’s fresh-cut and whole prodiesiness. The Commaodity Trading business is opeéitatrough Apio and combines
Apio’s Cal-Ex export company with Apio’s domestigybsell commodity business that purchases andwhlide fruit and vegetable products
to Asia and domestically. The Hyaluronan-basediterials business sells products utilizing hyataroin the ophthalmic, orthopedic and
veterinary segments and also supplies hyaluronandtomers pursuing other medical applicationsh sigcaesthetic surgery, medical device
coatings, tissue engineering and pharmaceutichks. TEchnology Licensing business includes our jpetgy Intellicoat seed coating
technology in which certain fields of applicatioave been licensed to Monsanto and our Intelimerrpet business that licenses and/or
supplies products to companies such as Air ProduadsNitta. See "Business - Description of CorsiBess".

From inception through May 30, 2010, the Compamngtained earnings were $13.2 million. The Compaay incur losses in the

future. The amount of future net profits, if amyuncertain and there can be no assurance th@dmmpany will be able to sustain profitabil
in future years.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to
make certain estimates and judgments that affecatimounts reported in the financial statementssandmpanying notes. The accounting
estimates that require management’s most significifficult and subjective judgments include reuerrecognition; sales returns and
allowances; recognition and measurement of cuamdtdeferred income tax assets and liabilitiesasessment of recoverability of long-
lived assets; the valuation of intangible assetkiaventory; the valuation and nature of impairnsesttinvestments; and the valuation and
recognition of stock-based compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxijaletors and require management to make judgmé&hesanalysis of historical
and future trends, can require extended periodisnefto resolve, and are subject to change frorogéeo period. The actual results may di
from management’s estimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®ior estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make
required payments. The allowance for doubtful aot®is based on review of the overall conditiomodounts receivable balances and re\
of significant past due accounts. If the financiahdition of the Company’s customers were to detate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances rbayequired. Bad debt losses are partially miédatue to the fact that the Company’s
customers are predominantly large financially laskmnational and international companies.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etaik the cost of the inventories exceeds thejreeted market value, provisions are
recorded currently for the difference between th&t and the market value. These provisions arerdated based on specific identification
for unusable inventory and an additional reserasel on historical losses, for inventory currentigsidered to be usable.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from product sales is recognized when ihgqrersuasive evidence that an arrangement edigigsery has occurred, title
has transferred, the price is fixed and determiedoid collectibility is reasonably assured. Allow@s are established for estimated
uncollectible amounts, product returns, and distobased on specific identification and historloakes.

The Company takes title to all produce it traded¥@npackages, and therefore, records revenuesamaf sales at gross amounts in
the Consolidated Statements of Income

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance prigivailing accounting guidance. Initial licenseSeee deferred and amortized to
revenue over the period of the agreement when @amirexists, the fee is fixed and determinablé, @oilectibility is reasonably assured.
Noncancellable, nonrefundable license fees aregrézed over the period of the agreement, includimge governing research &
development activities and any related supply agese entered into concurrently with the license mvtiee risk associated with
commercialization of a product is non-substantiviha outset of the arrangement.

Contract revenue for research and development (R&Bcorded as earned, based on the performaqueaments of the contract.

Non-refundable contract fees for which no further parfance obligations exist, and there is no conmigimvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentseareived or when collection is assured.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised stbower relationships with an estimated usefuldiféwelve years and
trademarks/trade names and goodwill with indefitites (collectively, “intangible assets”), whidhet Company recognized in accordance
with accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisitibhiéecore in April 2010, our Hyaluronan-based Biatarials reporting unit, (ii) upon the
acquisition of Apio in December 1999, which corssist our Food Products Technology and Commoditgifigareporting units and (iii) from
the repurchase of all noncontrolling interestshie tommon stock of Landec Ag in December 2006. Aoting guidance defines goodwill as
“the excess of the cost of an acquired entity demet of the estimated fair values of the asssisired and the liabilities assumed at date of
acquisition.” All intangible assets, including gedtl, associated with the acquisitions of Lifec@med Apio were allocated to the Hyaluronan-
based Biomaterials and Food Products Technologyrtieg unit, respectively, pursuant to accountingdgnce based upon the allocation of
assets and liabilities acquired and consideratad for each reporting unit. The consideration gairdhe Commodity Trading reporting unit
approximated its fair market value at the time afudsition, and therefore no intangible assets weterded in connection with the
Company’s acquisition of this reporting unit. Godllassociated with the Technology Licensing rejmgrtunit consists entirely of goodwill
resulting from the repurchase of the Landec Ag camtrolling interests.

The Company tests its intangible assets for impaitmat least annually, in accordance with accogrgimdance. When evaluating
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairmeatcounting guidance requires the Company to contpartair value of the asset to its
carrying value to determine if there is an impaintiess. When evaluating goodwill for impairmernt¢caunting guidance requires the
Company to first compare the fair value of the réipg unit to its carrying value to determine ietle is an impairment loss. If the fair value
the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, gatids not considered impaired; thus applicatidrttee second step of the two-step approach
under accounting guidance is not required. Applbicedf the intangible assets impairment tests megwsignificant judgment by management,
including identification of reporting units, assigant of assets and liabilities to reporting uratssignment of intangible assets to reporting
units, and the determination of the fair value adleindefinite-lived intangible asset and reportimit based upon projections of future net
cash flows, discount rates and market multiplesciwvjudgments and projections are inherently uradert

Property, plant and equipment and finite-lived ingfible assets are reviewed for possible impairmdrenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset (or asset group) may not loveeable. The Company’s impairment
review requires significant management judgmeriuioiog estimating the future success of produadijrfuture sales volumes, revenue and
expense growth rates, alternative uses for thésaaed estimated proceeds from the disposal adigkets. The Company conducts quarterly
reviews of idle and underutilized equipment, andaws business plans for possible impairment irtdisa Impairment occurs when the
carrying amount of the asset (or asset group) ebscite estimated future undiscounted cash flowsth@dmpairment is viewed as other than
temporary. When impairment is indicated, an impaintbrcharge is recorded for the difference betwherasses book value and its estimat
fair value. Depending on the asset, estimated/édire may be determined either by use of a disezlcésh flow model or by reference to
estimated selling values of assets in similar diowli The use of different assumptions would inseear decrease the estimated fair value of
assets and would increase or decrease any impdimeasurement.

The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangi@gsets and goodwill for impairment as of July Z8,@2and determined that no
adjustments to the carrying values of the intamgéssets were necessary as of that date. Onterdybasis, the Company considers the 1
to update its most recent annual tests for possiip@irment of its intangible assets, based on gamant's assessment of changes in its
business and other economic factors since the reosht annual evaluation. Such changes, if sianiti or material, could indicate a need to
update the most recent annual tests for impairmithte intangible assets during the current peridlde results of these tests could lead to
write-downs of the carrying values of the intangibksets in the current period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCpfreach to develop an estimate of fair value. D# approach recognizes
that current value is premised on the expectedpectfuture economic benefits. Indications ofumare developed by discounting projected
future net cash flows to their present value atta that reflects both the current return requiremef the market and the risks inherent in the
specific investment. The market approach was setito value the Food Products Technology, Hyahmdrased Biomaterials and
Technology Licensing reporting units (the “Repagtidnits”) because insufficient market comparables exist &blenthe Company to devel
a reasonable fair value of its intangible asse&stduhe unique nature of each of the Company'oReg Units.

The DCF approach requires the Company to exergdgjient in determining future business and findrici@casts and the related
estimates of future net cash flows. Future net flasés depend primarily on future product salesjchitare inherently difficult to predict.
These net cash flows are discounted at a ratedfiatts both the current return requirements efrttarket and the risks inherent in the
specific investment.
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The DCF associated with the Technology Licensimgreéng unit is based on the Monsanto Agreemertt Wibnsanto. Under the
Monsanto Agreement, Monsanto has agreed to paydcaAd a license fee of $2.6 million in cash pemyfeafive years beginning in
December 2006, and a fee of $4.0 million if Monsaglects to terminate the Monsanto Agreement, 6rGnillion if Monsanto elects to
purchase the rights to the exclusive field. If puechase option is exercised before December 261 Monsanto elects to terminate the
Monsanto Agreement, all annual license fees that inat been paid to Landec Ag will become due uperpurchase or termination. As of
May 30, 2010, the fair value of the Technology lnsieg reporting unit, as determined by the DCF aagh, exceeded its book value, and
therefore, no intangible asset impairment was dedamexist. The discount rate utilized approximakesrisk free interest rate as the cash
flow stream is guaranteed under the terms of thaddnto Agreement. A 1% increase in the discouatwatuld not have a significant impact
on the excess of fair value over book value.

The DCF associated with the Food Products Techgalggorting unit is based on management’s five-yeajection of revenues,
gross profits and operating profits by fiscal yaad assumes a 37% effective tax rate for each yanagement takes into account the
historical trends of Apio and the industry categsiin which Apio operates along with inflationaagtors, current economic conditions, new
product introductions, cost of sales, operatinge@ses, capital requirements and other relevantvdaa developing its projection. As of
May 30, 2010, the fair value of the Food Produashhology reporting unit, as determined by the @proach, exceeded its book value,
and therefore, no intangible asset impairment veasred to exist. A 1% increase in the discountwatgld not have a significant impact on
the excess of fair value over book value .

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets associated with our acquisition aédafe on April 30, 2010, was
determined using a DCF model based on manageniamtgear projections of revenues, gross profitd aperating profits by fiscal year and
assumes a 33% effective tax rate for each yearalylament takes into account the historical trendsfetore and the industry categories in
which Lifecore operates along with inflationary tiars, current economic conditions, new producbidiictions, cost of sales, operating
expenses, capital requirements and other relexaatwhen developing its projection. The trade namangible asset was valued using the
relief from royalty valuation method and the custwnelationship intangible asset was valued usiegtulti-period excess earnings method.
The fair value of goodwill was calculated as theess of consideration paid, including the fair eatfi contingent consideration under the
terms of the purchase agreement, over the failevafiihe tangible and intangible assets acquirgsllliebilities assumed. The Company
updated its analysis of the fair value of the imugd-lived intangible assets and goodwill as efahnual impairment analysis date, concluding
that the fair value of the Hyaluronan-based Biomal® reporting unit, as determined by the DCF apph, exceeded its book value, and
therefore, no intangible asset impairment was dedamexist. There were no impairment indicatorsitdied by the Company in its analysis
of impairment associated with the acquired finited intangible assets.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires that defittax assets and liabiliti
be recognized using enacted tax rates for thetedffaemporary differences between the book andteses of recorded assets and
liabilities. The Company maintains valuation allovees when it is likely that all or a portion odieferred tax asset will not be realized.
Changes in valuation allowances from period togakéare included in the Company’s income tax provisn the period of change. In
determining whether a valuation allowance is waednthe Company takes into account such factopsiasearnings history, expected fut
earnings, unsettled circumstances that, if unfaslgnaesolved, would adversely affect utilizationaofleferred tax asset, carryback and
carryforward periods, and tax strategies that cpoleintially enhance the likelihood of realizatmfra deferred tax asset. At May 30, 2010,
Company had no valuation allowance against defdeedssets.
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In addition to valuation allowances, the Compangldshes accruals for certain tax contingencidgemnw despite the belief that the
Company’s tax return positions are fully supportéd, Company believes that certain tax positiordikely to be challenged and that the
Company’s positions may not be fully sustained. Execontingency accruals are adjusted in lightlanging facts and circumstances, such
as the progress of tax audits, case law and entelggislation. The Company recognizes interesterdlties related to uncertain tax
positions as a component of income tax expenseCbnepany’s effective tax rate includes the impddagr-contingency accruals as
considered appropriate by management.

A number of years may elapse before a particulateamdor which the Company has accrued, is auditadifinally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies bysgidtion. While it is often difficult to predict ¢hfinal outcome or the timing of resolution of
any particular tax matter, the Company believetaiscontingency accruals are adequate to addressrktax contingencies. Favorable
resolution of such matters could be recognizedraslaction to the Company’s effective tax ratehia year of resolution. Unfavorable
settlement of any particular issue could increhsesffective tax rate. Any resolution of a tax ssoay require the use of cash in the year of
resolution. The Company’s tax-contingency accrasdspresented in the balance sheet within accrakdities.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company’s stock-based awards include stockwogfiants and restricted stock unit awards (RSUSs).

The Company adopted accounting guidance using tukfied prospective transition method, which regsithe application of the
accounting standard to (i) all stock-based awassisdd on or after May 29, 2006 and (ii) any outhtamstock-based awards that were issued
but not vested as of May 29, 2006.

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensatigense, is based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model. Upon the adoption of neaoaating guidance, the Company changed its methodloulating and recognizii
the fair value of stock-based compensation arraegésrto the straight-line, single-option methoshmpensation expense for all stock option
and restricted stock unit awards granted prior &y 9, 2006 will continue to be recognized usirgygtraight-line, multiple-option
method. In addition, the new accounting guidamcpiires the estimation of the expected forfeitafestock-based awards at the time of
grant. As a result, the Company uses historice ttaestimate pre-vesting forfeitures and recstdsk-based compensation expense only for
those awards that are expected to vest and rehiees estimates in subsequent periods if the aftitfeitures differ from the prior estimates.

Notes and Advances Receiva

Apio has made advances to produce growers foramdgharvesting costs. Typically these advancepaickoff within the growing
season (less than one year) from crops harvestédtelyrower and delivered to Apio. Advances ndyfphid during the current growing
season are converted to interest bearing obligatevidenced by contracts and notes receivableseThetes receivable and advances are
secured by liens on land and/or crops and havestdrat range from six to twelve months. Notes retde are periodically reviewed (at least
quarterly) for collectibility. A reserve is estatilied for any note or advance deemed to not bedallgctible based upon an estimate of the
crop value to be delivered or the fair value ofskeurity for the note or advance. If crop pricethe fair value of the underlying security
declines, the Company may be unable to fully redtaupotes or advances receivable and the estini@éeds would rise in the current period,
potentially to the extent of the total notes oraubes receivable of $241,000 as of May 30, 2010.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Pronouncemer

Accounting Standards Codificatic

Effective July 1, 2009, the FASB Accounting StamtsaCodification (FASB ASC) is the single sourceanthoritative accounting
principles recognized by the FASB to be appliedhbg-governmental entities in the preparation ddficial statements in conformity with
GAAP. The adoption of the FASB ASC does not imghetCompany’s consolidated financial statementajgver, the Company’s references
to accounting literature within its notes to th@densed consolidated financial statements haveflesésed to conform to the FASB ASC
beginning with the fiscal quarter ending Novembgy 2009.
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Business Combinatior

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidancehgignificantly changes the financial accounting agporting for business
combination transactions. The new guidance reqtiresicquiring entity in a business combinatioretmbgnize all (and only) the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the transadiuth establishes the acquisition date fair valub@sneasurement objective for all assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business gmatibn. Certain provisions of the new guidancd,witnong other things, impact the
determination of acquisition-date fair value of sigieration paid in a business combination (inclgdiontingent consideration); exclude
transaction costs from acquisition accounting; elmahge accounting practices for acquired contingsnacquisition-related restructuring
costs, in-process research and development, indieatiin assets, and tax benefits. The Companytaddape new guidance on June 1, 2009.
The Company acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 23 wabject to the provisions of this new guidancelen which the Company recognizing
$2.7 million of expenses related to the acquisitaring the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010. Theperses are classified as other expenses.

Non Controlling Interest

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidance nggthect to non controlling interests in consokddinancial statements. The
new guidance requires the reporting of all non k@dling interests as a separate component of stdkhs’ equity, the reporting of
consolidated net income (loss) as the amount atafide to both the parent and the non controlliigrests and the separate disclosure of net
income (loss) attributable to the parent and tonthre controlling interests. Changes in a parenwsarship interest while the parent retains its
controlling interest will be accounted for as eguransactions and any retained non controllingtgdavestment upon the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary will be initially measured at fair wal Other than the reporting requirements descrlede which require retrospective
application, the provisions of the new guidancetaree applied prospectively. The Company adogtechew guidance on June 1, 2009 and
such adoption did not have a material impact orCithmpany’s results of operations or financial posifor the fiscal year ended May 30,
2010, however, as required, presentation of notralling interests has been conformed to the rexménts of the new guidance for all
periods presented.

Collaborative Arrangements

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidanceeroimy the accounting for collaborative arrangeméwhich does not
establish a legal entity within such arrangemeifit)e consensus indicates that costs incurred amthues generated from transactions with
third parties (i.e. parties outside of the collatime arrangement) should be reported by the cofktbrs on the respective line items in their
income statements based upon their role as eitirifal or agent. Additionally, the consensusviiles that income statement
characterization of payments between the parti¢tgpiana collaborative arrangement should be baped existing authoritative guidance;
analogy to such guidance if not within their scopea reasonable, rational, and consistently aplezounting policy election. The Compi
adopted the new guidance on June 1, 2009 and slogti@n did not have an impact on the Company’slte®f operations or financial
position for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010.

Fair Value Disclosures in Interim Repol
In April 2009, the FASB issued new guidance thgurees disclosures about the fair value of finahicistruments at interim
reporting periods. The new guidance is effectoeiriterim reporting periods ending after June2)9. The Company adopted the new

guidance on June 1, 2009 and such adoption didaxwe an impact on the Company’s results of operatiw financial position for the fiscal
year ended May 30, 201
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Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued new guidance thatdistees general standards of accounting for antlatiare of events that occur
after the balance sheet date but before the finhst@tements are issued or are available to bhedssThe Company adopted the new guid
on June 1, 2009 and such adoption did not impa&c€timpany’s consolidated financial statements. Gtvmpany determined that the basis
for the date through which the entity has evaluatdzsequent events represents the date the fihatatiaments were file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Fair Value Measuremen

In January 2010, the FASB new guidance whereastieg entities will have to provide information@it movements of assets
among Levels 1 and 2; and a reconciliation of pasels, sales, issuance, and settlements of aatalitgd with a Level 3 method, of the three-
tier fair value hierarchy established by previoosaanting guidance. The new guidance also clarifie existing guidance to require fair
value measurement disclosures for each class efsaasd liabilities. The new guidance is effecfimeinterim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2009 for Level 1 amlis2losure requirements and after December 15) £61l evel 3 disclosure
requirements. The Company adopted the guidanéegifiscal 2010 and such adoption did not impaet@ompany’s consolidated financial
statements other than the required disclosures.

Recently Issued Pronouncemer

Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whiaglnaisithe evaluation criteria to identify the prignbeneficiary of a variable
interest entity. Additionally, the new guidancegu@&es ongoing reassessments of whether an ersetiprihe primary beneficiary of the
variable interest entity. The Company will addpsthew guidance in fiscal year 2011 and does xpé&t a material impact on the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements asuatref the new guidance.

Revenue Recognitic

In October 2009, the FASB issued new guidancelatiom to "Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangem&nt The new standard
changes the requirements for establishing sepandte of accounting in a multiple element arrangenaad requires the allocation of
arrangement consideration to each deliverable foalsed on the relative selling price. The Corggdans to early adopt these standards as
of the beginning of fiscal 2011 for new deals oraging after May 30, 2010. There will be no matkyimodified deals as a result of the
adoption. The Company is not able to reasonablgnast the effect of adopting these standards amdutnancial periods as the impact will
vary based on the nature and volume of new muitipléeserable revenue arrangements in any giverogeri

Fair Value Measurements
The Company adopted fair value measurement acemugtiidance on May 26, 2008 for financial assetkl@bilities and for
financial instruments and certain other items atalue. The Company did not elect the fair vadypéion for any of its eligible financial

assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a thieehierarchy for fair value measurements, whidbrjtizes the inputs used in measur
fair value as follows:

. Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primeisléntical instruments in active markets.

. Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatigekets that are observable either directly oir@adly through
corroboration with observable market d:
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. Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ttelibr no market data, which would require the Campto develop its
own assumption:

As of May 30, 2010, the Company held certain asbetisare required to be measured at fair valua @turring basis. These
included the Company’s cash equivalents and masketecurities for which the fair value is deteredrbased on observable inputs that are
readily available in public markets or can be dedisrom information available in publicly quoted rikets. Therefore, the Company has
categorized its cash equivalents and marketableies as Level 1. As of May 30, 2010, the Compeetorded to Other Comprehensive
Loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets an ureddbss of $179,000, net of taxes of $105,000,rasat of the interest rate swap. The
unrealized loss was based on a Level 2 hierarahfafiovalue measurements. If the interest ratepsis terminated or the debt borrowed is
paid off prior to April 30, 2015, the amount of ealized loss or gain included in Other Comprehenbicome (Loss) would be reclassifiec
earnings. The Company has no intentions of tertimigahe interest rate swap or prepaying the debité next twelve months. The interest
rate swap liability is included in other non-curréabilities as of May 30, 2010. The Company hasther financial assets or liabilities for
which fair value measurement has been adopted.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 2010 Compared to FisearEnded May 31, 20(
Revenuegin thousands):

Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year ende(
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ Change

Apio Value Addec $ 172,41t $ 165,64¢ 4%
Apio Packaging 2,63( 2,60¢ 1%
Food Technolog! 175,04t 168,25¢ 4%
Commaodity Trading 54,92¢ 60,44t (9)%
Total Apio 229,97: 228,70 1%

HA 1,45 — N/M
Technology Licensing 6,79¢ 7,23 (6)%
Total Revenues $ 238,22: $ 235,93¢ 1%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged frestaied whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgio’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels. In addition, value-added reverinelside the revenues generated from Apio Coolirg, & produce cooling operation in which
Apio is the general partner with a 60% ownershigitan.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues fofiftal year ended May 30, 2010 compared to theegaeniod last year was
primarily due to a increase in value-added ungsablumes of 14% partially offset by a year oveairymix change to greater sales of lower
priced bag products from higher priced tray prosduct

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packadéeannology business using its BreatheWay membenieology. The first
commercial application included in Apio packagieg@ur banana packaging technology and more recthlgddition of a second application
for avocados.

The increase in Apio packaging revenues for theafiyear ended May 30, 2010 compared to the samedpkast year was n
significant to consolidated Landec revenues.

-39-




Commaodity Trading
Apio trading revenues consist of revenues genefabed the purchase and sale of primarily whole cardity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-Ea] and from the purchase and sale of whole conitmédit and vegetable products

domestically. The export portion of trading revesdior fiscal year 2010 and 2009 was $52.3 miléiod $55.3 million or 95% and 91%,
respectively, of total trading revenues.

The decrease in revenues in Apio's trading busifeegke fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 comparetiecsame period last year was
due to a 9% decrease in unit volume sales dueshodage of produce to export.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials (“HA")

The Company'’s Lifecore subsidiary generates revéimaeigh sale of products containing hyaluronafedare was acquired on
April 30, 2010.

Technology Licensing
Technology licensing revenues consist of reveneegi@ated from the licensing agreements with Momsait Products and Nitta.

The decrease in technology licensing revenueshiofiscal year ended May 30, 2010 compared to dheesperiod last year was
significant to consolidated Landec revenues.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year ende(
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ Change

Apio Value Addec $ 20,26: $ 21,02( (4)%
Apio Packaging 2,25: 2,36¢€ (5)%
Food Technolog! 22,51« 23,38¢ (4)%
Commaodity Trading 3,90¢ 3,657 7%
Total Apio 26,42( 27,04 (2%
HA 81t N/M
Technology Licensing 6,53 7,23 (10)%
Total Gross Profit $ 33,76¢ $ 34,28( (1)%
General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnadg including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors inflleeoc are interrelated with other
factors. Therefore, it is difficult to preciselyantify the impact of each item individually. TBempany includes in cost of sales all of the
costs related to the sale of products in accordaiitbeU.S. generally accepted accounting principl€eese costs include the following: raw
materials (including produce, seeds and packagdigdct labor, overhead (including indirect labdepreciation, and facility related costs) .
shipping and shipping related costs. The followdiggussion surrounding gross profit includes manants best estimates of the reason:
the changes for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2@h@pared to the same period of the prior fiscal wseaoutlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s value-addpeécialty packaged vegetable business for thalfysar ended May 30, 2010
compared to the same period last year was primduié/to an increase in the cost for sourcing predluring the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2010 which resulted in lower gross margins couplétl a sales mix change to lower margin bag pragltrem higher margin tray
products. These decreases in gross profit wetalhaoffset by decreased packaging costs. Tlsgmargin for Apio’s value-added
business for fiscal year 2010 was 11.8% comparedgimss margin of 12.7% for fiscal year 2009.

-40-




Apio Packaging

The decrease in gross profit for Apio packagingtier fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 compared tadnee period last year was not
significant to consolidated Landec gross profit.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell business thalizes a commission-based margin in the 5-7%eaafhe increase in gross profit
during the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 compé&dtle prior fiscal year was primarily due to prodmix changes to higher margin
products in our export business which resultedhingher gross margin during fiscal year 2010 of&# dompared to a gross margin of 6.1% in
fiscal year 2009.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials

Lifecore was acquired on April 30, 2010.

Technology Licensing

The decrease in technology licensing gross profittie fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 comparetdcstime period of the prior yi
was primarily due to completion of license paymdaytsAir Products in fiscal year 2009 which resulbe&600,000 being recognized last
fiscal year and none this fiscal year.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year endet
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ Change

Research and Developmer

Apio $ 1,182 $ 1,321 (11)%

HA 39t — N/M

Technology Licensing 2,78¢ 2,344 19%
Total R&D $ 4,361 $ 3,66¢ 19%

Selling, General and Administrative

Apio $ 12,12¢ $ 12,70¢ (5)%

HA 33¢ — N/M

Corporate 5,231 5,30¢ ()%
Total S,G&A $ 17,69¢ $ 18,01, (2%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses consigrily of expenses involved in product developimend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts@bAre focused on the Company’s proprietary BreAthy membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the siifeliof bananas and other shelf-life sensitive valglets and fruit. In the HA business, the
research and development efforts are focused orpneguicts and applications for Hyaluronan-basedhbierials. In the Technology
Licensing business, the research and developmiemtsefre focused on uses for the proprietary imiei polymers outside of food.

-41-




The increase in research and development expemstreeffiscal year ended May 30, 2010 comparetidcsame period last year was
primarily due to increased headcount, increasedudting fees surrounding development work in ouchif®logy Licensing business and the
acquisition of Lifecore on April 30, 2010.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsisarily of sales and marketing expenses asgatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdrstadministrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and administratkpenses for the fiscal year ended May 30, 20hfpened to the same period last
year was not significan

Other (in thousands):
Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year ende(
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ Change

Interest Income $ 834 $ 1,30¢ (36)%
Interest Expenst $ (89 % (8) 100(%
Other Expense $ (3,729 $ — N/M

Income Taxes $ (4,262 $ (5,61)) (24)%
Non Controlling Interest $ (482) $ (555) (13)%

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the fiscal geded May 30, 2010 compared to the same peribgdas was due to lower yields
on investments.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the figeat ended May 30, 2010 compared to the prior waardue to the new credit
facility entered into on April 30, 2010 in conjuiart with the acquisition of Lifecore.

Other Expenses

The increase in other expenses during fiscal yea0 Zompared to fiscal year 2009 was due to $2llfomin acquisition related
expenses and $1.0 million from an impairment chaetgged to our investment in Aesthetic Sciences.

Income Taxes

The decrease in the income tax expense in fiseal 3@10 compared to fiscal year 2009 was due @& @ecrease in net income
before taxes partially offset by an increase in@oenpany’s effective tax rate to 50% in fiscal y2@80 up from 42% in fiscal year 2009.

Non Controlling Interest

The non controlling interest expense consists @htinority interest associated with the limitedtpars’ equity interest in the net
income of Apio Cooling, LP.

The decrease in the non controlling interest expéméiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2888 not significant.
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Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2009 Compared to FisearEnded May 25, 20(

Revenuegin thousands):
Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year ende(
May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200¢ Change

Apio Value Addec $ 165,64¢ $ 167,81 (1)%
Apio Packaging 2,60¢ 3,371 (23)%
Food Technolog! 168,25t 171,19 (2)%

Apio Trading 60,44: 60,41« 0%
Total Apio 228,70: 231,60t (1)%
Technology Licensing 7,231 6,91¢ 5%
Total Revenues $ 235,93( $ 238,52 (1)%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgégd from the sale of specialty packaged freslaed whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgeo’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels. In addition, value-added reverinelside the revenues generated from Apio Coolirg, & vegetable cooling operation in
which Apio is the general partner with a 60% owhargosition.

The decrease in Apio’s value-added revenues fofighal year ended May 31, 2009 compared to tleafigear ended May 25, 2008
was primarily due to a decrease in value-addedsahits volumes of 1%.

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packadeupnology business using its BreatheWay membeaieology. The first
commercial application included in Apio packagisgur banana packaging technology.

The decrease in Apio packaging revenues for tltalfigear ended May 31, 2009 compared to the fiseal ended May 25, 2008 w
primarily due to the decrease in the minimum payisieeceived from Chiquita as a result of the amdr@aiquita license agreement.

Apio Trading
Apio trading revenues consist of revenues genefabed the purchase and sale of primarily whole cardity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-E&] and from the purchase and sale of whole conimédit and vegetable products

domestically. The export portion of trading revestior fiscal year 2009 was $55.3 million or 91%atél trading revenues.

The increase in revenues in Apio's trading busif@sthe fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 comparetediscal year ended May 25,
2008 was not significant.

Technology Licensing
Technology licensing revenues consist of reveneegigated from the licensing agreements with Momsakit Products and Nitta.

The increase in technology licensing revenuesherfiscal year ended May 31, 2009 compared toificalfyear ended May 25, 2(
was not significant to consolidated Landec revenues
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Gross Profit (in thousands):
Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year endet
May 31, 200! May 25, 200¢ Change

Apio Value Addec $ 21,02( $ 24,61¢ (15)%
Apio Packaging 2,36¢€ 3,24¢ (27)%
Food Technolog! 23,38t 27,86( (16)%
Apio Trading 3,657 3,44¢ 6%
Total Apio 27,04 31,30¢ (14)%
Technology Licensing 7,231 6,91¢ 5%
Total Gross Profit $ 34,28( $ 38,22¢ (10)%
General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnadg including product mix, customer mix, manciiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete ioerib name a few. Many of these factors inflleeacare interrelated with other
factors. Therefore, it is difficult to preciselyantify the impact of each item individually. TBempany includes in cost of sales all of the
costs related to the sale of products in accordaiitbeU.S. generally accepted accounting principl€sese costs include the following: raw
materials (including produce, seeds and packagdigct labor, overhead (including indirect labdepreciation, and facility related costs) .
shipping and shipping related costs. The followdigrussion surrounding gross profit includes manants best estimates of the reason:
the changes for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009pared to the same period of the prior fiscal wseaoutlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added
The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s value-addpeécialty packaged vegetable business for thalfigar ended May 31, 2009
compared to the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008duaso decreased revenues coupled with increasethederial costs, primarily the cost

produce during fiscal year 2009 compared to figear 2008. The gross margin for Apio’s value-adolesiness for fiscal year 2009 was
12.7% compared to a gross margin of 14.7% for lfigear 2008.

Apio Packaging

The decrease in gross profit for Apio packagingtfier fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 compared tdiskal year ended May 25,
2008 was primarily due to the decrease in minimaynpents received from Chiquita as a result of theraded Chiquita license agreement.

Apio Trading
Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell business thalizes a commission-based margin in the 5-7%eaahhe increase in gross profit
during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 compé#odtle fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 was primatilg to product mix changes to hig

margin vegetable products from lower margin fru@égucts in our export business which resultediigher gross margin during fiscal year
2009 of 6.1% compared to a gross margin of 5.7%saal year 2008.

Technology Licensing

The increase in technology licensing gross profittfie fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 comparetigdiscal year ended May 25,
2008 was not significant to consolidated Landesgurofit.
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Operating Expensegqin thousands):
Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endel

May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200¢ Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1321 $ 1,251 6%
Technology Licensing 2,344 2,00( 17%
Total R&D $ 3,665 $ 3,251 13%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 12,70¢ $ 13,83: (8)%
Corporate 5,30¢ 5,97( (11)%
Total S,G&A $ 18,017 $ 19,80: (9)%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses cprigigtrily of expenses involved in product developirend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts@bAare focused on the Company’s proprietary BreAthy membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the slifeloff bananas and other shelf-life sensitive valgies and fruit. In the Technology
Licensing business, the research and developmiemtseére focused on development of new polymeirtelbgies and application of existing
and new technologies to industries outside of food.

The increase in research and development expemstieeffiscal year ended May 31, 2009 comparetiddiscal year ended May 25,
2008 was primarily due to increased headcount mcr@ased consulting fees surrounding developmerk in@ur technology licensing area.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses cbpseisarily of sales and marketing expenses assatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdrstadministrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and administratipenses for the fiscal year ended May 31, 20@$ened to the fiscal year enc
May 25, 2008 was primarily due to a decrease iessahd marketing expenses at Apio due to the dezsea value-added revenues and from
decreases in general and administrative expengga@primarily as a result of not accruing bonutes fiscal year whereas for the same
period last year bonuses were accrued. The des@aselling, general and administrative expeas€orporate were primarily due to a
decrease in auditing and tax fees coupled witHabgthat in fiscal year 2008 the Company amenteddgreement with Air Products resulting
in a non recurring charge of $600,000. These dse®were partially offset by legal fees associaitidthe Company pursuit of merger ai
acquisition activities.

Other (in thousands):
Fiscal Year ende( Fiscal Year ende(

May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200¢ Change
Interest Income $ 1,30¢ $ 2,21¢ 41)%
Interest Expenst $ (8) (22 (64)%
Income Taxes $ (5,61)) (3,359 67%
Non Controlling Interest $ (555) 477 16%
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Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the fiscal yealed May 31, 2009 compared to the fiscal yeae@mdiay 25, 2008 was due to
lower yields on investments, driven by both dediireinterest rates and a shift in our investmentfplio to lower yielding investment
vehicles.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the fygzal ended May 31, 2009 compared to the fiscal ggded May 25, 2008 was not
significant.

Non Controlling Interest

The non controlling interest expense consists @htinority interest associated with the limitedtpars’ equity interest in the net
income of Apio Cooling, LP.

The increase in the non controlling interest expendiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2888 not significant.
Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense in fiscat 2609 compared to fiscal year 2008 was due t€tmpany utilizing all of its n
operating loss carryforwards and tax credits dufiscpl year 2008 for book income tax expense psgpavhich resulted in the estimated
effective tax rate for fiscal year 2009 for fedeaatl state income taxes increasing to 42% from B%year, partially offset by a 21%
decrease in pre-tax net income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 30, 2010, the Company had cash and aasivadents of $27.8 million, a net decrease of ¥1hillion from $43.5 million
at May 31, 2009.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $7.5 million of cash flow fromrmagiag activities during the fiscal year ended My 2010 compared to
generating $9.4 million from operating activitiagriahg the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009. The prynsaurces of cash from operating
activities during fiscal year 2010 were $4.0 miiliof net income and non-cash related expenses.8frfliflion, partially offset by a net
decrease of $4.3 million in working capital. Thénpary changes in working capital during fiscal y2ad.0 were (1) a $1.6 million increase in
accounts receivable due to revenues at Apio diviag 2010 being higher than revenues during May 2@@pga $764,000 receivable for the
overpayment of income taxes (3) a $1.3 million &&se in inventories primarily due to increasedmtogy levels at both Apio and Lifecore,
and (4) a $2.0 million decrease in deferred revetugeto recognizing $2.0 million of revenue assedavith deferred revenue from the
Monsanto licensing agreement during fiscal yeat0201

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the fisear ended May 30, 2010 was $42.8 million comgaoenet cash used in investing
activities of $12.3 million for the same periodtlgsar. The primary uses of cash from investing/gies during fiscal year 2010 were from
the acquisition of Lifecore for $39.7 million (neft cash acquired), from the purchase of $5.2 milbd property and equipment primarily for
the growth of Apio’s value-added vegetable busimestially offset by net proceeds of $2.1 millioorh the sale of marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for tigzél year ended May 30, 2010 was $19.7 million garad to net cash provided by

financing activities of $2.0 million for the samerjpd last year. The primary source of cash frorarfcing activities during fiscal year 2010
was from the $20.0 million of proceeds from longxielebt entered into in conjunction with the acijias of Lifecore.
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Capital Expenditures

During the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010, Landecipased property and equipment to support thethrofvApio’s value-added
vegetable business. These expenditures represietachjority of the $5.2 million of capital expeétudes. In addition, we expect to incur
increased capital expenditures in fiscal year A@1drder to complete the 40,000 square foot expansi Apio’s value-added vegetable
processing plant to meet projected increased dgpacjuirements in the future and to meet the ehpiteds of the recently acquired
subsidiary, Lifecore. We anticipate that our calpiixpenditures in the year ending May 29, 2011 elapproximately $6.0 million to $6.5
million.

Debt

On April 30, 2010 in conjunction with the acquisitiof Lifecore, Lifecore entered into a new $20limil Credit Agreement with
Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) with a fiveegir term that provides for equal monthly principayments plus interest. The Credit
Agreement contains certain restrictive covenantsclvrequire Lifecore to meet certain financiatsescluding minimum levels of net
income, minimum quick ratio, minimum fixed coveragdéio and maximum capital expenditures. All ofelcore’s assets have been pledge
secure the debt incurred pursuant to the Credieédmgent. Landec is the guarantor of the debt. Qguaw9, 2010, the Company amended its
Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo to amend cerfimiancial covenants. As of May 30, 2010, $19.7ionl was outstanding under the Cre
Agreement. As a result of the amendment, the Compaas in compliance with all financial covenardsod May 30, 2010.

On May 4, 2010, the Company entered into an intea¢és swap agreement that has the economic effecbdifying the variable
interest obligations associated with the $20 milleredit Agreement so that the interest payabééfectively fixed at a rate of 4.24% (see
Note 10).

Contractual Obligations

The Company’s material contractual obligationstfer next five years and thereafter as of May 3@02@re as follows (in
thousands):

Due in Fiscal Year Ended M:

Obligation Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafte
Income taxe: $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Long-term debr 23,77( 4,521 4,33¢ 4,351 4,362 4,03¢ 2,15¢
Operating lease 2,27¢ 67€ 39C 314 24C 24¢ 41C
Licensing obligatior 20C 10C 10C — — — —
Purchase commitments 4,98¢ 4,98¢ — — — — —
Total $ 31,237 $ 10,28t $ 482¢ $ 4665 $ 460 $ 4287 $ 2,56¢

The income tax amounts above exclude liabilitiesoeimted with the accounting for uncertainty inome taxes as we are unable to
reasonably estimate the ultimate amount or timingettlement. See Note 11 in the Notes to Cons@dlkinancial Statements for further
discussion.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, arrndments to, any special purpose entities thatldvoanstitute material off-
balance sheet financing other than the operatiageleommitments listed above.
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Landec’s future capital requirements will depenchamerous factors, including the progress of iseaech and development
programs; the continued development of marketiatgssand distribution capabilities; the abilityl@hdec to establish and maintain new
collaborative and licensing arrangements; any d@ti® pursue additional acquisition opportunitiegather conditions that can affect the
supply and price of produce, the timing and amaifiaiyy, of payments received under licensing awtarch and development agreements;
the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtidefending and enforcing intellectual properghts; the ability to comply with regulatory
requirements; the emergence of competitive teclyyodmd market forces; the effectiveness of prodantmercialization activities and
arrangements; and other factors. If Landec’s ctigr@vailable funds, together with the internalgngrated cash flow from operations are not
sufficient to satisfy its capital needs, Landec lddue required to seek additional funding througieo arrangements with collaborative
partners, additional bank borrowings and publiprivate sales of its securities. There can be sarasice that additional funds, if required,
will be available to Landec on favorable termstifll.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketdxurities will be sufficient 1
finance its operational and capital requirementsafdeast the next twelve months.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Not significant.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

-48-




Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of©hief Executive Officer and our Chief Financiaffioér, the effectiveness of o
disclosure controls and procedures as of the ettaegberiod covered by this Annual Report on Fofi¥K1 Based on this evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial 0#r have concluded that our disclosure controts@ocedures are effective in ensuring
that information required to be disclosed in repdited under the Securities Exchange Act of 13®&4amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe by the Securities and Exchange Commissiod,axe effective in providing
reasonable assurance that information requiree wistlosed by the Company in such reports is aoated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including its Chief Execufficer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropei& allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended). Our management assessed the effests/of our internal control over
financial reporting as of May 30, 2010. In makihgstassessment, our management used the critef@tbeby the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@")nternal Control - Integrated Framework. Our ngarmaent has concluded that, as of
May 30, 2010, our internal control over financiaporting was effective to provide reasonable asmaraegarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. We
have excluded from our evaluation the internal adrdver financial reporting of Lifecore Biomedicéhc. (Lifecore), which we acquired on
April 30, 2010, as discussed in Note 2 of Note€dmsolidated Financial Statements. Total revenukfest to Lifecores internal control ove
financial reporting represented $1.5 million of @onsolidated total revenues for the fiscal yealeenMay 30, 2010. Total assets subject to
Lifecore’s internal control over financial reporting repmesel $80 million and $41 million of our consolidattal and net assets respectiv
as of May 30, 2010.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @iffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financedarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Artrol system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofalesassurance that the objectives of the cosirstem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of coninaist be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations ircaiitrol systems, no evaluation of controls can jpi®@absolute assurance that all control issues
and instances of fraud, if any, within the Comphaaye been detected.

Our independent registered public accounting fiEmmst & Young LLP, has issued an audit report onassessment of our internal
control over financial reporting, which is includedrein.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Repont

Except as described above, there were no changes internal controls over financial reporting ithgrthe quarter ended May 30,
2010 that have materially affected, or are reaslyrildely to materially affect, our internal contsoover financial reporting.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Landep@Gration

We have audited Landec Corporation and subsidiantsnal control over financial reporting as ofly130, 2010, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Landec Corporation and subsie’ management is responsible for maintainirfigicsiize internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecegsrof internal control over financial reportinglided in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion om ¢bmpany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staddof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainiy reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projectic
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becimaéequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Landec Corporation and subsidianiesntained, in all material respects, effectiietinal control over financial
reporting as of May 30, 2010, based on the COS@rii

As indicated in the accompanying Management’'s Repointernal Control over Financial Reporting, magement’s assessment of
and conclusions on the effectiveness of internatrots over financial reporting did not include tihéernal controls of Lifecore Biomedical,
Inc., which is included in the May 30, 2010 condated financial statements of Landec Corporati@hamstituted $80 million and $41
million of total and net assets, respectively, falay 30, 2010 and $1.5 million of revenues, fae trear then ended. Our audit of the internal
controls or financial statements of Landec Corponaalso did not include an evaluation of interoaihtrols or financial statements of Lifec
Biomedical, Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Landec Corporatidrsabsidiaries as of May 30, 2010 and May 31, 2806 the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholdezguity, and cash flows for each of the three yeuatse period ended May 30, 2010 of Landec Corjpam:
and subsidiaries and our report dated August 120 2&pressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Francisco, California
August 12, 2010
Item 9B. Other Information
None
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PART IlI

Item 10.

Item 11.

Iltem 12.

Iltem 13.

Iltem 14.

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrs

This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemn&hich the Registrant will
file with the Commission no later than SeptemberZ0 (120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal yat covered by this
Report) and is incorporated herein by refere

Executive Compensatio

This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy stateighich the Registrant will
file with the Commission no later than SeptemberZ0 (120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal yat covered by this
Report) and is incorporated herein by refere

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners attanagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemghich the Registrant will
file with the Commission no later than SeptemberZa0 (120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal yat covered by this
Report) and is incorporated herein by refere

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions aDatector Independenct

This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemghich the Registrant will
file with the Commission no later than SeptemberZa0 (120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal yat covered by this
Report) and is incorporated herein by refere

Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemn&hich the Registrant will

file with the Commission no later than SeptemberZa0 (120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal yat covered by this
Report) and is incorporated herein by refere
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Item 15.

(@)

1

PART IV
Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduli

Consolidated Financial Statements of Landec Cotjmor.

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistePethlic Accounting Firn
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 30, 2010 and32a200¢
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare&imday 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and May 25, 2

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity for the Years Ended May 30, 2010, May 3109
and May 25, 200

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded May 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and May 25, -
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

All schedules provided for in the applicable acammregulations of the Securities and Exchange G@sior
have been omitted since they pertain to items whichnot appear in the financial statements of La
Corporation and its subsidiaries or to items which not significant or to items as to which theuiesp
disclosures have been made elsewhere in the falestatements and supplementary notes and suctdekt

Index of Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Index ohibis are filed or incorporated by reference ag phthis
report.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Landep@Gration

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Landec Corporation and subsidiarie$ sy 30, 2010 and May
31, 2009, and the related consolidated stateméimsame, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsdach of the three years in the period
ended May 30, 2010. These financial statementthareesponsibility of the Company's managementit r@sponsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBigUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Landec Corporation and subsidiaries at May 30, 2Z0kdMay 31, 2009, and the consolidated resultsef operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended 8052010, in conformity with U.S. generally acezbticcounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, under the heading ‘Business Combinsitithe Company adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“ASC"”) 808Business Combination®ffective June 1,
20009.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), Landec
Corporation’s internal control over financial repeg as of May 30, 2010, based on criteria esthbtisn Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imtions of the Treadway Commission and our ttegetied August 12, 2010
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Francisco, California
August 12, 2010
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfebants of $189 and $165 at May 30, 2010 and Ma)

2009, respectivel
Accounts receivable, related pa
Income taxes receivab
Inventories, ne
Notes and advances receiva
Deferred taxe:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Goodwill, net

Trademarks/ trade names, |
Customer relationships, n
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Related party payable
Income taxes payab
Accrued compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debr
Deferred revenu
Deferred taxe
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholder' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shartmoazed; 26,490,259 and 26,326,889 shares is

and outstanding at May 30, 2010 and May 31, 20&pectively
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |i
Retained earning
Total stockholder' equity
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes.
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May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢

$ 27817 $  43,45¢
20,42 22,49
18,63 15,27

72¢ 632

73¢ —

16,10: 5,82¢

241 18€

1,262 2,161

2,98¢ 1,29¢
88,94 91,33
50,16 22,74
41,15¢ 27,36
12,42¢ 8,22¢
3,67 =

3,83¢ 3,83:

$ 200,190 $ _ 153,49
$ 1435 $ 12,43
34¢ 29¢

— 107

2,04: 1,11z

3,27 1,80¢

3,391 3,43(

4,521 —
27,93 19,18
19,24¢ —
1,00 3,00(

8,801 4,11¢
10,73; —
67,72 26,30

27 26

117,73( 116,15
(179) —

13,20¢ 9,22z
130,78 125,40
1,691 1,79(
132,47 127,19

$ 200,19 $ 153,49




LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Revenues
Product sale
Services revenue, related pa
License fee:
Research, development and royalty rever
Royalty revenues, related party
Total revenue

Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale
Cost of product sales, related pe
Cost of services revenue

Total cost of revenu
Gross profit

Operating costs and expens
Research and developm
Selling, general and administrative

Total operating costs and expenses
Operating incom:

Interest incom:

Interest expens

Other expenses

Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net incorr
Non controlling interes

Net Income applicable to Common Stockholc

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computal
Basic

Diluted

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 30, May 31, May 25,
2010 2009 2008
$ 228,39 $ 224,40 $ 227,55(

3,69¢ 4,14¢ 3,64(

5,40( 6,00( 6,231

73t 1,38¢ 1,07¢

— — 31

238,22 235,93¢ 238,52°
198,07! 195,18( 194,86¢

3,391 3,18¢ 2,42(

2,997 3,28¢ 3,011
204,45¢ 201,65¢ 200,29¢
33,76¢ 34,28( 38,22¢

4,361 3,66¢ 3,251

17,69¢ 18,017 19,80!

22,05¢ 21,68: 23,05

11,707 12,59¢ 15,17¢

834 1,30¢ 2,21¢

(89) 8 (22)

(3,725 — —

8,72¢ 13,89¢ 17,37:

(4,262) (5,617 (3,359

4,46¢ 8,28¢ 14,01¢

(482) (55E) (477)

$ 3,98 $ 7,730 $ 13,54:
$ 0.1t $ 03C $ 0.52
$ 0.1t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5C
26,38: 26,20: 26,06¢
26,63 26,75 26,93¢

See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Additional Retained Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Earnings Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital  (Deficit) Loss Equity
Balance at May 27, 20( 25,891,16 $ 26 $ 129,53 $ (19,33) $ — 3 110,22¢
Reclassify repurchase of subsidiary common stoc
and options — — (2,502 7,28 — 4,78(
Issuance of common stock at $1.89 to $7.53 pek! 255,15! — 1,12C — — 1,12C
Issuance of common stock for vested restrictedkst
units 10,00: — — — — —
Stock based compensati — — 871 — — 871
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel — — 3,42 — — 3,42
Repurchase of subsidiary common stock and optir
(Note 5) — — (19,499 — — (19,499
Net income and comprehensive income — — — 13,54. — 13,54:
Balance at May 25, 20( 26,156,32 26 112,94¢ 1,492 — 114,46¢
Issuance of common stock at $2.82 to $5.34 peg: 160,571 — 37¢ — — 37¢
Issuance of common stock for vested restrictedkst
units 9,99¢ — — — — —
Stocl-based compensatic — — 93¢ — — 93¢
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel — — 1,89¢ — — 1,89¢
Net income and comprehensive income — — — 7,73C — 7,73(
Balance at May 31, 20( 26,326,88 26 116,15¢ 9,22 — 125,40t
Issuance of common stock at $1.89 to $6.75 pees
net of taxes paid by Landec on behalf of emplo 121 ,44: 1 37¢ — — 37¢
Issuance of common stock for vested restrictedkst
units 41,92¢ — — — — —
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and R — — (339 — — (339
Stocl-based compensatic — — 1,01¢ — — 1,01¢
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel — — 517 — — 517
Net income and comprehensive loss — — — 3,984 (179 3,80¢
Balance at May 30, 2010 26,490,25 $ 27 $ 117,73( $ 13,20¢ $ (179) $ 130,78

See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

(in thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Stocl-based compensation expel
Deferred taxe

Non controlling interes

Increase in lon-term receivablt

Tax benefit from stock based compensa
Impairment charge

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effacinfacquisitions

Accounts receivable, n

Accounts receivable, related pa
Income taxes receivab

Inventories, ne

Issuance of notes and advances receiv
Collection of notes and advances receiv:
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl

Related party accounts paya

Income taxes payab

Accrued compensatic

Other accrued liabilitie

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Acquisition of Lifecore, net of cash acquired (Na
Acquisition related earnout payme
Issuance of notes and advances recei\v
Collection of notes and advances receiv:
Purchase of marketable securil
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketalcigrsies

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from sale of common st
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and R
Repurchase of subsidiary optic
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel

Net change in other assets/liabilit
Proceeds from long term de
Payments on long term de
Payments to non controlling interest.
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informat
Cash paid during the period for interest

Cash paid during the period for income taxes

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating andding activities:

Long-term receivable from Monsanto
Income tax expense not payable

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 30, May 31, May 25,
2010 2009 2008
$ 3,98 $ 7,73C $ 13,54:

3,364 3,13¢ 3,20¢

1,01¢ 93¢ 871

3,24¢ 2,56¢ (611)

482 55E 477

(800) (800) (800)

(517) (1,899 (3,429

1,00( — —

(1,506 4,18¢ (1,829

(97) (221) 14z

(764) — —

(1,269 1,50( (529

(3,030 (3,055 (2,652

2,97 3,26¢ 2,42F

(1,172 (184) 202

957 (5,929 4,19¢

50 26 98

1,162 2,00t 3,427

(264) (1,085 (929)

708 (1,125 1,59(

(2,039 (2,189 (1,879

7,48: 9,43¢ 17,52(

(5,199 (4,576 (4,240

(39,687 — —

— @) (1,439

— (2 (12

— 103 11€

(67,437 (45,809 (14,649
69,51( 37,95:¢

(42,797 (12,337 (20,217)

37¢ 37¢ 1,12

(339 — —

— — (19,499

517 1,89¢ 3,42¢

0 3 (2

20,00( — —

(387) — —

(49¢) (315) (5117)

19,67 1,96¢ (15,46%)

(15,647 (937) (18,160)

43,45¢ 44 ,39¢ 62,55¢

$ 27,817 $ 43,45¢ $ 44 ,39¢

$ 88 $ 8 $ 22

$ 65z $ 1,13t $ 85(

$ 80C $ 80C $ 80C

$ 517 $ 1,89¢ $ 3,427




Accrued non controlling interest distribution
Impairment charges

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary dsignificant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries ("Landedhe "Company") design, develop, manufacture,seidspecialty polymer
products for a variety of food products, agricuysroducts, medical device products and licensathpr applications. The Company sells
specialty packaged fresh-cut vegetables and wholduge to retailers and club stores, primarilyhi@ United States and Asia through its
Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary, Hyaluranon-basedHA") biomaterials in the United States, Canada Badbpe through its Lifecore
Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”) subsidiary and Intelbat® coated seed products through its Landed A@, (“Landec Ag”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presenmtete accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec Corporation and its subsidiaries, Apio, lofecand Landec Ag. All material inter-
company transactions and balances have been etedina

The Company follows FASB guidance concerning thesotidation of variable interest entities ("VIEs')inder the guidance,
arrangements that are not controlled through vatingimilar rights are accounted for as VIEs. Aweeprise is required to consolidate a VIE
if it is the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

Under the guidance, a VIE is created when (i) tigtg investment at risk is not sufficient to petmhie entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial suppoonfi other parties, or (ii) the entity's equity heriglas a group either: (a) lack direct or
indirect ability to make decisions about the entitsough voting or similar rights, (b) are not galied to absorb expected losses of the en
they occur, or (c) do not have the right to recaix¥pected residual returns of the entity if thegusc If an entity is deemed to be a VIE, the
enterprise that is deemed to absorb a majorith@kikpected losses or receive a majority of exdeetsidual returns of the VIE is considered
the primary beneficiary and must consolidate thE.VI

Under the initial agreement between Landec and lsiaiosCompany (“Monsanto”) (see Note 3), the Comgsary concluded that
Landec Ag was a VIE. The Company had also detexdhihat it was the primary beneficiary of Landecakgl therefore the accounts of
Landec Ag were consolidated with the accounts @f@bmpany. As a result of the amended and restaedment between Landec and
Monsanto (see Note 3), Landec Ag is no longer deaimée a VIE, however, because Landec Ag is wholped, it continues to be
consolidated with the accounts of the Company.
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear jinancial statements to conform to the curyear presentation.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies(continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl requires management to
make certain estimates and judgments that affecatimounts reported in the financial statementssandmpanying notes. The accounting
estimates that require management’s most significkfficult and subjective judgments include reuenrecognition; sales returns and
allowances; recognition and measurement of cuamdtdeferred income tax assets and liabilitiesagsessment of recoverability of long-
lived assets; the valuation of intangible assetkiaventory; the valuation and nature of impairnsesttinvestments; and the valuation and
recognition of stock-based compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxijaletors and require management to make judgmé&hesanalysis of historical
and future trends, can require extended periodisnefto resolve, and are subject to change frorogéeo period. The actual results may di
from management’s estimates.

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and cash equivalents, marketable securitéele ticcounts receivable, grower advances and regteivable are financial
instruments that potentially subject the Compangatacentrations of credit risk. Corporate policyils, among other things, the amount of
credit exposure to any one issuer and to any gy investment, other than securities issueduaranteed by the U.S. government. The
Company routinely assesses the financial strenfgthisiomers and growers and, as a consequenceydxlhat trade receivables, grower
advances and notes receivable credit risk expasliraited. Credit losses for bad debt are prodif in the consolidated financial
statements through a charge to operations. A tialuallowance is provided for known and anticighteedit losses. The recorded amounts
for these financial instruments approximate thaiir falue.

Several of the raw materials we use to manufacurgroducts are currently purchased from a sisglece, including some
monomers used to synthesize Intelimer® polymetsstsate materials for our breathable membrane pitsdind raw materials for our HA
products.

During the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010, salekeédCompany’s top five customers accounted for@pmately 48% of total
revenue, with the top customer, Costco Wholesakp@ation from the Food Products Technology segnaamounting for approximately
20% of total revenues. In addition, approxima&ds of the Company’s total revenues were derivethfproduct sales to international
customers, none of whom individually accountednimre than 5% of total revenues. As of May 30, 2@dstco Wholesale Corporation
represented approximately 15% of total accountsivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, saleheédCompany’s top five customers accounted for@apmately 46% of total
revenue, with the top customer, Costco Wholesalp@ation from the Food Products Technology segnamttounting for approximately
21% of total revenues. In addition, approxima&do of the Company’s total revenues were derivethfproduct sales to international
customers, none of whom individually accountednimre than 5% of total revenues. As of May 31, 2@%stco Wholesale Corporation
represented approximately 21% of total accountsivable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatetiea carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets issorea by comparison of the carrying amount of $weato the net undiscounted future cash

flow expected to be generated from the assetelfuture undiscounted cash flows are not sufficiemecover the carrying value of the ass
the assets’ carrying value is adjusted to fair @alu
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies(continued)

The Company regularly evaluates its Idingd assets for indicators of possible impairme@n July 16, 2010, Aesthetic Science !
the rights to its Smartfil™ Injector System. Thenipany evaluated its cost method investment fomimpent, utilizing a discounted cash
flow analysis under the terms of the purchase agee¢ Based on the terms of the agreement, thep@oyrhas determined that its
investment is other than temporarily impaired dratéfore recorded an impairment loss of $1.0 mmlas of May 30, 2010.

Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments are primardynposed of marketable debt securities, commereiat-trade payables, grower
advances, and notes receivable, as well as long#ietes receivables and debt instruments. Fot-s@on instruments, the historical carrying
amount is a reasonable estimate of fair valuer \Fdiles for long-term financial instruments nadiy marketable are estimated based upon
discounted future cash flows at prevailing markétriest rates. Based on these assumptions, maaagbatieves the fair market values of
the Company’s financial instruments are not mallgrdifferent from their recorded amounts as of M&g; 2010.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make
required payments and sales discounts. The allosvion doubtful accounts is based on review ofaerall condition of accounts receivable
balances and review of significant past due acaounhe allowance for doubtful accounts is basedpatific identification of past due
amounts and a general reserve for accounts ovdagfpast due. The changes in the Company’s atioegafor doubtful accounts are
summarized in the following table (in thousands).

Additions
Balance at beginnin¢ charged to cost Balance at end ¢
of period and expenses Deductions period

Year ended May 25, 200

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and a@ed

advances receivab $ 20€ $ -$ 3% 16¢
Year ended May 31, 200

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and a@ed

advances receivab $ 16¢€ $ - $ 4$ 165
Year ended May 30, 201

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and sated

advances receivab $ 165 $ 68 $ (44) % 18¢

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from product sales is recognized when ikgqrersuasive evidence that an arrangement egigigsery has occurred, title
has transferred, the price is fixed and determaadnid collectibility is reasonably assured. Abmees are established for estimated

uncollectible amounts, product returns, and distobased on specific identification and historloakes.

The Company takes title to all produce it traded¥@npackages, and therefore, records revenuesamaf sales at gross amounts in
the Consolidated Statements of Income
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies(continued)

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance agtfounting guidance. Initial license fees are mlefeand amortized to revenue
over the period of the agreement when a contraststhe fee is fixed and determinable, and ctbidity is reasonably
assured. Noncancellable, nonrefundable licensedeerecognized over the period of the agreermaitiding those governing research and
development activities and any related supply agese entered into concurrently with the license mvtiee risk associated with
commercialization of a product is non-substantivéha outset of the arrangement.

Contract revenue for research and development (R&Bcorded as earned, based on the performaqueements of the
contract. Non-refundable contract fees for whioHfurther performance obligations exist, and themo continuing involvement by the
Company, are recognized on the earlier of whemp#yenents are received or when collection is assured

Other Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshithree months or less from date of purchase toimitvaas cash equivalents and
consists mainly of certificate of deposits (CDspmay market funds and U.S. Treasuries. Steort marketable securities consist of CDs
are FDIC insured and single A or better rated mipaldonds with original maturities of more thaneth months at the date of purchase
regardless of the maturity date as the Companysvitsaportfolio as available for use in its curreperations . The aggregate amount of CDs
included in marketable securities at May 30, 20dd ay 31, 2009 was $1.5 million and $2.1 millioespectively. The Company classifies
all debt securities with readily determined mankaties as “available for sale” The contractual maturities of the Company's niaiike
securities that are due in less than one yearsept&9.5 million of its marketable securities #émase due in one to two years represent the
remaining $10.9 million of the Company’s marketatdgeurities as of May 30, 2010. These investmamtslassified as marketable securities
on the consolidated balance sheet as of May 3@ aAd May 31, 2009 and are carried at fair markktes Unrealized gains and losses are
reported as a component of stockholders’ equitye dost of debt securities is adjusted for amditinaof premiums and discounts to
maturity. This amortization is recorded to intéiesome. Realized gains and losses on the saleaifable-for-sale securities are also
recorded to interest income and were not signifié@nthe fiscal years ended May 30, 2010 and Mhy2®09. During fiscal year 2010, the
Company received proceeds of $9.5 million fromdale of marketable securities. The cost of saear#iold is based on the specific
identification method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (ushegfirst-in, firstout method) or market. As of May 30, 2010 and May 300¢
inventories consisted of (in thousands):

May 30, May 31,
2010 2009
Finished good $ 7,22¢ % 2,10¢
Raw materials 6,86¢ 3,721
Work in progress 2,01z —
Inventories, net $ 16,107 $ 5,82¢

If the cost of the inventories exceeds their exg@charket value, provisions are recorded currdotlyhe difference between the ¢
and the market value. These provisions are detedribased on specific identification for unusabientory and an additional reserve, based
on historical losses, for inventory currently calesied to be useable.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies(continued)
Advertising Expense

Advertising expenditures for the Company are expéras incurred. Advertising expense for the Companfiscal years 2010,
2009 and 2008 was $557,000, $475,000 and $474.@8ectively.

Notes and Advances Receivable

Apio has made advances to produce growers forandgharvesting costs. Notes and advances receiwglbted to operating
activities are for the sourcing of crops for Apitssiness and notes and advances receivable rébategesting activities are for financing
transactions with third parties. Typically opengtiadvances are paid off within the growing sedkess than one year) from harvested
crops. Advances not fully paid during the currgritwing season are converted to interest beariligations, evidenced by contracts and
notes receivable. These notes and advances rbeas@ secured by perfected liens on land andépscand have terms that range from six
to twelve months. Notes receivable are periodig@Viewed (at least quarterly) for collectibilit reserve is established for any note or
advance deemed to not be fully collectible basathign estimate of the crop value or the fair valfihe security for the note or advance.

Related Party Transactions

Apio provides cooling and distributing services famms in which the Chairman of Apio (the “Apio Ghman”) has a financial
interest and purchases produce from those farnmo @so purchases produce from Beachside ProduCefdr sale to third
parties. Beachside Produce is owned by a groeptities and persons that supply produce to Apiduding the Apio Chairman. Revenues
and the resulting accounts receivable and costaafyet sales and the resulting accounts payablelassified as related party items in the
accompanying financial statements as of May 300201d May 31, 2009 and for the three years ended3@a2010.

Prior to the expiration of the leases in Deceml@®92 Apio leased, for approximately $310,000 omanual basis, agricultural land
that is owned by the Apio Chairman. Apio, in tusableased that land at cost to growers who weigated to deliver product from that land
to Apio for value added products. There was gdlyema net statement of income impact to Apio assult of these leasing activities but
Apio created a guaranteed source of supply fovéthee added business. Apio had loss exposuresole#éising activity to the extent that it
was unable to sublease the land. For the yearslévidg 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and May 25, 2008 Gbepany subleased all of the land
leased from the Apio Chairman and received subleasene of $150,000, $316,000 and $344,000, resdgtwhich is substantially equal
to the amount the Company paid to lease that landuch periods.

Apio's domestic commodity vegetable business whistedBeachside Produce, effective June 30, 2008 Apio Chairman is a
12.5% owner in Beachside Produce. During fiscaly2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company recognizeshues of $853,000, $1.3 million
and $1.6 million, respectively, from the sale afquicts to Beachside Produce and royalty revenu$8,d80 and $31,000, respectively, from
the use by Beachside Produce of Apio’s trademafke related accounts receivable from Beachsidduemare classified as related party in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance SheetsMsp0, 2010 and May 31, 2009.

All related party transactions are monitored qubrtey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of
Directors.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Experdifor major improvements are capitalized wielgairs and maintenance are
charged to expense. Depreciation is expensedstmaight-line basis over the estimated useful lviethe respective assets, generally three to
thirty years for buildings and leasehold improvetsamnd three to seven years for furniture and fiegucomputers, capitalized software,
machinery, equipment and autos. Leasehold impremésrare amortized over the lesser of the econbifi@iof the improvement or the life of
the lease on a straight-line basis.
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The Company capitalizes software development dosigternal use in accordance with accounting goak. Capitalization of
software development costs begins in the applicatevelopment stage and ends when the asset edalato service. The Company
amortizes such costs using the straight-line bmasss estimated useful lives of three to seven ye@le Company did not capitalize any
software development costs during fiscal years 20112D09.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised stbower relationships with an estimated usefuldiféwelve years and
trademarks/trade names and goodwill with indefiites (collectively, “intangible assets”), whidhet Company recognized in accordance
with accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisitibhifecore in April 2010, our Hyaluronan-based Biatarials reporting unit, (ii) upon the
acquisition of Apio in December 1999, which corssist our Food Products Technology and Commoditgifigareporting units and (iii) from
the repurchase of all non controlling interestthim common stock of Landec Ag in December 2006cofioting guidance defines goodwiill
“the excess of the cost of an acquired entity demet of the estimated fair values of the asssisired and the liabilities assumed at date of
acquisition.” All intangible assets, including givall, associated with the acquisitions of Lifecened Apio were allocated to the Hyaluronan-
based Biomaterials and Food Products Technologyrtieg unit, respectively, pursuant to accountjgdance based upon the allocation of
assets and liabilities acquired and consideratad for each reporting unit. The consideratiorddar the Commaodity Trading reporting unit
approximated its fair market value at the time ajfusition, and therefore no intangible assets weterded in connection with the
Company’s acquisition of this reporting unit. Gadilassociated with the Technology Licensing rejay unit consists entirely of goodwiill
resulting from the repurchase of the Landec Ag camtrolling interests.

The Company tests its intangible assets for impaitmat least annually, in accordance with accogrgimdance. When evaluating
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairmeatcounting guidance requires the Company to contpartair value of the asset to its
carrying value to determine if there is an impaintiess. When evaluating goodwill for impairmernt¢caunting guidance requires the
Company to first compare the fair value of the réipg unit to its carrying value to determine ietle is an impairment loss. If the fair value
of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying valuggdywill is not considered impaired; thus applicataf the second step of the two-step
approach under accounting guidance is not requifggplication of the intangible assets impairmessts requires significant judgment by
management, including identification of reportingts, assignment of assets and liabilities to repounits, assignment of intangible asse
reporting units, and the determination of the Yailue of each indefinite-lived intangible asset agbrting unit based upon projections of
future net cash flows, discount rates and markdtipies, which judgments and projections are inh#dyeuncertain.

Property, plant and equipment and finite-lived ingfible assets are reviewed for possible impairmdrenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset (or asset group) may not loveeable. The Company’s impairment
review requires significant management judgmeritiiog estimating the future success of produ@djrfuture sales volumes, revenue and
expense growth rates, alternative uses for thésaaed estimated proceeds from the disposal adigkets. The Company conducts quarterly
reviews of idle and underutilized equipment, andaws business plans for possible impairment irtdisa Impairment occurs when the
carrying amount of the asset (or asset group) ebscite estimated future undiscounted cash flowsth@dmpairment is viewed as other than
temporary. When impairment is indicated, an impaintbrcharge is recorded for the difference betwherasses book value and its estimat
fair value. Depending on the asset, estimated/édire may be determined either by use of a disezlcésh flow model or by reference to
estimated selling values of assets in similar diowli The use of different assumptions would inseear decrease the estimated fair value of
assets and would increase or decrease any impdimeasurement.
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The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangi@gsets and goodwill for impairment as of July Z8,@2and determined that no
adjustments to the carrying values of the intamgéssets were necessary as of that date. Onterdybasis, the Company considers the 1
to update its most recent annual tests for possilpp@irment of its intangible assets, based on igament’'s assessment of changes in its
business and other economic factors since the reosht annual evaluation. Such changes, if sianiti or material, could indicate a need to
update the most recent annual tests for impairmkthte intangible assets during the current peridlde results of these tests could lead to
write-downs of the carrying values of the intangibksets in the current period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCpfreach to develop an estimate of fair value. Dl# approach recognizes
that current value is premised on the expectedpectfuture economic benefits. Indications ofumare developed by discounting projected
future net cash flows to their present value aita that reflects both the current return requirgsef the market and the risks inherent in the
specific investment. The market approach was setl to value the Food Products Technology, Hyahmdrased Biomaterials and
Technology Licensing reporting units (the “Repagtidnits”) because insufficient market comparables exist &blenthe Company to devel
a reasonable fair value of its intangible asse&stduhe unique nature of each of the Company'oReg Units.

The DCF approach requires the Company to exergdgjient in determining future business and findrici@casts and the related
estimates of future net cash flows. Future net flasés depend primarily on future product salesjchitare inherently difficult to predict.
These net cash flows are discounted at a ratedfiatts both the current return requirements efrttarket and the risks inherent in the
specific investment.

The DCF associated with the Technology Licensimgreéng unit is based on the Monsanto Agreemertt Wibnsanto. Under the
Monsanto Agreement, Monsanto has agreed to paydcaAd a license fee of $2.6 million in cash pemyfeafive years beginning in
December 2006, and a fee of $4.0 million if Monsagiects to terminate the Agreement, or $10.0 omillf Monsanto elects to purchase the
rights to the exclusive field. If the purchaseioptis exercised before December 2011, or if Motsatects to terminate the Monsanto
Agreement, all annual license fees that have nen Ipaid to Landec Ag will become due upon the paselor termination. As of May 30,
2010, the fair value of the Technology Licensingaming unit, as determined by the DCF approacheeded its book value, and therefore
intangible asset impairment was deemed to exike discount rate utilized approximates the risk freerest rate as the cash flow stream is
guaranteed under the terms of the Agreement. Ant#éase in the discount rate would not have aifgignt impact on the excess of fair
value over book value.

The DCF associated with the Food Products Techgalggorting unit is based on management’s five-yeajection of revenues,
gross profits and operating profits by fiscal yaad assumes a 37% effective tax rate for each yanagement takes into account the
historical trends of Apio and the industry categsiin which Apio operates along with inflationaagtors, current economic conditions, new
product introductions, cost of sales, operatinge@ses, capital requirements and other relevantvdaa developing its projection. As of
May 30, 2010, the fair value of the Food Produashhology reporting unit, as determined by the @proach, exceeded its book value,
and therefore, no intangible asset impairment veasned to exist. A 1% increase in the discountwatgld not have a significant impact on
the excess of fair value over book value .
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The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets associated with our acquisition aédafe on April 30, 2010, was
determined using a DCF model based on managenfamtgear projections of revenues, gross profitd aperating profits by fiscal year and
assumes a 33% effective tax rate for each yearalylament takes into account the historical trendsfetore and the industry categories in
which Lifecore operates along with inflationary tiars, current economic conditions, new producbidiictions, cost of sales, operating
expenses, capital requirements and other relexaatwhen developing its projection. The trade nartangible asset was valued using the
relief from royalty valuation method and the cuséomrelationship intangible asset was valued udiegnulti-period excess earnings method.
The fair value of goodwill was calculated as theess of consideration paid, including the fair eatfi contingent consideration under the
terms of the purchase agreement, over the faievafithe tangible and intangible assets acquireslliabilities assumed. The Company
updated its analysis of the fair value of the im&g-lived intangible assets and goodwill as efahnual impairment analysis date, concluding
that the fair value of the Hyaluronan-based Biomal® reporting unit, as determined by the DCF apph, exceeded its book value, and
therefore, no intangible asset impairment was deamexist. There were no impairment indicatorsitdied by the Company in its analysis
of impairment associated with the acquired finited intangible assets.

Investment in Non-Public Company

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Science ligedat cost and adjusted for impairment loss&ice there is no readily
available market value information, the Companyqaically reviews this investment to determinerfyaother than temporary declines in
value have occurred based on the financial stalgitid viability of Aesthetic Science. Aesthetidge®ce has recently sold the rights to its
Smartfil™ Injector System on July 16, 2010. Landas evaluated its cost method investment for impet, utilizing a discounted cash fl
analysis under the terms of the purchase agreenBased on the terms of the agreement, the Comipasgetermined that its investment is
other than temporarily impaired and therefore réedran impairment loss of $1.0 million as of May 3010, which is classified as part of
other expenses in the Consolidated Statementsofrla. The Company’s carrying value of its investtie Aesthetic Sciences, net of the
impairment loss, is $792,000 at May 30, 2010 andp®rted as a component of other non current@sset

Deferred Revenue

Cash received in advance of services performeddjp@lly revenues related to upfront license fess)recorded as deferred
revenue. At May 30, 2010, $4.3 million has beaognized as a liability for deferred license feeeraes and $91,000 for advances from
customers. At May 31, 2009, $6.3 million has besognized as a liability for deferred license fieeenues and $130,000 for advances from
customers and on ground lease payments from growers

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss consists of net income and etmaprehensive income for which Landec includesigka in unrealized gains
and losses on its interest rate swap with Wellg&&ank, N.A. Accumulated other comprehensive isseported as a component of
stockholders’ equity. For the fiscal year ended/N8, 2010, the comprehensive loss from the urmedlioss on the interest rate swap, net of
$105,000 of income taxes, was $179,000. Therenmammprehensive income or loss in the fiscal yeaded May 31, 2009 and May 25,
2008.

Non Controlling Interest
In connection with the acquisition of Apio, Landmajuired Apio’s 60% general partner interest incA@ooling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the cdidated financial statements of Landec for all pds presented. The non controlling inte

balance of $1.7 million and $1.8 million at May 2010 and May 31, 2009, respectively, is comprisethe limited partners’ interest in Apio
Cooling.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordattbeaccounting guidance which requires that defittax assets and liabiliti
be recognized using enacted tax rates for theteffdemporary differences between the book andtses of recorded assets and
liabilities. The Company maintains valuation allowees when it is likely that all or a portion odieferred tax asset will not be realized.
Changes in valuation allowances from period togqakare included in the Company’s income tax provisn the period of change. In
determining whether a valuation allowance is waednthe Company takes into account such factopsiasearnings history, expected fut
earnings, unsettled circumstances that, if unfeslgnaesolved, would adversely affect utilizationaofleferred tax asset, carryback and
carryforward periods, and tax strategies that cpolentially enhance the likelihood of realizatmfra deferred tax asset. At May 30, 2010,
Company had $390,000 valuation allowance agairferidel tax assets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Compangldshes accruals for uncertain tax positionse #x-contingency accruals are
adjusted in light of changing facts and circumsgsnsuch as the progress of tax audits, case ldwrarrging legislation. The Company
recognizes interest and penalties related to usioaidx positions as a component of income tax es@eThe Company’s effective tax rate
includes the impact of tax-contingency accrualsassidered appropriate by management.

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemdor which the Company has accrued, is auditadifinally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies bysgidtion. While it is often difficult to predict ¢éhfinal outcome or the timing of resolution of
any particular tax matter, the Company believetaitscontingency accruals are adequate to addressrktax contingencies. Favorable
resolution of such matters could be recognizedraslaction to the Company’s effective tax ratehi@ year of resolution. Unfavorable
settlement of any particular issue could increhsesffective tax rate. Any resolution of a tax ssoay require the use of cash in the year of
resolution. The Company’s tax-contingency accrasdspresented in the balance sheet within accrakdities.

Per Share Information

Accounting guidance requires the presentation sichend diluted earnings per share. Basic easrpeg share excludes any dilutive effects
of options, warrants and convertible securities isr@bmputed using the weighted average numbeomfton share outstanding. Diluted
earnings per share reflects the potential dilutfiGgecurities or other contracts to issue commonlstvere exercised or converted into
common stock. Diluted common equivalent sharesisbof stock options using the treasury stock weth

The following table sets forth the computation dfiéd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended Ended
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200t

Numerator:
Net income $ 3982 % 7,73C $ 13,54
Denominator

Weighted average shares for basic net income pee 26,38 26,20z 26,06¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 251 54¢ 86€
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipaire 26,63 26,75 26,93t
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.1t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5C

Options to purchase 1,016,239, 357,514 and 96 ,8&@s of Common Stock at a weighted average ergpcice of $7.62, $9.72 al
$13.32 per share were outstanding during fiscalsyeaded May 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and May 2582f#spectively, but were not
included in the computation of diluted net inconee ghare because the options’ exercise price wesdday than the average market price
of the Common Stock and, therefore, the effect didnd antidilutive.
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Cost of Sales

The Company includes in cost of sales all the ced#ged to the sale of products in accordance getierally accepted accounting
principles. These costs include the following: raaterials (including produce, seeds, packaginignggs and fermentation and purification
supplies), direct labor, overhead (including indirabor, depreciation, and facility related cosisyl shipping and shipping related costs.

Research and Development Expenses

Costs related to both research contracts and Coyvfpaded research is included in research and dpwsdnt expenses. Costs to
fulfill research contracts generally approximate torresponding revenue. Research and develomuoststare primarily comprised of
salaries and related benefits, supplies, travetesgs, consulting expenses and corporate allosation

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records compensation expense for staske awards issued to employees and directorslirarge for services
provided based on the estimated fair value of th&rds on their grant dates and is recognized dweerequired service periods. The cash
flows resulting from the tax benefit due to tax detibns in excess of the compensation expense mezyfor those options (excess tax
benefit) are classified as financing activitieshittie statement of cash flows. The Company’s sbaded awards include stock option grants
and restricted stock unit awards (RSUS).

During the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010, the Camyprecognized stock-based compensation expersk @t6,000 which
included $474,000 for restricted stock unit awadd $542,000 for stock option grants. During tkedl year ended May 31, 2009, the
Company recognized stock-based compensation expé®833,000 which included $308,000 for restrictéatk unit awards and $625,000
for stock option grants. During the fiscal yeaded May 25, 2008, the Company recognized stockebesmpensation expense of $871,000
which included $306,000 for restricted stock ummaads and $565,000 for stock option grants.

The following table summarizes the stock-based eoraation by income statement line item:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended Ended
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200¢
Research and developm $ 185,000 $ 171,000 $  148,00(
Sales, general and administrative 831,00( 762,00( 723,00(
Total stocl-based compensation expel $ 1,016,000 $ 933,00( $ 871,00(

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensaigense, is based on the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Compangsuhe straight line single option method to catibnd recognize the fair value of
stockbased compensation arrangements. Compensationsxfmr all stock option and restricted stock awaydnted prior to May 29, 20
will continue to be recognized using the straighe multiple-option method. In addition, the Caanp uses historical data to estimate pre-
vesting forfeitures and records stock-based congtemsexpense only for those awards that are eggdotvest and revises those estimates in
subsequent periods if the actual forfeitures dififem the prior estimates.

Valuation Assumptions

As of May 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and May 25, 2G88,fair value of stock option grants was estimatsidg the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The following weighted avesagssumptions were used:
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended Ended
May 30, 201( May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200t
Expected life (in years 3.7¢ 3.7¢ 4.4C
Risk-free interest rat 1.55% 2.35% 5.02%
Volatility 0.52 0.52 0.4¢
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requiresitipait of highly subjective assumptions, includihg expected stock price
volatility. The change in the volatility in thesfial years ended May 31, 2009, May 25, 2008 and Map007 is a result of basing the
volatility on Landec's stock price.

The weighted average estimated fair value of Lamahegloyee stock options granted at grant date rhariees during the fiscal
years ended May 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 and Map@838 was $2.37, $2.74 and $5.74 per share, regphrctiNo stock options wel
granted above or below grant date market pricesgltine fiscal years ended May 30, 2010, May 3D0928nd May 25, 2008.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted fair value measurement acemugtiidance on May 26, 2008 for financial assetkl@bilities and for
financial instruments and certain other items &tfalue. The Company did not elect the fair vadgpgion for any of its eligible financial
assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a thiegehierarchy for fair value measurements, whidbrjtizes the inputs used in measur
fair value as follows:

. Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primeisléntical instruments in active markets.

. Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices in active markwds @are observable either directly or indirectlyotigh corroboratic
with observable market dat

. Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ttelibr no market data, which would require the Campto develop its own
assumptions

As of May 30, 2010, the Company held certain asbetisare required to be measured at fair valua @turring basis. These
included the Company’s cash equivalents and masketecurities for which the fair value is deteraetirbased on observable inputs that are
readily available in public markets or can be dedifrom information available in publicly quoted mkets. Therefore, the Company has
categorized its cash equivalents and marketableies as Level 1. As of May 30, 2010, the Compeetorded to Other Comprehensive
Loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets an ureddbss of $179,000, net of taxes of $105,000,rasat of the interest rate swap. The
unrealized loss was based on a Level 2 hierarahfafiovalue measurements. If the interest ratepsis terminated or the debt borrowed is
paid off prior to April 30, 2015, the amount of eatized loss or gain included in Other Comprehenbicome (Loss) would be reclassifiec
earnings. The Company has no intentions of tertimigahe interest rate swap or prepaying the delbité next twelve months. The interest
rate swap liability is included in other non-curréabilities as of May 30, 2010. The Company hasther financial assets or liabilities for
which fair value measurement has been adopted.

-68-




1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary ddignificant Accounting Policies(continued)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Pronouncemer

Accounting Standards Codificatic

Effective July 1, 2009, the FASB Accounting Stamtda€Codification (FASB ASC) is the single sourceofthoritative accounting
principles recognized by the FASB to be appliechbg-governmental entities in the preparation ddficial statements in conformity with
GAAP. The adoption of the FASB ASC does not impgaetCompany’s consolidated financial statementgdver, the Company’s references
to accounting literature within its notes to th@densed consolidated financial statements have flegésed to conform to the FASB ASC
beginning with the fiscal quarter ending Novemb@y 2009.

Business Combinatior

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidancehgignificantly changes the financial accounting agporting for business
combination transactions. The new guidance reqtiresicquiring entity in a business combinatioretmbgnize all (and only) the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the transadiuth establishes the acquisition date fair valub@sneasurement objective for all assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business gmatibn. Certain provisions of the new guidancd,winong other things, impact the
determination of acquisition-date fair value of sigieration paid in a business combination (inclgdiontingent consideration); exclude
transaction costs from acquisition accounting; elmahge accounting practices for acquired contingenacquisition-related restructuring
costs, in-process research and development, indieatiin assets, and tax benefits. The Companytaddape new guidance on June 1, 2009.
The Company acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 23 wabject to the provisions of this new guidancelen which the Company recognizing
$2.7 million of expenses related to the acquisitaring the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010. Theperses are classified as other expenses.

Non Controlling Interest

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidance nggthect to non controlling interests in consokddinancial statements. The
new guidance requires the reporting of all non k@dling interests as a separate component of stdkhs’ equity, the reporting of
consolidated net income (loss) as the amount atafide to both the parent and the non controlliigrests and the separate disclosure of net
income (loss) attributable to the parent and tonthre controlling interests. Changes in a parenwsarship interest while the parent retains its
controlling interest will be accounted for as eguransactions and any retained non controllingtggavestment upon the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary will be initially measured at fair wal Other than the reporting requirements descrede which require retrospective
application, the provisions of the new guidancetaree applied prospectively. The Company adogtechew guidance on June 1, 2009 and
such adoption did not have a material impact orCithmpany’s results of operations or financial posifor the fiscal year ended May 30,
2010, however, as required, presentation of notralling interests has been conformed to the rexménts of the new guidance for all
periods presented.

Collaborative Arrangements

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidanceeraimy the accounting for collaborative arrangeméwhich does not
establish a legal entity within such arrangemeértte consensus indicates that costs incurred amshves generated from transactions with
third parties (i.e. parties outside of the collatime arrangement) should be reported by the cofktbrs on the respective line items in their
income statements based upon their role as eitiraipal or agent. Additionally, the consensus jdeg that income statement
characterization of payments between the parti¢tgpiana collaborative arrangement should be baped existing authoritative guidance;
analogy to such guidance if not within their scomea reasonable, rational, and consistently agal@ounting policy election. The Company
adopted the new guidance on June 1, 2009 and slogti@n did not have an impact on the Company’slte®f operations or financial
position for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010.
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Fair Value Disclosures in Interim Repol

In April 2009, the FASB issued new guidance thguiees disclosures about the fair value of finahicistruments at interim
reporting periods. The new guidance is effectoeiriterim reporting periods ending after June2()9. The Company adopted the new
guidance on June 1, 2009 and such adoption didawe an impact on the Company’s results of operatiw financial position for the fiscal
year ended May 30, 201

Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued new guidance thabéistees general standards of accounting for antladisre of events that occur
after the balance sheet date but before the finhstEtements are issued or are available to bedssThe Company adopted the new guid
on June 1, 2009 and such adoption did not impa&c€Cttmpany’s consolidated financials statementse Gtmpany determined that the basis
for the date through which the entity has evaluatdusequent events represents the date the fihatatiaments were file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Fair Value Measuremen

In January 2010, the FASB new guidance whereawtiap entities will have to provide information@lt movements of assets
among Levels 1 and 2; and a reconciliation of pasels, sales, issuance, and settlements of aatalitgd with a Level 3 method, of the three-
tier fair value hierarchy established by previoosaanting guidance. The new guidance also clarifie existing guidance to require fair
value measurement disclosures for each class efsaasd liabilities. The new guidance is effecfiveinterim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2009 for Level 1 amlis2losure requirements and after December 15) &Yl evel 3 disclosure
requirements. The Company adopted the guidanéegifiscal 2010 and such adoption did not impaet@ompany’s consolidated financial
statements other than the required disclosures.

Recently Issued Pronouncemer

Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whiaglnaisithe evaluation criteria to identify the prignbeneficiary of a variable
interest entity. Additionally, the new guidancgu@&es ongoing reassessments of whether an ergetiprihe primary beneficiary of the
variable interest entity. The Company will addpsthew guidance in fiscal year 2011 and does xyp¢e a material impact on the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements asualtref the new guidance

Revenue Recognitic

In October 2009, the FASB issued new guidancelatiom to "Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangem&nt The new standard
changes the requirements for establishing sepandit® of accounting in a multiple element arrangetnaad requires the allocation of
arrangement consideration to each deliverable tealsed on the relative selling price. The Corgpgaans to early adopt these standards as
of the beginning of fiscal 2011 for new deals oraging after May 30, 2010. There will be no matkyimodified deals as a result of the
adoption. The Company is not able to reasonablgnast the effect of adopting these standards amdutnancial periods as the impact will
vary based on the nature and volume of new muitigléezerable revenue arrangements in any giverogeri
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2. Acquisition of Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.

On April 30, 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Cpany acquired all of the common stock of LifecorerBedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”)
under a Stock Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agme&nie order to expand its product offerings amdez into new markets. Lifecore was
a privately-held hyaluronan-based biomaterials camydocated in Chaska, Minnesota. Lifecore isgpially involved in the development
and manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronanagurally occurring polysaccharide that is widdigtributed in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humangddiition, Lifecore has licensed a sodium hyaluremabss-linking technology from The
Cleveland Clinic Foundation (“CCF”") designed toyide a development vehicle for a product platfoonntroduce new products for the
existing medical segments, as well as potentialy market segments. Furthermore, Lifecore is pogsother development activities to
utilize its fermentation and aseptic filling cagéhss for non-hyaluronan based products.

Under the Purchase Agreement, the aggregate coasaepayable by the Company to the former Lifecstockholder at closing consistec
$40.0 million in cash, which includes $6.6 millidrat is temporarily held in an escrow account muse the indemnification rights of Landec
and other indemnitees with respect to certain mgtiecluding breaches of representations, warargnd covenants of Lifecore included in
the Purchase Agreement. The escrow account lieindame of the seller and Landec’s right undeetiteow agreement consist solely of its
ability to file a claim against the escrowlin addition, the Company may be required to pagaish up to an additional $10.0 million in
earnout payments based on Lifecore achieving certaienue targets in calendar years 2011 and 2012.

In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, eachdsand outstanding share of Lifecore’s capitatksteas cancelled and
converted into the right to receive the purchasesideration described in the Purchase Agreement.

The operating results of Lifecore are reportechen@ompany’s financial statements beginning Ma301L0, in the Hyaluronan-based
Biomaterials operating segment. Included in the gamy’s results for the fiscal year 2010 was $1.lianiof Lifecore’s net sales. Lifecore’s
total net sales for the twelve months ended May2B@p was $20.7 million, which include net sala@smio the Company’s acquisition of
Lifecore. Lifecore’s total net sales for the twelmenths ended May 31, 2009 was $22.9 million.

The following table provides unaudited pro formaulés of operations of the Company for fiscal yexr$0 and 2009 as if the
acquisition of Lifecore had occurred as of the haiig of each of the fiscal periods presented.Tieudited pro forma results include certain
recurring purchase accounting adjustments sucle®diation and amortization expense on acquimgiliée and intangible assets and
assumed interest costs. However, unaudited progfoesults do not include certain transaction-relatests including the effect of a step-of
the value of acquired inventory, cost savings bepeffects of potential integration of Lifecorecadrdingly, such results of operations are
necessarily indicative of the actual results dsefacquisition had occurred at the beginning efdates indicated or that may result in the
future.

Year ended May30, Y ear endedMay

2010 31, 2009
Pro forma net incom $ 1,72 $ 8,65¢
Basic net income per she $ 0.07 $ 0.3¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.0€ $ 0.3

These amounts have been calculated after applggn@ompany’s accounting policies and adjusting#iselts of Lifecore to reflect the
adjustments to depreciation expense and amortizaipense assuming the fair value adjustmentsofpepty and equipment and intangible
assets had been applied on May 26, 2008 and e gttexpense on long-term debt entered into ijunotion with the acquisition as if the
debt had been borrowed on May 26, 2008. The pmdaxdjustments were tax affected at the Compalffigstive tax rate for the periods
presented. For the fiscal year ended May 30, 20iE0proforma net income includes actual expeniskesexore incurred prior to the close of
the acquisition of $3.1 million for the terminatiohits stock option plan, establishing reservesfatential bad debts and unusable inventory
and for direct acquisition related expenses, prigniegal expenses.
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The acquisition date fair value of the total comsadion transferred was $49.65 million, which cetesi of the following (in
thousands):

Cash $ 40,00(
Contingent consideration 9,65(
Total $ 49,65(

The assets and liabilities of Lifecore were recdrdetheir respective estimated fair values asi@fdate of the acquisition using
generally accepted accounting principles for bussreombinations. The excess of the purchase pvieetbe fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired has been allocated to goodwilld@iticepresents a substantial portion of the asitjon proceeds because the Lifecore trade
name provides the Company with entry into the gngwhigher margin hyaluronan product market. Mansgy® believes that there is further
growth potential by extending Lifecore’s productds into new channels.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of Lifecore’s assets acquired and liabiliissumed and related deferred
income taxes, effective April 30, 2010, the date @ompany obtained control of Lifecore. Changahédfair values of the assets acquired
liabilities assumed may be recorded in future mkxias the Company finalizes its estimates of thevédue.

(00C's)

Cash and cash equivalel $ 31¢
Accounts receivable, n 1,86(
Inventories, ne 9,00¢
Property and equipme 25,56¢
Other tangible asse 1,45¢
Intangible assets 7,90(
Total identifiable assets acquir 46,10¢
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (2,989
Long-term debi (4,157
Deferred taxes (3,109
Total liabilities assumed (10,249
Net identifiable assets acquir 35,857
Goodwill 13,79:
Net assets acquired $ 49,65(

The Company used a combination of the market astiajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tfexbie assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

Inventory
A step-up in the value of inventory of $523,000 wesorded in the allocation of the purchase praseld on valuation estimates.

During fiscal year 2010, $27,000 of this step-ups wharged to cost of products sold as the invent@ay sold. The remaining step-up is
expected to be charged to cost of products sdid¢al 2011 as the inventory is sold.
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Intangible Asset:

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a DCF model rardimcome valuation
methodology, based on management’s five-year piiojecof revenues, gross profits and operatingitsroly fiscal year and assumes a 33%
effective tax rate for each year. Management takesaccount the historical trends of Lifecore dinel industry categories in which Lifecore
operates along with inflationary factors, currecdr@omic conditions, new product introductions, adstales, operating expenses, capital
requirements and other relevant data when devejdfsrprojection. The Company believes that thellewd timing of cash flows
appropriately reflect market participant assumidrhe projected cash flows from these intangitdese based on key assumptions such as
estimates of revenues and operating profits rekatéide intangibles over their respective foregastods. The resultant cash flows were then
discounted using a rate the Company believes isogppte given the inherent risks associated wéithentangible asset and reflect market
participant assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the Lifecore acquisition: trade nanaakied at $4.2 million, which
is considered to be an indefinite life asset amdetore will not be amortized; and customer baseedhat $3.7 million with a twelve year
useful life. The trade name intangible asset wasedbusing the relief from royalty valuation methartd the customer relationship intangible
asset was valued using the multi-period excessregrmethod.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oeefain values assigned to the assets acquiredalitities assumed was
$13.8 million, which represents the goodwill amoregulting from the acquisition which can be atttdble to its long history and future
prospects. None of the goodwill is expected to édudtible for income tax purposes. The Companitest goodwill for impairment on an
annual basis or sooner, if deemed necessary. Mapf30, 2010, there were no changes in the rezegramount of goodwill resulting from
the acquisition of Lifecore.

Liability for Contingent Consideratior

In addition to the cash consideration paid to trener shareholder of Lifecore, the Company mayeogiired to pay up to an
additional $10.0 million in earnout payments based.ifecore achieving certain revenue targets leragar years 2011 and 2012. The fair
value of the liability for the contingent considiéoa recognized on the acquisition date was $9.8komand is classified as a non current
liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets ablaf 30, 2010. The Company determined the faireaitthe liability for the contingent
consideration based on a probability-weighted disted cash flow analysis. This fair value measems based on significant imputs not
observed in the market and thus represents a Bewelasurement. The Company expects to pay the &itd million earn out during the
third quarter of fiscal year 2012.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The $2.4 million of net deferred tax liabilitiesstating from the acquisition was primarily relatedthe difference between the book
basis and tax basis of the intangible assets.

Acquisition-Related Transaction Costs

The Company recognized $2.7 million of acquisitiefated expenses that were expensed in the yeadévidy 30, 2010 and are
included in other expenses in the ConsolidateceB8tants of Income for the year ended May 30, 20diese expenses included investment
banker fees, legal and accounting fees and apj= fiéss.

3. Sale of Fielde’s Choice Direct and License Agreemer

On December 1, 2006, Landec sold its direct mangedind sales seed company FCD, which includeditiddf's Choice DirecP

and Heartland Hybri@ brands, to American Seeds, Inc., a wholly ownedislidry of Monsanto Company. The acquisition pfareFCD

was $50 million in cash paid at the close. Dufisgal year 2007, Landec recorded income from #ie, :iet of direct expenses and bonuses,
of $22.7 million. The income that was recordeddsal to the difference between the fair value@DFof $40 million and its net book value,
less direct selling expenses and bonuses. Indacoe with generally accepted accounting princjfhtesportion of the $50 million of
proceeds in excess of the fair value of FCD, or®iliion, was allocated to the technology licengee@ment described below and is being
recognized as revenue ratably over the five yegar t# the license agreement or $2 million per ymginning December 1, 2006. The fair
value was determined by management.
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3. Sale of Fielde’s Choice Direct and License Agreement (continuet

In December 2006, Landec also entered into a faa-go-exclusive technology license and polymepbuagreement (“the
Monsanto Agreement”) with Monsanto for the use ahtlec’s Intellicoatpolymer seed coating technology. Under the terhtieoMonsantc

Agreement, Monsanto has agreed to pay Landec Agréilflion per year in exchange for (1) a co-exohesiight to use Landec’s Intellicoat
temperature activated seed coating technology wadkel during the license period, (2) the right totlhe exclusive global sales and marketing
agent for the Intellicoat seed coating technol@md (3) the right to purchase the technology amg tiluring the five year term of the

Monsanto Agreement. Monsanto has also agreechtbdll operating costs, including all Intellicoa¢search and development, product
development and non-replacement capital costs gltine five year agreement period. For each ofifital years ended May 30, 2010, May
31, 2009 and May 25, 2008 Landec recognized $5libmin revenues and income from the Monsanto &grent.

The Agreement also provides for a fee payable twlea Ag of $4 million if Monsanto elects to termimshe agreement or $10 million if
Monsanto elects to purchase the rights to the sikadfield. If the purchase option is exercisetbleDecember 2011, or if Monsanto elects
to terminate the Agreement, all annual license &essupply payments that have not been paid tdé@Ag will become due upon the
purchase. If Monsanto does not exercise its psecbation by December 2011, Landec Ag will recéheetermination fee and all rights to

the Intellicoat seed coating technology will revert to Landec. @dingly, Landec will receive minimum guaranteegmpants of $17 million
for license fees and polymer supply payments avenyffears or $23 million in maximum payments if Manto elects to purchase Landec

Ag. The minimum guaranteed payments and the defayain of $2 million per year described above wiflult in Landec recognizing
revenue and operating income of $5.4 million paryer fiscal years 2008 through 2011 and $2.7iomilper year for fiscal years 2007 and
2012. The incremental $6 million to be receivethia event Monsanto exercises the purchase optistéen deferred and will be recognized
upon the exercise of the purchase option. Thevidire of the purchase option was determined byag@ment to be less than the amount of
the deferred revenue.

If Monsanto elects to purchase the rights to tbensed fields, a gain or loss on the sale willdo®gnized at the time of purchase. If
Monsanto exercises its purchase option, Landecotxp@ enter into a new long-term supply agreemattt Monsanto pursuant to which
Landec would continue to be the exclusive supmifdntellicoat polymer materials to Monsanto.

4. License Agreement:

In December 2005, Landec entered into an exclgigasing agreement with Aesthetic Sciences Cotjmord“Aesthetic Science$,
a medical device company. Aesthetic Scienceslpmidiec an upfront license fee of $250,000 for thausive rights to use Landec's
Intelimer 0 materials technology for the development of derfillats worldwide under the agreement. Landec walko receive royalties
on the sale of products incorporating Landec’snetdgy. In addition, the Company received shafgweferred stock originally valued at
$1.3 million which represented a 19.9% ownershiprest in Aesthetic Sciences as of December 2005.

As part of the original agreement with AesthetieSces, Landec was to receive additional shares tippcompletion of a specific
milestone. In November 2006, that milestone watand as a result Landec received an additional0800shares of preferred stock
originally valued at $481,000. The receipt of #uklitional 800,000 preferred shares did not chargelec’s 19.9% ownership interest in
Aesthetic Sciences. During fiscal year 2009, AetithSciences completed a second preferred stdekirgg in which Landec did not
participate and as a result Landec’s ownershigastén Aesthetic Sciences was 17.3% as of May 800 and May 31, 2009. In July 2010,
Aesthetic Science sold the rights to its Smartfliijector System on July 16, 2010. Landec has etetlits investment in Aesthetic Sciences
for impairment, utilizing a discounted cash flowadysis under the terms of the purchase agreentaded on the terms of the recent sale, the
Company has determined that its investment is dti@@r temporarily impaired and therefore recordedrgairment charge of $1.0 million as
of May 30, 2010, which is included in other expen$be Company’s carrying value of its investmenfesthetic Sciences, net of the
impairment losses, is $782,000 and is includedlieionon current assets.
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4. License Agreements (continued

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivenise and research and development agreement wiBréducts and Chemicals,
Inc. (“Air Products”). Landec agreed to provide research and developrmppbst to Air Products for three years with a mutygtion for two
additional years. The license fees were recograzditense revenue over a three year period biegjifviarch 2006. In addition, in
accordance with the agreement, Landec receivesof@P& gross profit generated from the sale of pot&lby Air Products occurring after
April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s Intelinmeaterials. In 2008, an amendment was enteredintbhe Company whereby certain
technology applications were re-acquired as wethaslimination of an existing contract claim ider to refine the existing relationship. As
a result, the Company recorded a $600,000 expersaling, general and administrative expense dutie year ended May 25, 2008. The
Company recognized $600,000 in license revenuesruhis agreement in fiscal year 2009 and $800i00i@ense revenues under this
agreement during fiscal year 2008. During fisedng 2010, 2009 and 2008 the Company recognize?| @33 $1.1 million and $528,000,
respectively, for its share of the gross profidized from the sale of Intelimer-based product@\byProducts.

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgrasid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéonal, Inc. (“Chiquita”). Under

the terms of the amendment, the license for bananasxpanded to include additional exclusive §elding Landec’s BreatheWay®
packaging technology, and a new exclusive liceras added for the sale and marketing of avocadosnamgjos using Landec’s BreatheWay
packaging technology. The agreement with Chiguitach terminates in December 2011 (Chiquita hfigeayear renewal option), requires
Chiquita to pay annual gross profit minimums to d@nin order for Chiquita to maintain its exclusieense for bananas, avocados and

mangos. Under the terms of the agreement, Chiquitst notify Landec before Decembe¥ df each year whether it is going to maintain its
exclusive license for the following calendar yead ¢éhus agree to pay the minimums for that yeamdec was notified by Chiquita in
November 2009 that Chiquita wanted to maintaiexslusive license for calendar year 2010 and tlguseal at that time to pay the minimi
gross profit for calendar year 2010. During fisgadrs 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company recogfizedmillion, $2.2 million and $2.9
million, respectively, of gross profits from the iGhita agreement.

5. Repurchase of Subsidiary Common Stock and Options

On August 7, 2007, Landec repurchased all of thstanding common stock and options of Apio not avbg Landec at the fair
market value of each share as if all options hawhlexercised on that date. The fair market vapenchase price for all of Apio’s common
stock and options not owned by Landec was $20.Bomil After the repurchase, Apio became a whollkned subsidiary of Landec. In
accordance with accounting guidance, this repuecdabnot result in additional compensation expaaghe Company as all of the options
repurchased were fully vested at the time of tipairehase and the consideration paid was equaéttathvalue. The repurchase of Apio
options for $19.7 million was recorded as a redurcto equity and the repurchase of Apio’s commoglshot owned by Landec for $1.1
million was recorded to goodwill in accordance watttounting guidance.

6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the followimgtkiousands):
Years of
Useful Life May 30, 2010 May 31, 2009

Land and building 15-30 $ 41,99C $ 18,22¢
Leasehold improvemen 3-20 1,111 952
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equipraed autc 37 31,86¢ 24,16
Furniture and fixture 5-7 411 34¢
Construction in process 61€ 1,81¢

Gross property and equipme 75,99¢ 45,50¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (25,839 (22,767)

Net property and equipment $ 50,16. $ 22,747
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6.

Property and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation and amortization expenseHerfiscal years ended May 30, 2010, May 31, 2899 May 25, 2008 was $3.4 million, $
million and $3.2 million, respectively. There was equipment under capital leases at May 30, 20May 31, 2009. Amortization related
capitalized software was $39,000, $175,000 and $000for fiscal years ended May 30, 2010, May 3Q02 and May 25, 200

respectively. The unamortized computer softwastscat May 30, 2010 and May 31, 2009 were $260aB@0$299,000, respectively.

7.

Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for tiseal years ended May 30, 2010, May 31, 2009 aag ®b, 2008 by reportable

segment, are as follows (in thousands):

Food Hyaluronan-
Products  Technology based
Technology Licensing Biomaterialt Total
Balance as of May 27, 20( $ 21,40 $ — 8 — 3 21,40:
Gooduwill acquired/reclassified during the period 1,172 4,78( — 5,952
Balance as of May 25, 20( 22,57« 4,78( — 27,35¢
Goodwill acquired during the period 7 — — 7
Balance as of May 31, 20( 22,58 4,78( — 27,36
Goodwill acquired during the period — — 13,79: 13,79:
Balance as of May 30, 2010 $ 2258 % 4,78 $ 13,79¢ $  41,15¢

Information regarding Landec’s other intangibleetsss as follows (in thousands):
Trademarks &  Customer
Trade names Relationship Total

Balance as of May 27, 20( $ 8,22¢ $ — 3 8,22¢
Amortization expense — — —
Balance as of May 25, 20( 8,22¢ — 8,22¢
Amortization expense — — —
Balance as of May 31, 20( 8,22¢ — 8,22¢
Acquired during the perio 4,20( 3,70C 7,90(C
Amortization expense — (26) (26)
Balance as of May 30, 2010 $ 12,42¢ $ 3,67¢ $ 16,10:

Accumulated amortization as of May 30, 2010, May 2009 and May 25, 2008 was $3.4 million. The dmation expense fi

fiscal years 2011 through 2022 will be $308,000ymar.

8.

Stockholders Equity

On November 6, 2008, the Company reincorporated fGalifornia to Delaware. As a result of this m@rporation, the Company
has established an additional paid-in capital actand reclassified as of May 27, 2007, $129.5iomlfrom Common Stock to additional

paid-in capital.

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one votespare.
Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized two million shares efgored stock, and as of May 30, 2010 has no ousig preferred stock.
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8. Stockholders Equity (continued)
Common Stock and Stock Option Plans
At May 30, 2010, the Company had 3.7 million comnsbares reserved for future issuance under Larglgtyencentive plans.

On October 15, 2009, following stockholder appraaihe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Comypahe 2009 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) became effective arlaeed the Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. IByaes (including officers),
consultants and directors of the Company and lsidiaries and affiliates are eligible to parti¢gpa the Plan.

The Plan provides for the grant of stock optioratiflnonstatutory and incentive stock options), lsgrants, stock units and stock
appreciation rights. Awards under the Plan wilkelvéenced by an agreement with the Plan particgpantd 1.9 million shares of the
Company’s Common Stock (“Shares”) are availableafgard under the Plan. Under the Plan, no recipieyt receive awards during any
fiscal year that exceeds the following amountssi@ck options covering in excess of 500,000 Shdiigstock grants and stock units cover
in excess of 250,000 Shares in the aggregateij)ost(ick appreciation rights covering more tha®800 Shares. In addition, awards to non-
employee directors are discretionary. However, raaraployee director may not be granted awards ingsxo€30,000 Shares in the aggre
during any fiscal year. The exercise price of thBams was the fair market value of the Companyssn@on Stock on the date the options
were granted.

On October 14, 2005, following stockholder appratahe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Conmypdhe 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan (“2005 Plan”) became effective. POO5 Plan replaced the Company’s four then existigty plans and no shares remain
available for grant under those plans. Employesdy(ding officers), consultants and directors & @ompany and its subsidiaries and
affiliates eligible to participate in the 2005 PI&me 2005 Plan provided for the grant of stockars (both nonstatutory and incentive stock
options), stock grants, stock units and stock agpatien rights. Under the 2005 Plan, 861,038 Shaea initially available for awards, and
of May 30, 2010, 733,416 shares and options tohmse shares were outstanding. The exercise prite afptions was the fair market value
of the Company’s Common Stock on the date the nptieere granted.

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “DirestdPlan”) provided that each person who becamera amployee director of the
Company, who had not received a previous grangréeted a nonstatutory stock option to purchas@®0shares of Common Stock on the
date on which the optionee first became a non-eyegldlirector of the Company. Thereafter, on the daeach annual meeting of the
stockholders each non-employee director was graanteatiditional option to purchase 10,000 shar&oaofimon Stock if, on such date, he or
she had served on the Company’s Board of Diredtorat least six months prior to the date of suchual meeting. The exercise price of the
options was the fair market value of the Compa@dsnmon Stock on the date the options were grafiptions granted under this plan were
exercisable and vested upon grant.

The 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan authoribedBoard of Directors to grant non-qualified &toptions to employees,
including executive officers, and outside consultasf the Company. The exercise price of the ogtiwas equal to the fair market value of
the Company’s Common Stock on the date the optiere granted. Options were generally exercisabte westing and generally vested
ratably over four years and were subject to remselif exercised before being vested.

The 1996 Stock Option Plan authorized the Boardiodctors to grant stock purchase rights, incenstoek options or non-statutory
stock options to Landec executives. The exerciee @f the stock purchase rights, incentive stquioms and non-statutory stock options
could be no less than 100% of the fair market vafueandec’s Common Stock on the date the optiomewgranted. Options generally were
exercisable upon vesting, generally vested ratabdy four years and were subject to repurchaseeifoésed before being vested.
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8. Stockholders Equity (continued)

The New Executive Stock Option Plan authorizedBbard of Directors to grant non-statutory stockias to officers of Landec or
officers of Apio or Landec Ag whose employment watdich of those companies began after October 20, 20he exercise price of the non-
statutory stock options could be no less than 1868685%, for named executives and non-named exesutiespectively, of the fair market
value of Landec's Common Stock on the date th@ogtivere granted. Options generally were exerlgsgion vesting, generally vested
ratably over four years and were subject to remselif exercised before being vested.

Activity under all Landec equity incentive plansass follows:

Stock-Based Compensation Activity

Restricted Stock Outstanding Stock Options Outstanding
Weighted
RSU's and Number Weighted Average
Options of Average Number of Exercise
Available Restricted  Grant Date Stock Price
for Grant Shares Fair Value Options (FairValue)
Balance at May 27, 20( 706,73: 38,33t $ 8.8€ 2,061,33 $ 5.14
Granted (139,339 34,83t $ 13.32 104,50 $ 13.32
Awarded/Exercise: — (10,0079 $ 8.8¢ (267,149 $ 4.57
Forfeited — — — (1,739 3 3.8C
Balance at May 25, 20( 567,39t 63,16¢ $ 11.32 1,896,951 $ 5.6¢
Granted (506,254 127,50 $ 6.62 378,75( $ 6.62
Awarded/Exercise! — (10,0079 $ 13.32 (331,95) $ 3.6¢€
Forfeited 14,87¢ (3,666 $ 7.4F (11,209 $ 8.5¢
Plan shares expired (209) — — — —
Balance at May 31, 20C 75,80¢ 177,00 $ 7.8¢ 1,932,54. $ 6.1¢
Additional shares reserve 1,900,00! —
Granted (1,195,18) 309,43¢ % 5.8C 885,75( $ 5.7¢
Awarded/Exercise — (51,67) $ 8.11 (190,96) $ 4.3z
Forfeited 2,00( (1,000 $ 13.32 (1,000 $ 13.32
Plan shares expire — — — (169,500 $ 7.01
Terminated plan (16,97%) — — — —
Balance at May 30, 201 765,64« 433,77. $ 6.3t 2,456,82! $ 6.1¢

Included in exercises for fiscal years 2010, 200® 2008 are 4,634, 171,380 and 11,995 optionsectisgly, that were exercised
through a net share settlement transaction (no) tagiay for the exercise price of the options Hredrelated taxes due on the exercise.

The following table summarizes information concagnstock options outstanding and exercisable at 80a2010

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Aggregate  Number of Average
Exercise Number of Shares¢ Contractual Exercise Intrinsic Shares Exercise Aggregate
Prices Outstanding Life Price Value Exercisable Price Intrinsic  Value
(in years)
$ 1.660- $3.80( 366,38! 144 $ 3.3C $ 1,060,22. 366,38! $ 33C % 1,060,22.
$ 4.094- $6.13( 986,19« 54¢ $ 57: $ 457,76 348,44 $ 5.9C $ 100,62¢
$ 6.190- $8.86( 1,008,75I 52% $ 6.87 $ — 610,20 $ 724 $ —
$13.32 - $3.32 95,50( 4.0¢ ¢ 13.3. $ — 88,12¢ ¢ 13.3: $ —
$ 1.660- $13.3. 2,456,82! 4.7¢ $ 6.1 $ 1,517,99 1,413,161 $ 6.3¢ $ 1,160,85!

The weighted average remaining contractual lifegifons exercisable as of May 30, 2010 was 3.28syea

At May 30, 2010 and May 31, 2009 options to purehhg13,160 and 1,602,633 shares of Landec’s Con8tumk were vested,
respectively. No options have been exercised poiteing vested.
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8. Stockholders Equity (continued)

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pretax intrinsic value, basetherCompany’s closing stock price
of $6.19 on May 28, 2010, which would have beerired by holders of stock options had all holdérstack options exercised their stock
options that were in-the-money as of that date.tdted number of in-the-money stock options exatois as of May 30, 2010, was
approximately 715,000 shares. The aggregate sntriralue of stock options exercised during thediyear 2010 was $825,000.

Shares Subject to Vesting

The following table summarizes the activity relgtio unvested stock option grants and RSUs duhiadiscal year ended May 30,

2010:
Stock Options Restricted Stock
Weighted Weighted

Average Fair Average Fair

Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested at May 31, 20( 329,90¢ $ 2.7z 177,00 $ 7.8¢
Granted 885,75( $ 2.37  309,43¢ $ 5.8C
Vested/Awardet (170,989 $ 29¢ (51,67) % 8.11
Forfeited (1,000 $ 6.44 (1,000 $ 13.32
Unvested at May 30, 20! 1,043,66' $ 2.7z 433,77: $ 6.3t

As of May 30, 2010, there was $4.6 million of tatarecognized compensation expense related to t@tequity compensation
awards granted under the Company’s incentive gitaoks. Total expense is expected to be recognizedtbe weightegwverage period of 2
years for stock options and 1.7 years for restlisteck awards

9. Debt

On April 30, 2010 in conjunction with the acquisitiof Lifecore, Lifecore entered into a new $20limil Credit Agreement with
Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) with a fiveegir term that provides for equal monthly principayments plus interest. All of
Lifecore’s assets have been pledged to securesthtstturred pursuant to the Credit Agreement. deanis the guarantor of the debt.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratiistrial revenue bonds (“IRB”). These bonds vemsumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 2). The bondsaollateralized by a bank letter of credit whistsécured by a first mortgage on the
Company'’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In atuit the Company pays an annual remarketing fealéq.125% and an annual letter of
credit fee of 0.50%.

The Credit Agreement and the IRB contain certasttrigtive covenants, which require Lifecore to meatain financial tests,
including minimum levels of net income, minimum ckiratio, minimum fixed coverage ratio and maximecapital expenditures. As of May
30, 2010, the Company was in compliance with allec@nts.

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):
May 30, 2011 May 31, 200!
Credit agreement with Wells Fargo; due in monttdympents of $333,333 through April 30,

2015 with interest payable monthly at Libor plus @&t annun $ 19,66° $ —
Industrial revenue bond issued by Lifecore; duarinual payments through 2020 with interes

a variable rate set weekly by the bond remarkedgent (2.56% at May 30, 2010) 4,10z —
Total 23,77( —
Less current portion (4,527 —
Long-term portion $ 19,24¢ $ —

-79-




9. Debt (continued)

The future minimum principal payments of the Compsaudebt for each year presented are as followth@nsands):

Wells

Fargc IRB Total
FY2011 $ 4000 $ 521 $ 4,521
FY2012 4,00( 33¢ 4,33¢
FY2013 4,00( 351 4,351
FY2014 4,00( 362 4,36¢
FY2015 3,667 372 4,03¢
Thereafter — 2,15¢ 2,15¢

$ 19,660 $ 4,10 $  23,77(

The maturities on the IRB are held in a sinkingdf@tcount, recorded in Other Current Asset in tw@mpanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets, and is paid out each year on Seeteii.

10. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks pifiyrtarough borrowings under its Credit Agreemaiith Wells Fargo (see Note
9). Interest on all of the Company’s borrowingslenits Credit Agreement is based upon variabkrést rates. As of May 30, 2010, the
Company had borrowings of $19.7 million outstandimgler its Credit Agreement which bear interest &tte equal to the one-month LIBOR
plus 2%. As of May 30, 2010, the interest ratdoomowings under the Credit Agreement was accrair@)375%.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yasgrest rate swap agreement under the Company&t@mgreement which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swag designated as a cash flow hedge of futureeistt@ayments of LIBOR and has a notic
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for a-jiear period the interest rate at 4.24%
subject to market based interest rate risk on $#mof borrowings under its Credit Agreementhef Company’s obligations under the
interest rate swap transaction as to the scheghalgahents were guaranteed and secured on the saiBeabas its obligations under the Credit
Agreement. As of May 30, 2010, the Company reedrt Other Comprehensive Loss on the Consoliddédahce Sheets an unrealized loss
of $179,000, net of taxes of $105,000, as a redulte interest rate swap. The unrealized losshaaed Level 2 hierarchy for fair value
measurements. If the interest rate swap is teteihar the debt borrowed is paid off prior to A@gdl, 2015, the amount of unrealized loss or
gain included in Other Comprehensive Income (Less)ld be reclassified to earnings. The Companynaisitentions of terminating the
interest rate swap or prepaying the debt in the tvgalve months. The interest rate swap liabityncluded in other non current liabilities as
of May 30, 2010.

11. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes consisted of thiofeing (in thousands):

Year endec Year endec Year endes
May 30, 2011 May 31, 200" May 25, 200:

Current:
Federa $ 844 $ 2217 $ 1,557
State 17C 887 2,40¢
Total 1,01¢ 3,10(¢ 3,96¢
Deferred:
Federa 3,18¢ 2,06( 23Z
State 62 451 (844)
Total 3,24¢ 2,511 (611)
Income tax expense $ 4262 $ 5611 $ 3,35¢
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11. Income Taxes (continued

The actual provision for income taxes differs frira statutory U.S. federal income tax rate as #adl¢in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 30, 201 May 31, 200 May 25, 200
Provision at U.S. statutory rate | $ 2,88¢ $ 4,66¢ $ 5,91«
State income taxes, net of federal ber 217 1,02: 1,152
Change in valuation allowan: 39C — (3,647)
Tax-exempt interes (209) (196 —
Tax credit carryforward (102) (159 (510
Transaction Cosl 982
Other 98 274 44E
Total $ 426z $ 5611 $ 3,354

(1) Statutory rate was 35% for fiscal years 201I@%Pand 200¢

The decrease in the income tax expense in fis@al 3@10 compared to fiscal years 2009 is due ftPa @ecrease in net income
before taxes partially offset by an increase inGloenpanys effective tax rate to 51% in fiscal year 2010ngpn 42% in fiscal year 2009. T
increase in the income tax expense in fiscal ye@@Zompared to fiscal year 2008 is due to an as@én the Company’s effective tax rate to
42% in fiscal year 2009 up from 20% in fiscal y2808 partially offset by a 20% decrease in netrimedefore taxes in fiscal year 2009
compared to fiscal year 2008. These changes iGdmepany’s income tax expense are due to fullyzird the Company’s net operating loss
carryforwards and tax credits during fiscal yedd®2and 2008 and accounting for acquisition relatesds associated with the Lifecore
acquisition in fiscal year 2010.

Significant components of deferred tax assets wdities consisted of the following (in thousaids

May 30, 2011 May 31, 200!
Deferred tax asset
Research and AMT credit carryforwai $ 70t $ 642
Accruals and reserves, not currently deductibleds 1,52¢ 2,161
Stocl-based compensatic 60& 543
Other 344 234
Gross deferred tax ass: 3,182 3,581
Valuation allowance (390 —
Net deferred tax asse 2,792 3,581
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic (2,425 (259
Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles (7,906 (5,286
Deferred tax liabilities (10,337 (5,539
Net deferred tax (liabilities) asse $ (7,53¢) $ (1,95¢)

Valuation allowances are reviewed each period @x gurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to analyzéether there is sufficient positi
or negative evidence to support a change in judgeieout the realizability of the related deferrar assets. Based on this analysis and
considering all positive and negative evidencegdetermined that a valuation allowance of $390,00fukl be recorded as a result of a book
impairment loss on the Company’s investment in Aetst Sciences as it is more likely than not thpodion of the deferred tax asset will not
be realized in the foreseeable future.
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11. Income Taxes (continued

As of May 30, 2010, the Company had federal anié stat operating loss carryforwards of approxinya¥dl4.6 million and $5.4
million, respectively. These losses expire in dife periods through 2021, if not utilized. Such ogerating losses consist of excess tax
benefits from employee stock options exercisestawve not been recorded in the Company’s deferreddsets. The Company will record a
credit to additional paid in capital as and whechsexxcess tax benefits are ultimately realized.

The Company also had federal and state researctiemeopment tax credits carryforwards of approxetya$1.8 million and $1.5
million, respectively. The research and developntencredit carryforwards expire in different pets through 2030 for federal purposes and
have an unlimited carryforward period for stategmses. Furthermore, the Company has federal atbeenminimum tax credits of
approximately $690,000 that can be carried forwadefinitely. Certain tax credit carryovers areibtitable to excess tax benefits from
employee stock option exercises and have not lemnded in the Company’s deferred tax assets. Dinep@ny will record a credit to
additional paid in capital as and when such extasbenefits are ultimately realized.

The accounting for uncertainty in income taxes gaized in an enterprise’s financial statementsquiless a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statémezognition and measurement of a tax positikartaor expected to be taken in a tax
return, and the derecognition of tax benefits,sifaation on the balance sheet, interest and fiesahccounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inusands):

As of

May30, 201C May 31, 200¢ May 25, 200¢
Unrecognized tax benefi- beginning of the perio $ 61¢ $ 67¢ $ 27¢€
Gross increase— tax positions in prior perio 13¢ 16 86
Gross decreas+ tax positions in prior perio (209) (5) —
Gross increase— curren-period tax position 332 14 31t
Settlement: (18 (39 —
Lapse of statute of limitations — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits — end of the period $ 86¢ $ 61¢ $ 67¢

The unrecognized tax benefits at May 30, 2010, Bthy2009 and May 25, 2008 was $868,000, $619,a6(679,000, of which
$708,000, $549,000 and $599,000, respectively,imfilact the effective tax rate. The Company accmiesest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for immtaxes. The total amount of penalties and intése®t material as of May 30, 2010.
Additionally, the Company does not expect a matehanges in its unrecognized tax benefits withimhext 12 months.

Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Companguibject to examination for tax years 1994 forwandU.S. tax purposes. The
Company was also subject to examination in vargtate jurisdictions for tax years 1998 forward, @oif which were individually material.

12. Commitments and Contingencie:
Operating Leases

Landec leases facilities and equipment under opgraase agreements with various terms and camditiwhich expire at various
dates through 2016.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (continued

The approximate future minimum lease payments utidese operating leases, excluding land leas&4awnt30, 2010 are as follows
(in thousands):

Amount

FY2011 $ 67€
FY2012 39C
FY2013 314
FY2014 24C
FY2015 24¢
Thereafter 41C
$ 2,27¢

Rent expense for operating leases, including mnthonth arrangements was $1.5 million for thedigear ended May 30, 2010,
$1.6 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2G0®1 $1.5 million for the fiscal year ended May 2808.

Employment Agreements

Landec has entered into employment agreementsceithin key employees. These agreements providedee employees to
receive incentive bonuses based on the financi&meance of certain divisions in addition to theimual base salaries. The accrued
incentive bonuses amounted to $359,000 at May @00 2nd $308,000 at May 31, 2009.

Licensing Agreement

In fiscal year 2001, the Company entered into aregent for the exclusive worldwide rights to maidg@pes under certain brand
names. Under the terms of the amended agreemmaan(ied in fiscal year 2004), the Company is obdigad make annual payments of
$100,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2012.

Purchase Commitments

At May 30, 2010, the Company was committed to paseh$5.0 million of produce during fiscal year 2@1Accordance with
contractual terms. Payments of $8.2 million wesslmin fiscal year 2010 under these arrangements.

13. Employee Savings and Investment Plar

The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan which is availetbsubstantially all of the Company’s employdemdec’s Corporate Plan,
which is available to all Landec employees (“Lané¢an”), allows participants to contribute from 1&%0% of their salaries, up to the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) limitation into dgsited investment funds. Beginning in fiscal y2@01, the Company amended the plan so
that it contributes an amount equal to 50% of thtigipants’ contribution up to 3% of the partiaipsl salary. In May 2003, the Company
again amended the plan to make the Company’s nmgtclaintribution to the plan on behalf of particifsawmoluntary, and to make employees
participation in the plan voluntary. In June 20f& Company again amended the plan to increasenthpany match from 50% on the first
6% contributed by an employee to 67% on the fitstddntributed. Participants are at all times fuigsted in their contributions. The
Company's contribution vests over a four-year peaiba rate of 25% per year. The Company reta@msight, by action of the Board of
Directors, to amend, modify, or terminate the pl&or the fiscal years ended May 30, 2010, May2BD9 and May 25, 2008, the Company
contributed $368,000, $341,000 and $352,0@8pectively, to the Landec Plan.
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14. Business Segment Reportin

Landec operates in four business segments: the Faatlicts Technology segment, the Commaodity Tradaggnent, the
Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials segment and the Téaby Licensing segment. The Food Products Tedyyosegment markets and packs
specialty packaged whole and fresh-cut vegetahbgsncorporate the BreatheWay specialty packafyinthe retail grocery, club store and
food services industry. In addition, the Food Rieid Technology segment sells BreatheWay packagipgrtners for non-vegetable
products. The Commodity Trading segment consistsv@nues generated from the purchase and saleneérily whole commodity fruit an
vegetable products to Asia and domestically. Thaltttonan-based Biomaterials segment sells produiiting hyaluronan, a naturally
occurring polysaccharide that is widely distribubedhe extracellar matrix of connective tissuebath animals and humans for medical u
the Ophthalmic, Orthopedic and Veterinary markdtse Technology Licensing segment licenses Landmatented Intellicoat seed coatings
to the farming industry and licenses the Compait&limer polymers for personal care products ateoindustrial products. Corporate
includes corporate general and administrative es@&mon Food Products Technology interest incardeCampany-wide income tax
expenses. All of the assets of the Company agddowithin the United States of America. The Camys international sales are primarily
to Canada, Taiwan, Indonesia, China and Japanra@ges and identifiable assets by business segoomsisted of the following (in
thousands):

Hyaluronan-
Food Produci based Technology

Fiscal Year Ended May 30, 20 Technology Trading Biomaterials Licensing Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 175,04t $ 54,92¢ $ 1,457 $ 6,79t $ — $ 238,22:
International sale $ 15,71.  $ 52,31¢ $ 603 $ — $ — 3 68,63¢
Gross profit $ 2251¢ % 3,90¢ $ 81t $ 6,531 $ — 33,76¢
Net income (loss $ 11,05 $ 1,78¢ $ 13 3 2,74 $ (11,614 $ 3,98¢
Identifiable asset $ 75,28C $ 13,97¢ $ 79,60 $ 11,84¢  $ 19,48¢ $ 200,19°
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 3,058 $ 8 $ 141 % 16C $ — 3 3,36¢
Capital expenditure $ 421z $ — 3 73¢ % 241 % — 3 5,192
Interest incomt $ 22 % — 3 8 % — 3 60 $ 834
Interest expens $ 12 $ — $ 76 $ — $ — 3 88
Income tax expens $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 4,262 $ 4,26z
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 20

Net sales $ 168,25¢ $ 60,44 $ — 3 7231 $ — % 235,93¢
International sale $ 14,39: $ 55,267 $ — 3 — 3 — $ 69,66(
Gross profit $ 23,38t $ 3,651 $ — 8 7231 $ — 3 34,28(
Net income (loss $ 11,27¢  $ 1558 $ — 8 489: $ (9,997 $ 7,73(
Identifiable asset $ 75,46¢ $ 14,32¢ $ — $ 12,27¢  $ 51,42t $ 153,49¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,941 $ 14 $ — $ 17¢  $ — 3 3,13¢
Capital expenditure $ 4,367 $ — 3 — $ 20¢ $ — 3 4,57¢
Interest incom $ 38 % — 3 — $ — 3 921 $ 1,30¢
Interest expens $ 8 $ — 3 — $ — 3 — $ 8
Income tax expens $ — $ — $ — 3 — $ 5611 $ 5,611
Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 20

Net sales $ 171,19 $ 60,41: $ — 3 6,91¢ $ — % 238,52°
International sale $ 15,70 $ 56,190 $ — 3 — 3 — $ 71,89
Gross profit $ 27,86( $ 344¢ $ — 8 6,91¢ $ — 3 38,22¢
Net income (loss $ 14,84: % 1,40¢ $ — 8 491¢ % (7,627 $ 13,54
Identifiable asset $ 81,94t $ 16,12¢ $ — 3 11,01: $ 40,87 $ 149,95°
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,97C $ 20 % — $ 214 % — 3 3,20¢
Capital expenditure $ 4,051 $ — 3 — $ 18¢ $ — 3 4,24(
Interest incom $ 52z $ — 3 — $ — 3 1,697 $ 2,21¢
Interest expens $ 22 $ — 3 — $ — 3 — $ 22
Income tax expens $ — $ — $ — 3 — $ 3,35¢ % 3,35¢
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15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quaytezsults of operations for fiscal years 2010,2@dd 2008 (in thousands, exc
for per share amounts):

FY 2010 1st Quarte 2" Quarte 3rd Quarte 4th Quarte FY 201(
Revenue: $ 60,94: $ 60,93! $ 58,13: $ 58,21t $ 238,22:
Gross profit $ 8,87C $ 7417 $ 8,127 $ 9,35 % 33,76¢
Net income $ 2,18 % 1532 % 1,732 % (1,468 $ 3,98¢
Net income per basic she $ 0.0¢ $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ (0.06) $ 0.1fF
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.0¢ $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ (0.06) $ 0.1f

FY 2009 1% Quarte 2" Quarte 3" Quarte 4" Quarte FY 200¢
Revenue: $ 71,75 % 58,03¢ $ 5391 $ 52,23t $ 235,93¢
Gross profit $ 10,12 % 7557 $ 7,591 $ 9,00¢ $ 34,28(
Net income $ 2,83¢ $ 1,49 $ 154C $ 1,85 % 7,73(C
Net income per basic she $ 011 $ 0.06 $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ 0.3C
Net income per diluted sha $ 011 $ 0.06 $ 0.06 $ 0.07 $ 0.2¢

FY 2008 IstQuarte 2" Quarte  3rd Quarte  4th Quarte FY 200¢
Revenue! $ 62,65¢ $ 58,96. $ 59,607 $ 57,30C $ 238,52°
Gross profit $ 8,97¢ $ 8,851 $ 10,74¢ $ 9,651 $ 38,22¢
Net income $ 3,071 $ 3,12t $ 3,966 $ 3372 $ 13,54
Net income per basic she $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.1z % 0.52
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.11 $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.1z $ 0.5C

16. Subsequent Events

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved thabéishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows the Company to re@setup to $10 million of the CompasyCommon Stock. The Company may repurc
its common stock from time to time in open marketghases or in privately negotiated transactiortse timing and actual number of shares
repurchased is at the discretion of managemeiiteo€ompany and will depend on a variety of factmrsuding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thatiet attractiveness of other capital deploymemtoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doe®hlgate Landec to acquire any amount of its comstook and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeeatthmpany's discretion without prior notice.

On July 16, 2010, Aesthetic Science sold the righits Smartfil™ Injector System. The Companylested its cost method
investment for impairment, utilizing a discountesh flow analysis under the terms of the purchgseement. Based on the terms of the
agreement, the Company has determined that itstmemnt is other than temporarily impaired and thegeerecorded an impairment loss of
$1.0 million as of May 30, 2010.

On August 9, 2010, the Company amended its Creglieédment with Wells Fargo to amend certain findraaenants.
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Lifecore Biomedical, Inc Delaware
23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
241+ Power of Attorney- See page 8
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
* Represents a management contract or compensasryphrrangement required to be filed as an eixtulihis report pursuant to

Item 15(b) of Form 1-K.

+ Filed herewith

# Confidential treatment requested as to certainigust The term “confidential treatment” and therki&” as used throughout the
indicated Exhibit means that material has beenteth




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regjigthas duly caused this Rej
on Form 10K to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedretinto duly authorized, in the City of Menlo Pa8tate of California, ¢
August 12, 2010.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /sl Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persn whose signature appears below hereby constitutesd
appoints Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, andach of them, as his attorney-iriact, with full power of substitution, for him in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendmeés to this Report on Form 10K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto an
other documents in connection therewith, with the &curities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifyingand confirming our
signatures as they may be signed by our said attoey to any and all amendments to said Report on Forrh0-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exdnge Act of 1934, this Report on Form 16 has been signed by th
following persons in the capacities and on the daddndicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary T. Steel
Gary T. Steele President and Chief Executive Officer and Directo August 12, 2010

(Principal Executive Officer
/s| Gregory S. Skinng
Gregory S. Skinner Vice President of Finance and Administration and August 12, 2010
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s/ Nicholas Tompkin
Nicholas Tompkin: Chairman of the Board of Apio, Inc. and Direc August 12, 201(

/s/ Robert Tobir
Robert Tobir Director August 12, 201(

/s/ Duke K. Bristow, Ph.[
Duke K. Bristow, Ph.C Director August 12, 201(

/sl Frederick Fran
Frederick Franl Director August 12, 201(

/s/ Stephen E. Halpri
Stephen E. Halpri Director August 12, 201(

/s/ Richard S. Schneider, Ph
Richard S. Schneider, Ph Director August 12, 201(

/s/ Steven Goldb
Steven Goldb Director August 12, 201(

/s/ Richard Dean Holli
Richard Dean Holli: Director August 12, 201(




EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title

10.3C Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement by artvben Lifecore Biomedical, LLC and Wells Fargo BaNkA. dated
August 9, 2010

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

24.1 Power of Attorney. See page ¢

31.1 CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

32.z CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002




ExecuTioNn Copy

FIRsT AMENDMENT To CREDIT AGREEMENT

This First Amendment To Credit Agreement (ttdgnendment”) is entered into as of August 9, 2010, by and betwe&éecore
Biomedical, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability corapy (“Borrower” ), and Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatidBé&nk” ).

RECITALS
Whereas, Borrower is currently indebted to Bankspant to the terms and conditions of that certaiedi€ Agreement, dated a
made as of April 30, 2010, by and between Borroared Bank (as amended, restated, modified and/qrlesmgnted from time to time, t
“Credit Agreement”).

Whereas, Bank and Borrower have agreed to certawinges in the terms and conditions set forth inGredit Agreement and he
agreed to amend the Credit Agreement to refledt shanges.

Now, Therefore, for valuable consideration, theeigtand sufficiency of which are hereby acknowletdigthe parties hereto ag
that the Credit Agreement shall be amended as#istio

1. Definitions. Each capitalized term used and not otherwisee@fherein has the meaning ascribed thereto irCiieeli
Agreement.

2. Amendments to Credit Agreemerfbubject to Section 5 hereof, the Credit Agreermsehereby as follows:

€)) Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreemenhéseby amended by amending and restating in tmgirety each of the followir

definitions as follows:

“Net Income” means fiscal year-to-date after-tax net income foomtinuing operations of the Companies,
as determined in accordance with GAA®Pgvided, howevey that any amounts deducted in arriving at Borrdsver
Net Income shall be determined exclusive of (i) snecurring fees and expenses incurred in connegtitim the
Acquisition in an aggregate amount not to excee83 2000, (ii) expenses incurred during the momitiee April
30, 2010 relating to a one-time reserve for Accewamd Inventory in an amount not to exceed $600i00be
aggregate in connection with Borrower’s contradhvad customer previously disclosed to the Bank, €kpenses
incurred during the two months ended April 30, 20&lating to a one-time reserve for Inventory inaamount not
to exceed $200,000 in the aggregate, and (iv) esgeemelated to the one-time adjustment to Invenborgn
aggregate amount not to exceed $1,500,000 as eelqby GAAP in connection with the Acquisition arfiet
Warburg Acquisition.




“Quick Ratio” means, as of the last day of each fiscal quart&oofower, the ratio of (i) the aggregate of
unrestricted cash, unrestricted marketable seesirdthd receivables convertible into cash of the fzomes as of the
last day of such fiscal quarter to (b) the aggregsttotal current liabilities and, without dupltea, Contingent
Purchase Price Payments payable of the Compand<ias last day of the same fiscal quarter.

(b) Section 1.1 of the Credit Agreemertiéseby amended by adding each of the followingnitédins thereto in such as man
as to retain proper alphabetic order of the terafdd therein:

“Code” means the IRC, as defined herein.

“Warburg Acquisition” means the acquisition, prior to the Closing Date Seller of all the issuing and
outstanding equity interests of Holdings.

(c) Section 6.3(a)(i) of the Credit Agrearmhés hereby amended by amending and restatingsieritirety the last paragre
thereof as follows:

For purposes of this Section 6.3(a)(i) Net InconfeeATaxes shall be determined for all fiscal pésio
ending on or before April 30, 2010, as reportedBarrower’s audited financial statements for suchiqus (i.e.,
since for such periods Borrower was a “disregareletity” for tax purposes, as if Borrower was a Cq@Zwation
under the IRC), and for all fiscal periods endifigraApril 30, 2010, to the extent that Borrowetrisated as a pass
through entity for tax purposes, by calculating Netome before taxes for the four fiscal quarteentended minus
dividends and other distributions paid during tlzene four fiscal quarters to each of Holdings anyg ather
member of the Borrower in connection with its fedancome tax liability (and, if applicable, stateome tax
liability) attributable to its share of Borroweltaxable income (determined in accordance with B@)I(including
estimated tax payments determined in good faitiBdsrower which are required to be made by its masbath
respect thereto).

(d) Section 6.3(a)(iii) of the Credit Agreent is hereby amended and restated in its entiefgllows:
(i) Fixed Charge Coverage RatioAs of the last day of each fiscal quarter of Barer ending
during the relevant period set forth below (comniegowith the fiscal quarter ending November 30, @01

Borrower, together with the other Companies, willintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not laas the
corresponding ratio set forth opposite such period:
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Fixed Charge Coverage
Period(s) Ending Ratio shall not be less than:
Fiscal quarters ending
November 30, 2010 through 1.20t0 1.0
and including May 31, 2011
August 31, 2011 1.30to 1.0
November 30, 2011 1.40t0o 1.0
February 29, 2012 and each
fiscal quarter ending 1.50t0 1.0
thereafter
(e) “Exhibit B-1"to the Credit Agreement is hereby deleted in itsrety and Exhibit A attached hereto is substitutieerefo

and shall be deemed for all purposes the “ExhiHif’ Beferred to in the Credit Agreement.

® “Exhibit B-2" to the Credit Agreement is hereby deleted in itsrety and Exhibit B attached hereto is substituteerefo
and shall be deemed for all purposes the “Exhik¥’Beferred to in the Credit Agreement.

(9) All references in the Credit Agreemantl other Loan Documents to the term “Naseall be deemed to mean and reft
the Note as supplemented by the Addendum to Promyiséote (Swap Agreement Adjustments) executedimection with this amendme
a form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C mwedrporated herein by this reference.

3. Survival of Terms; Interpretation Except as specifically provided herein, all teramd conditions of the Credit Agreen
remain in full force and effect, without waiver prodification. This Amendment and the Credit Agresainshall be read together, as
document. The Recitals hereto, including the tedefined therein, are incorporated herein by teference and acknowledged by Borra
to be true, correct and accurate.

4, Representations, Warranties and CovenanBorrower remakes all representations and waesmontained in the Cre
Agreement (except to the extent that such reprasens and warranties relate solely to an earlke din which case Borrower confirms f
such representations and warranties were correct e date made) and reaffirm all covenants egth ftherein. Borrower further certifi
that as of the date of this Amendment there existBefault or Event of Default, in each case, ddd in the Credit Agreement.

5. Effective Date This Amendment will become effective as of tlaedfirst set forth above (tHf&ffective Date” ), providec
that all of the following conditions precedent hde=en satisfied on or before August 13, 2010:
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(a) Bank shall have received a duly executadinal (or, if elected by Bank, an executed faike copy, to be followe
promptly by delivery of an executed original) ofckaof the following, duly executed by each partgréto and in form and substa
satisfactory to Bank:

0] this Amendment;

(i) the General Consent and Reaffirmatttached hereto;

(iii) the Addendum to Promissory Note atglnereto as Exhibit C; and

(iv) Such other documents as Bank may requirder any other Section of this Amendment.
(b) All of the representations and warrasttontained herein (or incorporated herein byreefse) are true and correct as of
Effective Date.
(c) All legal matters incidental hereto lsh& reasonably satisfactory to Bank’s counsel.
6. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in two or monenterparts, each of which shall be deemed to |

original but all of which together shall constituiee and the same instrument. Delivery of an exelcoounterpart of a signature page to
Amendment by telefacsimile shall be as effectivel@s/ery of a manually executed counterpart of thinendment.

7. Severability. If any term or provision of this Amendment sHadl deemed prohibited by or invalid under any aalie law
such provision shall be invalidated without affagtthe remaining provisions of this Amendment @ @redit Agreement.

8. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by and condtmeccordance with the internal laws of the Std
California.
9. Non-Impairment. Except as expressly provided herein, nothinghis Agreement shall alter or affect any provis

condition, or covenant contained in the Loan Docats@r affect or impair any rights, powers, or reiee of Bank, it being the intent of :
parties hereto that the provisions of the Loan Doents shall continue in full force and effect excaepexpressly modified hereby.

[Signatures on Next Page]




In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have catlssdmendment to be executed as of the day andfiystwritten above.

LiFECOREBIOMEDICAL, LLC, WELLS FARGO BANK,
a Minnesota limited liability compar NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By:  /s/ Dennis J. Allingham By: /s/ Tim Palmer
Dennis J. Allingham Name:Tim Palmer
President and Chief Executive Offic Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to First Amendment To Credit Agregme




Each of the undersigned guarantors of, and/or thady pledgors having pledged property securitigindebtedness of Lifeco
Biomedical, LLC hereby: (i) consents to the foragoFirst Amendment to Credit Agreement dated agwdust 9, 2010; (i) reaffirms i
obligations under its respective guaranty, secwaifseement and/or pledge agreement; (iii) reaffitmsvaivers of each and every one of
defenses to such obligations as set forth in ispeetive guaranty, security agreement and/or pledgeement; and (iv) reaffirms that
obligations under its respective guaranty, secua@yeement and/or pledge agreement are separateisimtt from the obligations of a
other party under such First Amendment to Credite&gent, the Credit Agreement referred to theraih the other Loan Documents

defined in the Credit Agreement).

GENERAL CONSENT AND REAFFIRMATION

AGREEDAND ACKNOWLEDGED AS OF AuGusT 9, 2010:

LiIFEcOREBIOMEDICAL, INC.

By: /s/ Dennis J. Allinghar

APIO, INC.

By: /s/ Gary T. Steel

Dennis J. Allinghan
President/Secretal

CAL Ex TRADING COMPANY

By: /s/ Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
Secretary

LANDEC AG, LLC

By: /s/ Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
Secretary

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
President/Chief Executive Offic:

Gary T. Steelt
President/Chief Executive Officer/
Chairman of the Boar

Signature Page to General Consent and Reaffirmation




ExHiBIT A
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

Exhibit B-1
FOrRM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
(LiFECORE BiomEDICAL , LLC)
To: Caroline Peytol

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association

Date: , 201

Subject: Lifecore Biomedical, LLC
Financial Statements
In accordance with our Credit Agreement, datedfaispoil 30, 2010 (theé'Credit Agreement”), attached are the financial statem

of Lifecore Biomedical (théBorrower” ) as of and for , 20 (fReporting Date”) and the year-talate period the
ended (théCurrent Financials” ). All terms used in this certificate have the mags given in the Credit Agreement.

| certify that the Current Financials have beerppred in accordance with GAAP, subject to yead- audit adjustments, and fa
present the Companies’ financial condition as efdhte thereof.

Events of Default (Check one):

O The undersigned does not have knowledge of theraowe of a Default or Event of Default under thedit Agreemer
except as previously reported in writing to Ba

O The undersigned has knowledge of the occurrenca Bfefault or Event of Default under the Credit Agreent nc
previously reported in writing to Bank and attachesteto is a statement of the facts with respedhéveto. Borrowe
acknowledges that Bank may impose the Default Rasmy time during the resulting Default Peri

Financial Covenants | further hereby certify as follows:

1. Minimum Net Income After Taxes Pursuant to Section 6.3(a)(i)(A) of the Credit Agreent, as of the Reporting Date,
CompaniesNet Income After Taxes, measured on a trailing fguarter basis (other than the four quarters endingust 31, 2010
was $ whidll satisfiesdd does not satisfy the requirement that such amoentdi less than $1.00 for the f

fiscal quarters then ended.

-A-1-




2. Minimum Net Income After Taxes Pursuant to Section 6.3(a)(i)(B) of the Credit Agreent, as of the Reporting Date,
Companies’ Net Income After Taxes, measured foffisoal quarter ended August 31, 2010, was $ whichO satisfie:
O does not satisfy the requirement that such amaogimiob less than $500,000 for the fiscal quartem greded.

3. Minimum Net Income After TaxePursuant to Section 6.3(a)(i)(C) of the Credit Agment, as of the Reporting Date,
Companies’T did not haved had Net Income After Taxes less than or equal t0G1or two (2) consecutive fiscal quart
during the four fiscal quarters then ended.

4, Minimum Quick Ratia Pursuant to Section 6.3(a)(ii) of the Credit Agreem as of the Reporting Date, the Companies
Quick Ratio was : 1.0 whi¢B satisfiesdd does not satisfy the requirement that ratio musbedess than (i) 1.1 to 1.0
each fiscal quarter ending from the Closing Dateugh and including the fiscal quarter ending May 3011 and (ii) 1.25to 1.0 1
each fiscal quarter ending thereafter.

5. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio Pursuant to Section 6.3(a)(iii) of the Credit Agremt, the Companie&ixed Charge Covera
Ratio for the four fiscal quarters ending on thep&éng Date, was : 1.0, whidd satisfiesdd does not satisfy tt
requirement that such ratio be not less than _: 1.0 during such period as set forth in table Wwelo

Fixed Charge Coverage
Period(s) Ending Ratio shall not be less than:
Fiscal quarters ending
November 30, 2010 through 1.20t0 1.0
and including May 31, 2011
August 31, 2011 1.30to 1.0
November 30, 2011 1.40t0 1.0
February 29, 2012 and each
fiscal quarter ending 1.50t0 1.0
thereafter
6. Capital Expenditures. Pursuant to Section 6.3(a)(iv) of the Credit Agreem the Companies have exper
$ in the aggregate during theulidiscal year, ending May 31, 201___, for CapiExpenditures, whiclid

satisfiesd does not satisfy the requirement that such expemrditnot exceed $3,000,000 in the aggregate deudclg year.

-A-2-




Attached hereto are all relevant facts in reasanadktail to evidence, and the computations of thantial covenants referred
above. These computations were made in accordaitheGAAP (except for the computation of Net Incortmethe extent Net Income
determined without giving effect to the amountsuigdd arriving in such Net Income as set fortthim proviso of such definition).

LiIFEcOREBIOMEDICAL, LLC

By
Its Chief Financial Office




ExHiBIT B
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

Exhibit B-2
FormM oF CoMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
(L ANDEC CORPORATION)
To: Caroline Peytol

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association

Date: , 201

Subject: Lifecore Biomedical, LLC
Financial Statements

In accordance with that certain Credit Agreemeated as of April 30, 2010 (tH€redit Agreement”) between Lifecore Biomedic
LLC (the “Borrower” and Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatiotBank” ), attached are the consolidated financial statemantsande:
Corporation (thé'Parent” ) as of and for , 20 (Reporting Date” ) and the year-talate period then ended (
“Current Financials” ). All terms used in this certificate have the mags given in the Credit Agreement.

| certify that the Current Financials have beermppred in accordance with GAAP, subject to yead-audit adjustments, and fa
present Parent’s consolidated financial conditipiofethe date thereof.

Financial Covenantsl further hereby certify as follows:

1. Minimum Net Income After TaxesPursuant to Section 6.3(b)(i) of the Credit Agreamas of the Reporting Date, the
Income after taxes of Parent and its Subsidianegsured on a trailing four quarter basis, was $ whicid satisfiesd
does not satisfy the requirement that such amoziniob less than $1.00 for the four fiscal quartiees ended.

2. Leverage Ratio. Pursuant to Section 6.3(b)(ii) of the Credit Agrest) as of the Reporting Date, the ratio of Fundebt o
Parent and its Subsidiaries as of the Reporting BaREBITDA of Parent and its Subsidiaries for fiber fiscal quarters of Parent ¢
its Subsidiaries ending on the Reporting Date, was : 1.0, whicid satisfiesd does not satisfy the requirement that such
be not greater than 2.0 to 1.0.

-B-1-




Attached hereto are all relevant facts in reasanadktail to evidence, and the computations of thantial covenants referred
above. These computations were made in accordaitit&SwAP.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By
Its Chief Financial Office

-B-2-




ExHiBIT C
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

FORM OF
ADDENDUM TO FROMISSORYNOTE (SWAP AGREEMENT ADJUSTMENTY

ExecuTioN Copry

ADDENDUM TO PROMISSORY NOTE
(SWAP AGREEMENT ADJUSTMENTS)

THIS ADDENDUM is attached to and made a part oft thertain promissory note executed by LIFECORE BEIMCAL, LLC
(“Borrower”) and payable to WELLS FARGO BANK, NATKAL ASSOCIATION (“Bank”), or order, dated April 30, 2010, in the origi
principal amount of Twenty Million Dollars ($20,0@®0.00) (the “Note”).

The following provisions are hereby incorporatetb ithe Note to reflect the interest rate adjustmegtreed to by Bank and Borroy
in connection with any interest rate swap agreeraetgred into in connection with this Note:

SWAP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fohtbrein, at any time during which an interest rateys confirmation betwet
Borrower and Bank (a “Swap Confirmation®)in effect with respect to all or a portion oktprincipal balance outstanding under this M
the following revisions to this Note shall be idesft with respect to that portion of the principalance outstanding under this Note whic
subject to the Swap Confirmation (the “Swap Poffiphut not with respect to any portion of the printipalance outstanding under this N
which is not subject to the Swap Confirmation:

€)) With respect to the Swap Portion, no Daily Threenthid_LIBOR Rate interest option shall be availaldedunder
(b) With respect to the Swap Portion, the definitior* Fixed Rate Ter” shall be amended and restated to read as fol

“Fixed Rate Term” means a period of one (1) monttirdy which the Swap Portion bears interest
determined in relation to LIBOR, with the undersizny that (i) the initial Fixed Rate Term shall
commence on the later of (A) the effective datéest@n the Swap Confirmation and (B) the date Nute
is initially disbursed and shall continue up tot lshall not include, the first day of the next oting
calculation period designated in the Swap Confiromat(ii) there shall be successive Fixed Rate Berm
thereafter, each of which shall commence autombtjcaithout notice to or consent from Borrower,dan
run concurrently with the calculation period desitgd in the Swap Confirmation and (iii) if, on tfiest
day of the last Fixed Rate Term applicable herat remaining term of this Note is less than one (1)
month, said Fixed Rate Term shall be in effect ami{il the scheduled maturity date hereof, exchat if
the scheduled maturity date hereof is not a Busiiesy, then such Fixed Rate Term shall be extetaled
the next succeeding Business Day.




(c) The Swap Portion shall be in an amount equal greater than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars5(%200.00)

Borrower understands and acknowledges that eaclp 8wafirmation constitutes an independent agreerbeteen Borrower ai
Bank and that nothing contained in this Note shallconstrued as amending or modifying any such SRwayirmation or be interpreted
any way as inferring or creating an obligation ba part of Bank to amend or modify such Swap Cordtion, based on any action that 1
be taken by Borrower in respect of this Note. ket Borrower acknowledges that Borrower is resgibmdor verifying the terms of ai
Swap Confirmation into which it enters; understatids effect of a Swap Confirmation having paymeatied that do not concur exactly v
the payment dates of this Note; and agrees thaBamp Confirmation may still be considered in eff@ith respect to any principal portion
this Note even if the payment dates thereon daowtur exactly with the payment dates of this Note.

[Signatures on Next Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has been execasedf August 9, 2010.

LIFECORE BIOMEDICAL, LLC,
a Minnesota limited liability compar

By: /s/ Dennis J. Allinghar

Dennis J. Allinghan
President and Chief Executive Offic

ACCEPTED AND AGREEL

WELLS FARGO BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Tim Palme|
Name:Tim Palmer
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature Page to Addendum To Promissory Note
(Swap Agreement Adjustments)
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889;89368, 333-62866, 333-06163,
333-29103, 333-80313, 333-52339, 333-129895, 3&326) pertaining to the Non-Plan Stock Option, 1886ck Option Plan, New
Executive Stock Option Plan, 1995 Employee Stoaklfase Plan, 1995 Directors' Stock Option Plang19®ck Option Plan, 1996 Non-
Executive Stock Option Plan, 1988 Incentive Stogiti@h Plan, 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and 2009IShocentive Plan of our reports dated
August 12, 2010, with respect to the consolidateaicial statements of Landec Corporation and tfeetiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of Landec Corporation, includedhis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year eddMay 30, 2010.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

San Fransciso, California
August, 12, 2010




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations andcash flows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes ttesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngiave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioémin the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 12, 2010
/s| Gary T. Steel
Gary T. Steel
President and Chief Executive Offit




Exhibit 31.z
I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

() Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in a@oce with generally accepted accounting prinsij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslasire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 12, 2010

s/ Gregory S. Skinng
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Gogtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periendding May 30, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Gary T. Ste€lhief Executive Officer and President
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §@,3&s adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanksr@xt of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Re:fairly presents, in all material respects, timamcial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 12, 2010

/s| Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steeli

Chief Executive Officer and Preside¢
(Principal Executive Officel

*

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxletyofA2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-K or as
a separate disclosure docume




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Gogtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periendding May 30, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S.rdler, Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to &9lte Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timafcial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 12, 2010

s/ Gregory S. Skinng
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxletyofA2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-K or as
a separate disclosure docume




